THE CITY BOORD OF THE City of New York

VOLUME CXLVIII NUMBER 188

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 29, 2021

Price: \$4.00

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND MEETINGS
Administrative Trials and Hearings 6639
City Council
City Planning Commission
Independent Budget Office 6651
Landmarks Preservation Commission \dots 6651
Office of the Mayor 6652
Transportation
PROPERTY DISPOSITION
Citywide Administrative Services 6653
Housing Preservation and Development. 6653

PROCUREMENT

Citywide Administrative Services 6654	I
Finance 6654	
Health and Mental Hygiene 6654	
Homeless Services	
<i>DHS Security</i>	
Housing Authority 6654	I

<i>Procurement</i>
Human Resources Administration 6655
Contracts 6655
Investigation 6655
<i>Operations</i> 6655
Law Department 6655
Parks and Recreation 6656
Revenue and Concessions 6656
Police Department
Management and Budget 6657
School Construction Authority 6657
Contract Services
Transportation
Franchises, Concessions & Consents 6657
SPECIAL MATERIALS

City Planning	6657
Comptroller	6659
Office of the Mayor	6659
Mayor's Office of Contract Services \ldots .	6666
Changes in Personnel	6670

LATE NOTICE

Borough President - Brooklyn 6673

THE CITY RECORD

BILL DE BLASIO Mayor

LISETTE CAMILO

Commissioner, Department of Citywide Administrative Services

> JANAE C. FERREIRA Editor, The City Record

Published Monday through Friday except legal holidays by the New York City Department of

Citywide Administrative Services under Authority of Section 1066 of the New York City Charter.

Subscription \$500 a year, \$4.00 daily (\$5.00 by mail). Periodicals Postage Paid at New York, NY POSTMASTER: Send address changes to THE CITY RECORD, 1 Centre Street, 17th Floor, New York, NY 10007-1602

Editorial Office/Subscription Changes: The City Record, 1 Centre Street, 17th Floor, New York, NY 10007-1602 (212) 386-0055

Visit The New City Record Online (CROL) at www.nyc.gov/cityrecord for a searchable database of all notices published in the City Record.

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND MEETINGS

See Also: Procurement; Agency Rules

ADMINISTRATIVE TRIALS AND HEARINGS

■ MEETING

Pursuant to S. 50001 Part E (N.Y. 2021), available at https://www. nysenate.gov/legislation/bills/2021/s50001, the New York City Environmental Control Board (the "Board") Meeting scheduled for October 5, 2021, at 9:30 A.M., will be held electronically via WebEx, instead of a public meeting open for the public to attend in person. Members of the public may view the Board meeting by connecting through WebEx, with meeting number (access code) 2340 125 5066, password: QrJ4S8gpJD4. Minutes of the Board Meeting will be transcribed and posted on the Office of Administrative Trials and Hearings website.

s27-29

CITY COUNCIL

PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Council has scheduled the following public hearing on the matter indicated below:

The Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises will hold a remote public hearing on the following matters, commencing at 10:00 A.M. on October 5, 2021, at <u>https://council.nyc.gov/live/</u>. Please visit <u>https://council.nyc.gov/land-use/</u> in advance for information about how to testify and how to submit written testimony.

BROADWAY AND 11TH STREET REZONING QUEENS CB – 1 C 210025 ZMQ

Application submitted by 11 St & Broadway LLC, pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for an amendment of the Zoning Map, Section No. 9a:

- 1. changing from an R5 District, to an M1-4/R7A District, bounded by Broadway, 12th Street, 33rd Avenue, and 11th Street; and
- 2. establishing a Special Mixed Use District (MX-23), bounded by Broadway, 12th Street, 33rd Avenue, and 11th Street;

as shown on a diagram (for illustrative purposes only) dated April 19th, 2021, and subject to the conditions of CEQR Declaration E-613.

BROADWAY AND 11TH STREET REZONING QUEENS CB - 1 N 210026 ZRQ

Application submitted 11 St & Broadway LLC, pursuant to Section 201 of the New York City Charter for an amendment to the Zoning Resolution of the City of New York, modifying provisions of Article XII, Chapter 3 (Special Mixed Use District), for the purpose of establishing a new Special Mixed Use District and APPENDIX F for the purpose of establishing a Mandatory Inclusionary Housing area.

Matter <u>underlined</u> is new, to be added;

Matter struck out is to be deleted;

Matter within # # is defined in Section 12-10;

* * * indicates where unchanged text appears in the Zoning Resolution

* * *

ARTICLE XII – Special Purpose Districts

* * *

Chapter 3 – Special Mixed Use District (MX-1), (MX-2), (MX-4), (MX-5), (MX-6), (MX-7), (MX-8), (MX-9), (MX-10), (MX-11), (MX-12), (MX-13), (MX-14), (MX-15), (MX-16), (MX-17), (MX-18), (MX-19), (MX-20) (MX-21) (MX-22) (<u>MX-23)</u>

* * *

123-63

Maximum Floor Area Ratio and Lot Coverage Requirements for Zoning Lots Containing Only Residential Buildings in R6, R7, R8 and R9 Districts

* * *

#Special Mixed Use District#	Designated #Residence District#		
* * *	* * *		
MX 23 - Community District 1, Queens	R7A		

123-90

Special Mixed Use Districts Specified

* * *

#Special Mixed Use District# - 23 [Date of Adoption] Ravenswood, Queens

<u>The #Special Mixed Use District#- 23 is established in</u> Ravenswood in Queens as indicated on the #zoning maps#.

* * *

APPENDIX F Inclusionary Housing Designated Areas and Mandatory Inclusionary Housing Areas

* * *

QUEENS

* * *

Queens Community District 1

Map 1-(10/31/18)

Existing Map



Map 1 - [date of adoption]

Proposed Map



Inclusionary Housing designated area

Mandatory Inclusionary Housing Program Area see Section 23-154(d)(3) Area 3— 10/31/18 MIH Program Option 1 and Option 2 Area 5— 10/17/19 MIH Program Option 1 Area 9— [date of adoption] — MIH Program Option 1

Portion of Community District 1, Queens

* * *

130 ST. FELIX STREET BROOKLYN CB - 2

C 210278 ZMK

Application submitted by 130 St. Felix Street LLC, pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for an amendment of the Zoning Map, Section No. 16c:

: * *

- Changing from an existing C6-1 District, to an C6-4 District property, bounded by a line 330 feet northerly of Hanson Place, St. Felix Street, Hanson Place, a line midway between Ashland Place and St. Felix Street, a line 100 feet northerly of Hanson Place, Ashland Place, a line 250 feet northerly of Hanson Place, and a line midway between Ashland Place and St. Felix Street; and
- 2. changing from an existing C6-1 District to an C6-6 District property, bounded by a line 100 feet northerly of Hanson Place, a line midway between Ashland Place and St. Felix Street, Hanson Place, and Ashland Place;

as shown on a diagram (for illustrative purposes only) dated May 3, 2021, and subject, to the conditions of CEQR Declaration E-616.

130 ST. FELIX STREET BROOKLYN CB – 2

N 210279 ZRK

Application submitted by 130 St. Felix Street LLC, pursuant to Section 201 of the New York City Charter, for an amendment of the Zoning Resolution of the City of New York, modifying the Special Downtown Brooklyn District (ARTICLE X, Chapter 1) and modifying APPENDIX F for the purpose of establishing a Mandatory Inclusionary Housing area.

Matter <u>underlined</u> is new, to be added; Matter struck out is to be deleted; Matter within # # is defined in Section 12-10; *** indicates where unchanged text appears in the Zoning Resolution.

ARTICLE X SPECIAL PURPOSE DISTRICTS

Chapter 1 Special Downtown Brooklyn District

101-20 SPECIAL BULK REGULATIONS

101-21

Special Floor Area and Lot Coverage Regulations

(d) In C6-6 Districts

In C6-6 Districts, the maximum permitted #floor area ratio# for #commercial# or #community facility uses# shall be 15.0, and the maximum #residential floor area ratio# shall be 9.0. <u>However, in</u> #Mandatory Inclusionary Housing areas# mapped after [date of adoption], the maximum #residential floor area ratio# shall be 12.0. No #floor area# bonuses shall be permitted.

* * *

* * *

101-80 SPECIAL PERMITS

* * *

101-82 Modification of Bulk Regulations for Certain Buildings on Irregular Sites

In C6-9 Districts within the #Special Downtown Brooklyn District#, mapped after March 13, 2019, and in C6-4 and C6-6 Districts within the #Special Downtown Brooklyn District#, mapped after [date of adoption], for #developments# or #enlargements# on irregular sites, the City Planning Commission may modify underlying #bulk# regulations, other than #floor area ratio#, provided that no Use Group 5 #use# shall be permitted in any portion of the #building# receiving such modifications, and:

- a) there are physical conditions, including irregularity, narrowness or shallowness of lot shape or size that create practical difficulties in complying with the #bulk# regulations and would adversely affect the #building# configuration or site plan;
- b) the practical difficulties of developing on the #zoning lot# have not been created by the owner or by a predecessor in title;
- c) the proposed modifications are limited, to the minimum needed to relieve such difficulties;
- d) the proposed modifications will not unduly obstruct access of light and air to adjoining properties or #streets#; and
- e) the proposed scale and placement of the #development# or #enlargement# relates harmoniously with the surrounding area.

The Commission may prescribe additional conditions and safeguards to minimize adverse effects on the character of the surrounding area and to improve the quality of the site configuration. * * *

* * *

APPENDIX F Inclusionary Housing Designated Areas and Mandatory Inclusionary Housing Areas

BROOKLYN

Brooklyn Community District 2

Map 8 - [date of adoption]



Portion of Community District 2, Brooklyn

* * *

130 ST. FELIX STREET BROOKLYN CB - 2

C 210280 ZSK

Application submitted by 130 St. Felix Street LLC, pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for the grant of a special permit, pursuant to Section 74-533 of the Zoning Resolution to waive all required accessory off-street parking spaces for dwelling units in a development within a Transit Zone, that includes, at least 20 percent of all dwelling units as income-restricted housing units, in connection with a proposed mixed-use development, on property generally, bounded by a line 330 feet northerly of Hanson Place, St. Felix Street, a line 165 feet northerly of Hanson Place, a line midway between Ashland Place and St. Felix Street, Hanson Place, Ashland Place, a line 250 feet northerly of Hanson Place, and a line midway between Ashland Place and St. Felix Street (Block 2111, Lots 37, 40, & 1001-1199), in C6-4* and C6-6* Districts, within the Special Downtown Brooklyn District.

* Note: The development site is proposed to be rezoned by changing an existing C6-1 District to C6-4 and C6-6 Districts under a concurrent related application for a Zoning Map change (C 210278 ZMK).

Plans for this proposal are on file with the City Planning Commission and may be seen, at 120 Broadway, 31st Floor, New York, NY 10271-0001.

130 ST. FELIX STREET BROOKLYN CB - 2

C 210281 ZSK

Application submitted by 130 St. Felix Street LLC, pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for the grant of a special permit, pursuant to Section 101-82* of the Zoning Resolution to modify the tower lot coverage requirements of Section 101-223 (Tower Regulations), to modify the rear yard requirements of Section 23-532 (Required rear yard equivalents), to modify the inner court dimension requirements of Section 23-851 (Minimum dimensions of inner courts), in connection with a proposed mixed-use development, on property generally, bounded by a line 330 feet northerly of Hanson Place, St. Felix Street, a line 165 feet northerly of Hanson Place, a line midway between Ashland Place and St. Felix Street, Hanson Place, Ashland Place, a line 250 feet northerly of Hanson Place, and a line midway between Ashland Place and St. Felix Street (Block 2111, Lots 37, 40, & 1001-1199), in C6-4* and C6-6* Districts, within the Special Downtown Brooklyn District.

* Note: A zoning text amendment is proposed to Section 101-82 under a concurrent related application for a Zoning Text change (N 210279 ZRK).

** Note: The development site is proposed to be rezoned by changing an existing C6-1 District to C6-4 and C6-6 Districts under a concurrent related application for a Zoning Map change (C 210278 ZMK).

Plans for this proposal are on file with the City Planning Commission and may be seen, at 120 Broadway, 31st Floor, New York, NY 10271-0001.

For questions about accessibility and requests for additional accommodations, please contact swerts@council.nyc.gov or nbenjamin@council.nyc.gov or (212) 788-6936, at least three (3) business days before the hearing.

Accessibility questions: Kaitlin Greer, kgreer@council.nyc.gov, by: Thursday, September 30, 2021, 3:00 P.M.

🖾 🕐 cc

◆ s29-o5

CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

PUBLIC HEARINGS

In support of the City's efforts to contain the spread of COVID-19, the City Planning Commission will hold a remote public hearing, via the teleconferencing application Zoom, at 10:00 A.M. Eastern Daylight Time, on Wednesday, October 6, 2021, regarding the calendar items listed below.

The meeting will be live streamed through Department of City Planning's (DCP's) website and accessible from the following webpage, which contains specific instructions on how to observe and participate, as well as materials relating to the meeting: <u>https://www1.nyc.gov/site/</u><u>nycengage/events/city-planning-commission-public-meeting/290345/1</u>.

Members of the public should observe the meeting through DCP's website.

Testimony can be provided verbally by joining the meeting using either Zoom or by calling the following number and entering the information listed below:

877 853 5247 US Toll-free 888 788 0099 US Toll-free

253 215 8782 US Toll Number

213 338 8477 US Toll Number

Meeting ID: 618 237 7396

[Press # to skip the Participation ID] Password: 1

To provide verbal testimony via Zoom please follow the instructions available through the above webpage (link above).

Written comments will also be accepted until 11:59 PM, one week before the date of vote. Please use the CPC Comments form that is accessible through the above webpage.

Please inform the Department of City Planning if you need a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter, in order to participate in the meeting. The submission of testimony, verbal or written, in a language other than English, will be accepted, and real time interpretation services will be provided based on available resources. Requests for a reasonable accommodation or foreign language assistance during the meeting should be emailed to *[AccessibilityInfo@planning.nyc.gov]* or made by calling *[212-720-3508]*. Requests must be submitted at least five business days before the meeting.

CITYWIDE No. 1

No. 1 OPEN RESTAURANTS TEXT AMENDMENT

CITYWIDE N 210434 ZRY IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the New York City Department of Transportation and the New York City Department of City Planning, pursuant to Section 201 of the New York City Charter, for an amendment of the Zoning Resolution of the City of New York, removing Article I, Chapter 4 (Sidewalk Cafe Regulations) and modifying related Sections.

Matter <u>underlined</u> is new, to be added; Matter struck out is to be deleted; Matter within # # is defined in Section 12-10; * * indicates where unchanged text appears in the Zoning

Resolution. ARTICLE I GENERAL PROVISIONS Chapter 2 Construction of Language and Definitions

* * *

12-10 DEFINITIONS

*

Dwelling unit

A "dwelling unit" contains at least one #room# in a #residential building#, #residential# portion of a #building#, or #non-profit hospital staff dwelling#, and is arranged, designed, used or intended for use by one or more persons living together and maintaining a common household, and which #dwelling unit# includes lawful cooking space and lawful sanitary facilities reserved for the occupants thereof.

Enclosed sidewalk cafe - see Sidewalk cafe, enclosed

Enlargement, or to enlarge

* * *

Side yard — see Yard, side

Sidewalk cafe

A "sidewalk cafe" is a portion of an eating or drinking place that is located on a public sidewalk and is either an #enclosed#, #unenclosed# or #small sidewalk cafe#. #Sidewalk cafes# are further defined in Section 20–223, subdivision (a), of the Administrative Code.

Sidewalk cafe, enclosed

An "enclosed sidewalk cafe" is a #sidewalk cafe# that is contained within a structure constructed predominantly of light materials such as glass, slow-burning plastic or lightweight metal.

Sidewalk cafe, small

A "small sidewalk cafe" is an #unenclosed sidewalk cafe# containing no more than a single row of tables and chairs adjacent to the #street line# where such tables and chairs occupy a space on the sidewalk no greater than 4 feet, 6 inches from the #street line#.

Sidewalk cafe, unenclosed

An "unenclosed sidewalk cafe" is a space on the sidewalk that containsreadily removable tables, chairs or railings with no overhead coverageother than umbrellas or a retractable awning that is affixed to the #building# wall and does not extend further than the width of the-#unenclosed sidewalk cafe#.

* *

Sign

Two-family residence

A "two-family residence" is a #building# containing not more than two #dwelling units#, and occupied by only two #families#.

Unenclosed sidewalk cafe - see Sidewalk cafe, unenclosed

Urban plaza — see Plaza, urban

* * *

Chapter 4 Sidewalk Cafe Regulations

14-00

GENERAL PURPOSES

The sidewalk cafe regulations as established in this Resolution are citywide regulations, designed to encourage sidewalk cafes in locations where they are appropriate, discourage them in locations where they are inappropriate, and promote and protect public health, safety, general welfare and amenity. These general goals include, among others, the following specific purposes:

- (a) To ensure adequate space for pedestrians on the sidewalk adjacent to sidewalk cafes.
- (b) To promote sidewalk cafes as visual amenities that better relate to the streetscape.
- (c) To preserve and enhance the character of neighborhoods throughout the City.
- (d) To simplify administrative regulations and strengthenenforcement procedures for sidewalk cafes and ensure that such requirements are effective, efficient and enforceable.
- (e) To promote the most desirable use of land and thus to conserve the value of land and buildings and thereby protect the City's tax revenues.

14-01 General Provisions

In harmony with the general purpose and intent of this Resolution,

and the general purposes of the #sidewalk cafe# regulations, certain specified regulations concerning area eligibility, sidewalk locationalcriteria and physical criteria for #sidewalk cafes#, in general, and specifically for #enclosed sidewalk cafes#, are herein established.

The three types of #sidewalk cafes# that are permitted by the regulations of this Chapter and defined in Section 12-10-(DEFINITIONS) are #enclosed sidewalk cafes#, #unenclosed sidewalk cafes# and #small sidewalk cafes#.

The amendments to Article I, Chapter 4, adopted by the City Council on January 29, 2003, shall become effective March 27, 2003.

Physical criteria, including structural and operational requirements for #sidewalk cafes#, and #unenclosed sidewalk cafes# in particular, shall be regulated by the Department of Consumer Affairs and found in Title 6, Chapter 2, Subchapter F., of the Rules of the City of New York.

Licenses for all #sidewalk cafes# must be obtained from the Department of Consumer Affairs, or its successor.

14-011

Sidewalk cafe locations

#Sidewalk cafes# may be located in all R10H Districts, in all #Commercial Districts# other than C3 Districts and in all-#Manufacturing Districts# only where eating or drinkingestablishments are permitted, as modified by special eligibilityregulations set forth in Sections 14-40 through 14-45, inclusive. These sections identify #streets#, areas, special districts and malls or portions of #streets# for which special area eligibility regulations apply:

Section 14-40 — (AREA ELIGIBILITY FOR SIDEWALK CAFES)

Section 14-41 — (Locations Where Certain Sidewalk Cafes Are Not Permitted)

Section 14-42 - (Locations Where Enclosed Sidewalk Cafes Are Not Permitted)

 $\frac{Section \ 14-43 \ - (Locations \ Where \ Only \ Small \ Sidewalk \ Cafes \ Are Permitted)}{}$

Section 14-44 — (Special Zoning Districts Where Certain Sidewalk Cafes Are Permitted)

Section 14-45 — (Street Malls Where Certain Sidewalk Cafes Are Permitted).

#Sidewalk cafes# shall be permitted in Historic Districts or in designated landmark #buildings# only if such #sidewalk cafe# isapproved by the Landmarks Preservation Commission.

14-10 ENCLOSED SIDEWALK CAFES

14-11

Locational Criteria for Enclosed Sidewalk Cafes

The regulations of this Section, governing clear path, clearance at intersection of #streets#, clearance from large obstructions and minimum distance between two cafes shall apply to all #enclosed-sidewalk cafes#.

(a) Clear path

There shall be a minimum of 8 feet, 0 inches clear distance or 50 percent of the sidewalk width, whichever is greater, free of all obstructions, in order to allow adequate pedestrian movement.

The minimum distance shall be measured from the portion of the #enclosed sidewalk cafe# frontage that is nearest either the curb line or the nearest obstruction. In no event may recesses in the #enclosed sidewalk cafe# frontage be used to satisfy thisunobstructed width requirement, except that the corners of the #enclosed sidewalk cafe# may be rounded or mitered. A clearance of 8 feet, 0 inches shall be maintained around the corners of #enclosed sidewalk cafes#, measured in radius.

For the purpose of the minimum clear path, but not the clearance from corners of #enclosed sidewalk cafes#, parking meters, traffic signs, and trees that have gratings flush to grade, without fencesor guards, shall not count as obstructions

In the case of a #street# for which a mall plan or other special plan has been adopted, the clear path requirements pursuant to this Section shall be deemed satisfied if there is not less than an 8 feet, 0 inches clear path.

(b) Clearance at intersections of street line

There shall be a minimum of 9 feet, 0 inches clearance, free of all obstructions with no exception, measured from the outer edge of the #enclosed sidewalk cafe# to the curbside obstacle. The cornerof the #enclosed sidewalk cafe# wall may be rounded or mitered. Such distance shall be measured from the outer edge of the #enclosed sidewalk cafe# to either the curb line or the nearestobstruction. All #enclosed sidewalk cafes# shall be a minimum of 15 feet from large obstructions. For the purposes of this Section, large obstructions shall be bus stop shelters, newsstands, subwayentrances or any other object greater than 15 square feet in area. The closed end of a subway entrance located along the #front lotline# may #abut# an #enclosed sidewalk cafe#.

(d) Minimum distance between enclosed sidewalk cafes

There shall be a minimum distance of 40 feet between the nearend walls of two #enclosed sidewalk cafes# if an entrance toa ground floor #commercial use#, other than an entrance tothe eating or drinking place associated with either #enclosedsidewalk cafe#, is located between them.

There shall be a minimum distance of 15 feet between the near end walls of two #enclosed sidewalk cafes# if an entrance to a ground floor non-#commercial use#, or a #use# located above or below the ground floor, other than an entrance to the eating or drinking place associated with either #enclosed sidewalk cafe#, is located between them.

14-12

Physical Criteria for Enclosed Sidewalk Cafes

14-121

Structural requirements for enclosed sidewalk cafes

The regulations of this Section governing certain structural and operational requirements shall apply to all #enclosed sidewalk cafes#.

(a) Ceiling

The ceiling of an #enclosed sidewalk cafe# shall be of incombustible materials, including colored or colorless safety glass or fabric which has been treated to be fire resistant as approved by the Department of Buildings.

At no point shall the height of the ceiling of an #enclosed sidewalk cafe# be lower than 7 feet, 0 inches above the floor of the #sidewalk cafe#.

(b) Transparency — exterior walls

An #enclosed sidewalk cafe# may provide a base wall of opaque material up to a maximum height of 12 inches from the finished floor level. The base wall shall include any horizontal structural members that support transparent materials above.

All enclosing walls, doors and windows, except for the structural members, above finished floor level or base wall as provided inthis Section, up to a height of 7 feet, 0 inches above finished floorlevel, must be of colorless, untinted, non-reflective, transparent material, as approved by the Department of Buildings. In order to maximize transparency, the horizontal as well as verticalstructural members shall not be sized more than 10 inches wide.

At least 50 percent of the walls, up to a height of 7 feet, 0 inches above finished floor level, shall consist of operable transparent windows.

(c) Elevation

The #enclosed sidewalk cafe# floor shall not be more than seven inches above the level of the adjoining sidewalk.

In the event of a major grade change, however, the City Planning Commission may, by certification, permit the floor level to bemore than seven inches above the level of the adjoining sidewalk.

(d) Designated boundaries

No portion of #enclosed sidewalk cafes#, such as doors, windows, walls or any objects placed within an #enclosed sidewalk cafe#, shall swing or project beyond the designated exterior perimeter of the #enclosed sidewalk cafe#. However, fire exit doors that are used exclusively as emergency fire exit doors shall be exemptfrom this provision.

(e) Fixtures

The furnishings of the interior of an #enclosed sidewalk cafe#shall consist solely of moveable tables, chairs and decorativeaccessories. No objects, except lighting fixtures and HVAC installations, may be permanently affixed onto any portion of the wall of the #enclosed sidewalk cafe#. In no event shall suchobjects penetrate the exterior perimeter of the wall or the roof of the #enclosed sidewalk cafe# or impede the transparencyas required by this Chapter. The exhaust for such HVAC installations on the adjacent walls shall not be less than 10 feet above #curb level#.

(f) Refuse storage area

No structure or enclosure to accommodate the storage of garbage may be erected or placed adjacent to or separate from the #enclosed sidewalk cafe# on the public right-of-way.

14 - 122

6644

Access for persons with physical disabilities

An #enclosed sidewalk cafe# or its restaurant shall be directly accessible to persons with physical disabilities. In the event the main restaurant has provided such access, the #enclosed sidewalk cafe# shall be accessible to persons with disabilities from the interior of the restaurant.

In order to ensure access for persons with physical disabilities:

- at least one door leading into the #enclosed sidewalk cafe# or (a)restaurant from the adjoining sidewalk shall be not less than three feet wide, clear; and
- a ramp with non-skid surface, if there is change of grade, having (b) a minimum width of three feet and a slope of not greater than 1 # in 12, shall be provided. Such ramp may be of portable type for #enclosed sidewalk cafes# that are six feet wide or less, except if such #sidewalk cafe# is at least 180 square feet in area.

14-123

Signage

No #signs# are permitted on an #enclosed sidewalk cafe#, except that the name and type of establishment may be placed upon the glass wall but shall not obscure the required transparency.

14-124

14 - 13

Music and noise amplification

Musical instruments or sound reproduction devices shall not be operated or used within an #enclosed sidewalk cafe# for any purpose.

Special Permit Modifications of Locational or Physical Criteria for Enclosed Sidewalk Cafes

In all #Commercial# or #Manufacturing Districts#, where #enclosed sidewalk cafes# are permitted in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter, the City Planning Commission may permit, upon application, modifications to the locational or physical criteria regulations for #enclosed sidewalk cafes#, except that there shall be no modification of Sections 14-41 (Locations Where Certain Sidewalk Cafes Are Not Permitted), 14-42 (Locations Where Enclosed Sidewalk Cafes Are Not Permitted), 14-44 (Special Zoning Districts Where Certain Sidewalk Cafes Are Permitted) and 14-45 (Street Malls Where Certain Sidewalk-Cafes Are Permitted), provided the Commission finds that:

- the #enclosed sidewalk cafe# is developed consistent with the general purposes and objectives of this Chapter;
- (\mathbf{h}) any proposed modification to the requirements of this Chapter will result in good overall design and enhance the general character of the #street# and the neighborhood;
- any proposed modifications to the requirements of this Chapter (e)will not cause a serious adverse effect on pedestrian traffic;
- the restaurant or #enclosed sidewalk cafe# provides access for (\mathbf{d}) persons with disabilities;
- where a proposed #enclosed sidewalk cafe# is located between (e) two existing stoops, it will not project beyond the stoops; and
- modifications to the provisions of paragraph (a) of Section 14-(f) 11 (Locational Criteria for Enclosed Sidewalk Cafes) shall be limited to the minimum clear path for a proposed #enclosed sidewalk cafe# that would be located on a #street# with a special pedestrian plan.

14-20

UNENCLOSED SIDEWALK CAFES

Physical criteria for #unenclosed sidewalk cafes#, including structural and operational requirements, shall be regulated by the Department of Consumer Affairs pursuant to the Rules of the City of New York as described in Section 14-01 (General Provisions). #Small sidewalk cafes#, however, shall also conform to the requirements of Section 14-30.

14-30

SMALL SIDEWALK CAFES

#Small sidewalk cafes# shall be subject to the regulations of Section 14-01 (General Provisions) and, in addition, shall comply with the requirements for the definition of #small sidewalk cafes# in Section 12-10 as well as the following physical criteria:

- no form of serving station or any other type of furniture, other $\left(a \right)$ than the single row of tables and chairs set adjacent to the #street line#, may be placed within that space occupied by a #small sidewalk cafe# ;
- there shall be no railing, structure or other form of barrier (b)between a #small sidewalk cafe# and the remaining area of the sidewalk; and
- there shall be no overhead coverage other than a retractable (e)awning that is affixed to the #building# wall and does not extend-

further than 4 feet, 6 inches.

#Small sidewalk cafes# are permitted wherever #sidewalk cafes# may be located pursuant to the requirements of Section 14-011. Section 14-43 (Locations Where Only Small Sidewalk Cafes Are Permitted) lists specific #streets# and areas where no #sidewalk cafes# other than #small sidewalk cafes# may be located.

14-40 AREA ELIGIBILITY FOR SIDEWALK CAFES

Sections 14-40 through 14-45 identify those locations where specific area eligibility regulations apply.

For the purposes of Sections 14-40 through 14-45, the length of a #street# shall run the full #block# to the nearest intersections with cross #streets#, unless otherwise stated.

Areas bounded by #streets# shall include both sides of such #streets# and shall be subject to the regulations of this Chapter pertaining tosuch areas. When a #street# forms the boundary of a special district, however, only that side of the #street# located within the special district shall be subject to the regulations pertaining to the special district.

#Sidewalk cafes# shall only be allowed to locate along the length of a #street# or within the area bounded by #streets#, as set forth in-Sections 14-40 through 14-45, where the applicable #use# regulations of the district allow eating and drinking establishments, either as-ofright, by certification or by authorization or special permit.

14-41

Locations Where Certain Sidewalk Cafes Are Not Permitted

No #enclosed# or #unenclosed sidewalk cafes# shall be permitted on any of the following #streets#, portions of #streets# and areas, except that #small sidewalk cafes# may be permitted pursuant to the provisions of Section 14-43 (Locations Where Only Small Sidewalk Cafes Are Permitted).

Citywide

All #streets# with elevated rail transit lines, unless specifically permitted in Section 14-43.

Manhattan:

All #streets# bounded by 38th Street on the south, 59th Street on the All #streets# within the M1-5A and M1-5B Districts south of Houston Street

from East Broadway to Canal Street Bowerv Elizabeth Street - from Bayard Street to Canal Street Pell Street — the entire length Mott Street — from Park Row to Canal Street Mulberry Street - from Worth Street to Canal Street

Bayard Street — the entire length Doyers Street — the entire length

All streets facing Chatham Square

Canal Street — the entire length

Orchard Street — from Canal Street to Houston Street Delancey Street — from Norfolk Street to the Bowery Eighth Štreet — from Avenue A to Sixth Avenue

14th Street - from Second Avenue to Eighth Avenue

from the East River to Eighth Avenue 23rd Street -

31st Street - from Fifth Avenue to Eighth Avenue

32nd Street — from Fifth Avenue to Eighth Avenue

33rd Street — from Fifth Avenue to Eighth Avenue

34th Street from the East River to Eighth Avenue

42nd Street — from the East River to Eighth Avenue

All #streets# or portions of #streets# bounded by 43rd Street on the south, 45th Street on the north, Eighth Avenue on the east and, on the

west, a line 150 feet west of Eighth Avenue 57th Street from the East River to Eighth Avenue

58th Street from the East River to Eighth Avenue

59th Street from the East River to Fifth Avenue

59th Street — from Sixth Avenue to Columbus Circle

All #streets# bounded by 59th Street on the south, 61st Street on the north, Fifth Avenue on the west and, on the east, a line 125 feet east of Fifth Avenue

60th Street from Third Avenue to Fifth Avenue 61st Street -- from Third Avenue to Fifth Avenue

62nd Street -- from Second Avenue to Fifth Avenue

63rd Street — from Second Avenue to Fifth Avenue

68th Street – from First Avenue to Fifth Avenue

72nd Street -- from the East River to Fifth Avenue

77th Street – from First Avenue to Fifth Avenue 79th Street from the East River to Fifth Avenue

from the East River to Fifth Avenue, south side only 86th Street -- from the East River to 125 feet east of York Avenue, 86th Street -

north side only, and from York Avenue to Fifth Avenue, north side only 116th Street — from Malcolm X Boulevard to Frederick Douglass Boulevard

First Avenue - from 48th Street to 59th Street

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 29, 2021

6645

Third Avenue — from 59th Street to 62nd Street Avenue Lexington Avenue — the entire length Park Avenue — the entire length from 38th Street, northward Avenue Madison Avenue — the entire length Fifth Avenue — from Washington Square North to 61st Street Sixth Avenue — from 31st Street to 38th Street Avenue Broadway - from 31st Street to 38th Street Avenue Seventh Ävenue — from 31st Street to 38th Street Eighth Avenue - from 31st Street to 38th Street Avenue Herald Square. Brooklyn: 13th Avenue - from 39th Street to New Utrecht Avenue 86th Street — from Third Avenue to Gowanus Expressway Circle Court Street - from Schermerhorn Street to Montague Street. Queens: 82nd Street - from 34th Avenue to 41st Avenue Austin Street - from Yellowstone Boulevard to Ascan Avenue Junction Boulevard — from Northern Boulevard to 41st Avenue Roosevelt Avenue — from Union Street to Prince Street Skillman Avenue — from 43rd Street to 56th Street. 116th Street -Boulevard 14 - 42**Locations Where Enclosed Sidewalk Cafes Are Not Permitted** No #enclosed sidewalk cafe# shall be permitted on any of the following #streets# Manhattan: Bleecker Street - from Bank Street to Mercer Street Central Park South — from Fifth Avenue to Sixth Avenue Park Avenue South and Park Avenue — from 31st Street to 38th Street 86th Street - from the East River to Fifth Avenue. 14-43 Locations Where Only Small Sidewalk Cafes Are Permitted #Small sidewalk cafes# may be located wherever #sidewalk cafes# are permitted. In addition, only #small sidewalk cafes# shall be allowed on the following #streets#, notwithstanding any regulations set forth in Sections 14-41 or 14-42 prohibiting certain #sidewalk cafes# on such #streets#. Sixth Avenue -Manhattan: Sixth Avenue – Orchard Street - from Canal Street to Houston Street Delancey Street - from Norfolk Street to the Bowery Centre Street — from Canal Street to Spring Street Lafayette Street — from Canal Street to Houston Street Sixth Avenue — from Canal Street to a line 100 feet south of Spring Street Special Union Square District⁺ 14th Street — from Second Avenue to Irving Place 14th Street — from a line 100 feet west of University Place to Eighth Avenue 23rd Street — from the East River to Eighth Avenue Queens: 31st Street - from Fifth Avenue to a line 200 feet east of Broadway 34th Street — from the East River to Fifth Avenue 35th Street — from a line 150 feet east of Fifth Avenue to a line 150 feet east of Sixth Avenue - from a line 150 feet east of Fifth Avenue to a line 150 36th Street feet west of Fifth Avenue 37th Street - from a line 150 feet east of Fifth Avenue to a line 150 feet west of Fifth Avenue 37th Street - from a line 150 feet east of Sixth Avenue to Broadway 38th Street - from Third Avenue to Seventh Avenue 39th Street - from Exit Street to Seventh Avenue 40th Street - from a line 100 feet east of Exit Street to Broadway District#. 41st Street — from a line 100 feet east of Exit Street to Third Avenue 14-44 42nd Street — from First Avenue to Third Avenue 42nd Street — from Fifth Avenue to a line 275 feet east of Sixth Permitted Avenue All #streets# bounded by 43rd Street on the south, 46th Street on the north, a line 200 feet east of Third Avenue on the east and Third Avenue on the west 43rd Street — from Fifth Avenue to Sixth Avenue - from Fifth Avenue to Sixth Avenue 44th Street 45th Street — from Fifth Avenue to Sixth Avenue 46th Street — from Fifth Avenue to Sixth Avenue 47th Street - from a line 200 feet east of Third Avenue to Third Avenue 48th Street - from a line 150 feet east of Third Avenue on the east and Sixth Avenue on the west 49th Street — from a line 150 feet east of Third Avenue on the east and Sixth Avenue on the west 50th Street - from a line 150 feet east of Third Avenue on the east and Sixth Avenue on the west

51st Street — from a line 150 feet east of Third Avenue to Eighth-

Avenue 52nd Street — from a line 160 feet east of Third Avenue to Eighth-

53rd Street — from a line 160 feet east of Third Avenue to Eighth 54th Street — from a line 150 feet east of Third Avenue to Eighth 55th Street — from a line 100 feet west of Second Avenue to Eighth 56th Street — from a line 100 feet west of Second Avenue to Eighth 57th Street — from the East River to Eighth Avenue 58th Street - from the East River to Eighth Avenue 59th Street — from the East River to Second Avenue 59th Street (Central Park South) - from Sixth Avenue to Columbus 60th Street — from Lexington Avenue to Fifth Avenue 61st Street — from Third Avenue to Fifth Avenue 62nd Street - from Second Avenue to Fifth Avenue 63rd Street — from Second Avenue to Fifth Avenue 86th Street - from First Avenue to a line 125 feet east of Second Avenue, south side only – from Malcolm X Boulevard to Frederick Douglass Special 125th Street District – only as set forth in Section 97-13 (Permitted Small Sidewalk Cafe Locations) First Avenue — from 48th Street to 56th Street Third Avenue — from 38th Street to 62nd Street Lexington Avenue - from a line 100 feet south of 23rd Street to a line 100 feet north of 34th Street Lexington Avenue — the entire length from a line 100 feet north of 96th Street, northward Park Avenue — from 38th Street to 40th Street Park Avenue — from 48th Street to 60th Street Park Avenue — the entire length from a line 100 feet north of 96th Street, northward Madison Avenue from 23rd Street to 38th Street Madison Avenue — from 59th Street to 61st Street Special Madison Avenue Preservation District² Madison Avenue — the entire length from a line 100 feet north of 96th Street, northward Fifth Ávenue — from 12th Street to 33rd Street Fifth Avenue - from 59th Street to 61st Street — from 36th Street to 42nd Street from a line 150 feet north of 42nd Street to 48th Street Sixth Avenue — from 50th Street to Central Park South Seventh Avenue - from 50th Street to Central Park South Broadway - from 36th Street to 40th Street Broadway — from 50th Street to Columbus Circle Columbus Circle - from Eighth Avenue, westward, to Broadway. #Small sidewalk cafes# are not allowed on 14th Street #Small sidewalk cafes# are not allowed on 86th Street within the #Special Madison Avenue District#

Jackson Avenue, north side — from 44th Drive to the prolongation of Dutch Kills Street

Queens Boulevard — from a line 100 feet west of 39th Place to 48th Street Queens Plaza North — from 23rd Street to Northern Boulevard

Queens Plaza South — from 23rd Street to Jackson Avenue

Skillman Avenue, north side — from 45th Street to a line 100 feet east of 51st Street, including that portion within the #Special Planned Community Preservation District#

Skillman Avenue, south side — from 45th Street to 51st Street, excluding that portion within the #Special Planned Community Preservation District#.

Special Zoning Districts Where Certain Sidewalk Cafes Are Permitted

#Enclosed# or #unenclosed sidewalk cafes# shall be permitted, as indicated, in the following special zoning districts, where allowed by the underlying zoning. #Small sidewalk cafes#, however, may be located on #streets# or portions of #streets# within special zoning districts pursuant to the provisions of Section 14-43 (Locations Where Only Small Sidewalk Cafes Are Permitted).

Manhattan	#Enclosed Sidewalk Cafe#	#Unenclosed Sidewalk Cafe#
125th Street District	No	No ⁴
Battery Park City District	Yes	Yes
Clinton District	No	Yes
East Harlem Corridors- District	No	Yes

Enhanced Commercial District 2 (Columbus and Amsterdam Avenues)	Yes	Yes
Enhanced Commercial District 3 (Broadway/Upper West Side)	Yes	Yes
Hudson Square District	Yes	Yes
Inwood District	No	Yes
Limited Commercial District	No	No [±]
Lincoln Square District	No	Yes
Little Italy District	No	Yes
Lower Manhattan District	No	Yes²
Manhattanville Mixed Use- District	No ³	Yes
Transit Land Use District	Yes	Yes
Tribeca Mixed Use District	Yes	Yes
United Nations Development District	No	Yes
West Chelsea District	No	Yes ⁵

#<u>#Unenclosed sidewalk cafes# are allowed on Greenwich Avenue</u>

^e #Unenclosed sidewalk cafes# are not allowed on State; Whitehall or Chambers Streets or Broadway

³ #Enclosed sidewalk cafes# are allowed in Subdistrict B

- #Unenclosed sidewalk cafes# are allowed on the east side of Malcolm X Boulevard between West 125th and West 126th Streets, on the west side of Malcolm X Boulevard between West 124th and West 125th Streets and on the east side of Fifth Avenue between East 125th and East 126th Streets
- #Unenclosed sidewalk cafes# are allowed only on #wide streets# except they are not allowed on the west side of Ninth Avenue between West 15th Street and West 16th Street

Brooklyn	#Enclosed Sidewalk Cafe#	#Unenclosed- Sidewalk Cafe#
Bay Ridge District	Yes	Yes
Coney Island District	No	Yes
Coney Island Mixed Use- District	Yes	Yes
Downtown Brooklyn - District	Yes	Yes
Enhanced Commercial District 1 (Fourth Avenue)	No	Yes
Enhanced Commercial District 4 (Broadway, Bedford-Stuyvesant)	No	Yes
Mixed Use District-8 (Greenpoint-Williamsburg)	Yes	Yes
Ocean Parkway District ⁺	Yes	Yes
Sheepshead Bay District	No	Yes

#Sidewalk cafes# are not allowed on Ocean Parkway

The Bronx	#Enclosed Sidewalk Cafe#	#Unenclosed Sidewalk Cafe#
City Island District	No	Yes
Harlem River Waterfront District	No	Yes
Jerome Corridor District	No	Yes
Queens	#Enclosed- Sidewalk Cafe#	# Unenclosed Sidewalk Cafe#

Downtown Far Rockaway District	No	Yes
Downtown Jamaica District	No	Yes
Flushing Waterfront District	No	Yes
Forest Hills District ⁺	No	Yes
Long Island City Mixed Use District ⁹	No	Yes
Southern Hunters Point District	No	Yes
Willets Point District	No	Yes

#Sidewalk cafes# are not allowed on Austin Street

See Appendix A in Article XI, Chapter 7

Staten Island	#Enclosed Sidewalk Cafe#	#Unenclosed Sidewalk Cafe#
Bay Street Corridor- District	Yes	Yes
South Richmond Development District	Yes	Yes
St. George District	Yes	Yes
Stapleton Waterfront District	Yes	Yes

14-45

Street Malls Where Certain Sidewalk Cafes Are Permitted

#Sidewalk cafes# are permitted as indicated in the following malls where allowed by the underlying zoning.

Manhattan	# Enclosed Sidewalk Cafe#	#Unenclosed Sidewalk Cafe#
Mulberry Street Mall	No	Yes
Nassau Street Mall	No	Yes

Brooklyn	#Enclosed Sidewalk Cafe#	#Unenclosed Sidewalk Cafe#
Fulton Street Mall ⁺	No	Yes

#Enclosed sidewalk cafes# are allowed along DeKalb Avenue

Queens	#Enclosed Sidewalk Cafe#	#Unenclosed Sidewalk Cafe#
Far Rockaway Beach 20th Street	No	Yes

ARTICLE II RESIDENCE DISTRICT REGULATIONS

Chapter 2 Use Regulations

22-00

GENERAL PROVISIONS

* * *

Use Group 6C, limited to docks for ferries and water taxis, as specified in Section 22-15, is permitted in R6 through R10 Districts in Community District 1 in the Borough of Brooklyn.

In R10H Districts, an eating or drinking establishment, permitted pursuant to Section 72-21 (Findings Required for Variances), that operates a #sidewalk cafe# pursuant to the provisions of Article I, Chapter 4, may be #enlarged# into any open area that may exist between the #street wall# and the #street line#.

For the purposes of this Chapter, any #residence# and any #accessory building abutting# such #residence# on the same #zoning lot# shall be considered a single #building#.

ARTICLE III COMMERCIAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS

Chapter 2

Use Regulations

* *

32-41

Enclosure Within Buildings

$C1\ C2\ C3\ C4\ C5\ C6\ C8$

In the districts indicated, except as otherwise specifically provided in the Use Groups permitted in such districts and in Sections 36-11 (General Provisions), 36-61 (Permitted Accessory Off-street Loading Berths) and 73-36 (Physical Culture or Health Establishments), all permitted #uses# which are created by #development#, or which are #enlarged# or #extended#, or which result from a change of #use# shall be subject to the provisions of this Section with respect to enclosure within #buildings#. With respect to the #enlargement# or #extension# of an existing #use#, such provisions shall apply to the #enlarged# or #extended# portion of such #use#.

32-411

In C1, C5, C6-5 or C6-7 Districts

C1 C5 C6-5 C6-7

In the districts indicated, all such #uses# shall be located within #completely enclosed buildings# <u>except for store fronts or store</u> windows, associated with eating and drinking establishments, which <u>may be opened to serve customers outside the #building#</u>.

32-412

In other Commercial Districts

 $C2\ C3\ C4\ C6\text{-}1\ C6\text{-}2\ C6\text{-}3\ C6\text{-}4\ C6\text{-}6\ C6\text{-}8\ C6\text{-}9\ C8$

In the districts indicated, all such #uses# shall be located within #completely enclosed buildings# or within #buildings# which are #completely enclosed# except for store fronts or store windows which may be opened to serve customers outside the #building#.

* *

Chapter 3

Bulk Regulations for Commercial or Community Facility Buildings in Commercial Districts

33-00

APPLICABILITY, DEFINITIONS AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

<u>33-05</u> Outdoor Table Service Areas

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Resolution, outdoor table service areas, associated with eating and drinking establishments, meeting all requirements set forth by the Department of Transportation shall be permitted within any required sidewalk widening areas.

*

ARTICLE IV MANUFACTURING DISTRICT REGULATIONS Chapter 3 Bulk Regulations 43-00 APPLICABILITY AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

<u>43-03</u> Outdoor Table Service Areas

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Resolution, outdoor table service areas, associated with eating and drinking establishments, meeting all requirements set forth by the Department of Transportation shall be permitted within any required sidewalk widening areas.

*

ARTICLE V NON-CONFORMING USES AND NON-COMPLYING BUILDINGS

Chapter 2 Non-Conforming Uses

52-30 CHANGE OF NON-CONFORMING USE

52-34

Commercial Uses in Residence Districts

In all #Residence Districts#, a #non-conforming use# listed in Use Group 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11B, 12, 13, 14 or 15 may be changed, initially or in any subsequent change, only to a conforming #use# or to a #use# listed in Use Group 6. In the case of any such change, the limitation on #floor area# set forth in Section 32-15 (Use Group 6) shall not apply. Eating or drinking places, <u>establishments</u> with musical entertainment, but not dancing, thus permitted as a change of #use#, shall be limited exclusively to the sale of food or drink for on-premises consumption by seated patrons within a #completely enclosed building# <u>subject to the</u> enclosure provisions of Section 32-411.

*

ARTICLE VII ADMINISTRATION

Chapter 3 Special Permits by the Board of Standards and Appeals

73-24 Eating or Drinking Places

73-243 In C1-1, C1-2 and C1-3 Districts

In C1-1, C1-2 and C1-3 Districts, (except in Special Purpose Districts) the Board of Standards and Appeals may permit eating or drinking places (including those which provide musical entertainment but not dancing, with a capacity of 200 persons or less, and those which provide outdoor table service) with #accessory# drive-through facilities for a term not to exceed five years, provided that the following findings are made:

(d) that in C1-1, C1-2, C1-3, C1-4, C2-1, C2-2, C2-3, C2-4, C5, M1-5A and M1-5B Districts, such #use# shall take place in a #completely enclosed building# be subject to the enclosure provisions of Section 32-411; and

* *

In connection therewith, the Board may modify the requirement of Section 32-411 (In C1, C5, C6-5 or C6-7 Districts) insofar as it relates to the #accessory# drive-through facility. The Board may prescribe additional appropriate conditions and safeguards to minimize adverse effects on the character of the surrounding area.

* * *

Article VIII - Special Purpose Districts Chapter 3

Special Limited Commercial District

83-00 GENERAL PURPOSES

*

(10/9/69)

83-05 Enclosure of Uses

All permitted #uses# shall be located within #completely enclosed buildings# <u>be subject to the enclosure provisions of Section 32-411</u>.

ARTICLE IX SPECIAL PURPOSE DISTRICTS Chapter 7 Special 125th Street District

97-00 GENERAL PURPOSES

* * *

97-03 District Plan and Maps

The regulations of this Chapter are designed to implement the #Special 125th Street District# Plan. The District Plan, including Map 1 (Special 125th Street District and Subdistricts) and Map 2- (Permitted Small Sidewalk Cafe Locations), is set forth in Appendix A of this Chapter and is hereby incorporated as part of this Resolution for the purpose of specifying locations where the special regulations and requirements set forth in this Chapter apply.

* * *

97-10

SPECIAL USE AND LOCATION REGULATIONS

97-13

Permitted Small Sidewalk Cafe Locations

#Small sidewalk cafes# shall be permitted in the #Special 125th Street District# as indicated on Map 2 (Permitted Small Sidewalk-Cafe Locations) in Appendix A of this Chapter, subject to all applicable regulations of Article I, Chapter 4 (Sidewalk Cafe Regulations).

97-14

Transient Hotels Within the Park Avenue Hub Subdistrict

97-40 SPECIAL BULK REGULATIONS

*

97-41 Special Floor Area Regulations

*

97-412

Maximum floor area ratio in the Park Avenue Hub Subdistrict

Within the Park Avenue Hub Subdistrict, as shown on Map 1 in Appendix A of this Chapter, the maximum #floor area ratio# for #zoning lots# is set forth in paragraph (a) of this Section, and is modified for certain #zoning lots# in accordance with paragraph (b) of this Section.

(a) Maximum #floor area ratio#

The maximum #floor area ratio# shall be 12.0. Where a #development# or #enlargement# contains #residential floor area#, such #zoning lot# shall satisfy the provisions of either:

(1) a minimum non-#residential floor area ratio# of 2.0 shall be provided on such #zoning lot#. Such #floor area# shall not include any #floor area# containing a #transient hotel# pursuant to the provisions of Section 97-1413 (Transient Hotels Within the Park Avenue Hub Subdistrict); or

*

*

Appendix A Special 125th Street District Plan

* * *

Map 2: Permitted Small Sidewalk Cafe Locations (97A.2) [TO BE DELETED]

*



Special result of eer bisiner boundary
Locations where only small sidewalk cafes are permitted

ARTICLE X SPECIAL PURPOSE DISTRICTS

Chapter 9 Special Little Italy District 109-00

GENERAL PURPOSES

109-02 General Provisions

* *

The use of the public #streets# and sidewalks for the maintenance of #sidewalk cafes#, outdoor cafes or any other structures shall requirethe separate approval of the Board of Estimate, which may be grantedupon such terms and conditions as the Board of Estimate may deemappropriate.

*

ARTICLE XI SPECIAL PURPOSE DISTRICTS

Chapter 7 Special Long Island City Mixed Use District

117-00 GENERAL PURPOSES

117-03 District Plan and Maps

The regulations of this Chapter implement the #Special Long Island City Mixed Use District# Plan.

* *

The District Plan includes the following maps in Appendices A, B and C:

*

Appendix A Special Long Island City Mixed Use District and Subdistricts Plan Map, including Permitted Sidewalk Cafe Locations-

*

117-05

Permitted Sidewalk Cafe Locations

#Unenclosed sidewalk cafes#, including #small sidewalk cafes#, shallbe permitted in the #Special Long Island City Mixed Use District# only on the #streets# indicated on the map in Appendix A (Special Long-Island City Mixed Use District and Subdistricts Plan Map, including-Permitted Sidewalk Cafe Locations) of this Chapter, except that such #unenclosed sidewalk cafes# may also extend up to 100 feet along the non-designated #street# frontage of a #corner lot#, subject to all otherapplicable regulations of Article I, Chapter 4.

* *

Appendix A Special Long Island City Mixed Use District and Subdistricts Plan Map, including Permitted Sidewalk Cafe Locations

Permitted Sidewalk Cafe Locations

* * *

[TO BE DELETED]



BOROUGH OF THE BRONX

*

No. 2 CASTLE HILL BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT CDs 9 & 10 N 220101 BDX

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by New York City Department of Small Business Services on behalf of the Castle Hill Business Improvement District Steering Committee pursuant to Section 25-405(a) of Chapter 4 of Title 25 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, as amended, concerning the establishment of the Castle Hill Business Improvement District.

BOROUGH OF BROOKLYN Supplemental Cal. No. 1 - 6

RIVER RING Supplemental Cal. No. 1

CD 1

C 220062 ZMK

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by River Street Partners LLC, pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for an amendment of the Zoning Map, Section No. 12c:

- changing from an M3-1 District to a C6-2 District property bounded by North 3rd Street, River Street, North 1st Street, a line 200 feet northwesterly of River Street, a northeasterly boundary line of Grand Ferry Park, and the U.S. Pierhead Line; and
- changing from an M3-1 District to an M1-4 District property bounded by North $3^{\rm rd}$ Street, Kent Avenue, North $1^{\rm st}$ Street, and $\mathbf{2}$. River Street;

as shown on a diagram (for illustrative purposes only) dated August 16, 2021, and subject to the conditions of CEQR Declaration E-636.

Supplemental Cal. No. 2

N 220063 ZRK

CD 1 IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by River Street Partners LLC, pursuant to Section 201 of the New York City Charter, for an amendment of the Zoning Resolution of the City of New York modifying Article VII, Chapter 4 (Special Permits by the City Planning Commission) for the purpose of modifying Large-scale General Development provisions, and modifying APPENDIX F, for the purpose of establishing a Mandatory Inclusionary Housing area.

Matter <u>underlined</u> is new, to be added; Matter struck out is to be deleted; Matter within # # is defined in Section 12-10; * * * * indicates where unchanged text appears in the Zoning

Resolution.

ARTICLE VII

ADMINISTRATION

Chapter 4 **Special Permits by the City Planning Commission** 74-74

Large-scale General Development

74-742 Ownership

A special permit may be applied for and granted under the provisions of Section 74-74, even though such #large-scale general development# does not meet the ownership requirements set forth elsewhere in this Section, when the site of such #large-scale general development# is:

- partially under State or City ownership, or may include a tract (d) of land under private ownership that is located within the bed of 26th Avenue between 1st Street and the bulkhead line within the Hallets Point Peninsula, in the area bounded by 8th Street and Vernon Boulevard on the east, the East River on the west and south, and the north side of 26th Avenue on the north, in Community District 1 in the Borough of Queens, provided that the exception to the ownership requirements set forth herein shall apply only to:
 - tracts of land in State or City ownership; or (1)
 - (2)a tract of land in private ownership located within the bed of 26th Avenue, between 1st Street and the bulkhead line; or
- within Manhattan Community District 2, where the City Planning Commission has approved a special permit under (e) Section 74-74 for a #large-scale general development# located partially within a C2-7 District, and a portion of such #largescale general development# is subsequently mapped as a park and transferred to City ownership, then the consent or authorization of any owner or party in interest to: *

*

- (2)property other than the #public park# shall not be required for any application for a modification to the special permit or associated restrictive declaration relating only to the #public park#;<u>or</u>
- partially under State or City ownership, and is located within the boundaries of Community District 1 in the Borough of Brooklyn, on a #waterfront zoning lot# located within a C6-2 District that is (f) mapped within a #Mandatory Inclusionary Housing area#, provided that the exception to the ownership requirements set forth herein shall apply only to tracts of land in State or City ownership.

74-743

Special provisions for bulk modification

(a) For a #large-scale general development#, the City Planning Commission may permit:

*

- wholly within a C1-9 District entirely within the (11)boundaries of Community District 8 in Manhattan, for a predominantly #community facility development#, a #floor predominantly #community facility development#, a #floor area# bonus not to exceed 20 percent of the maximum #floor area ratio# permitted by the underlying district regulations where, in connection with such #development#, an improvement to a #public park# located within the same Community District and within a one mile radius of the proposed #development# is provided in accordance with the provisions of this Section with the provisions of this Section.

 - (ii) Prior to a determination as to whether to grant the special permit, the City Planning Commission shall have received from the Commissioner of Parks and Recreation:

(b) a letter that shall include:

* * *

- (ii) a statement that the funding to be provided by the applicant, in combination with any other available funding, is adequate for completion of the necessary infrastructure, landscape and other work necessary to complete the #public park# improvement; or
- within the boundaries of Community District 1 in the (12)Borough of Queens, in the area generally north of 30th Road and west of 8th Street, within the Hallets Point Peninsula, the #floor area# distribution from a #zoning lot# containing existing public housing #buildings#, provided that upon approval of a #large-scale general development# there exists unused #floor area# on a separate parcel of land with existing light industrial #buildings# in an amount equivalent to, or in excess of, the #floor area# approved for distribution and further provided:
 - (ii) the existing light industrial <code>#buildings#</code> on the separate parcel of land are demolished: or
- within the boundaries of Community District 1 in the (13)Borough of Brooklyn, on a #waterfront zoning lot# located within a C6-2 District that is mapped within a #Mandatory Inclusionary Housing area#, portions of the land, #piers# or #platforms# projecting seaward of the bulkhead line and existing on [date of adoption] may be replaced or <u>reconstructed with #new piers# or #new platforms#, as</u> follows:
 - any such existing land projecting seaward of the (i) bulkhead line may be replaced or reconstructed with #new platforms# and such #new platforms# may be included as part of the #upland lot#. In no event shall the #lot area# generated by such #new platforms# exceed the #lot area# of the land projecting seaward of the bulkhead line as it evicted on [date of adoption]: the bulkhead line, as it existed on [date of adoption];
 - any other such #new piers# or #new platforms# may be considered #lot area# for the purposes of (ii) determining allowable #floor area# or number of #dwelling units#, or to satisfy any other #bulk# regulations, in accordance with the provisions regulations, in accordance with the provisions of paragraphs (b) and (c) of Section 62-31 (Bulk Computations on Waterfront Zoning Lots). In no event shall the #floor area# generated by such #new piers# or #new platforms# exceed the #floor area# generated by #piers# or #platforms# projecting seaward of the bulkhead line, as they existed on [date of adoption]; and and
 - (iii) such #new piers# or #new platforms# that are subject to the provisions of paragraph (a)(13)(ii) of this Section need not meet the requirements of Sections 62-242 (Uses on new piers and platforms), 62-54 (Requirements for Public Access on Piers) or 62-63 (Design Requirements for Public Access on Piers and Floating Structures), inclusive.
- (b) In order to grant a special permit pursuant to this Section for any #large-scale general development#, the Commission shall find that:

* *

(12)where #new piers# or #new platforms# are constructed, replaced or reconstructed in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (a)(13) of this Section, such #new piers# and <u>#new platforms# are an integral part of such #large-scale</u> general development#, result in a superior site plan and appropriate relationship with adjacent #waterfront public access areas# and #shorelines#, and provide significant public access to or within the #seaward lot# portion of the #waterfront zoning lot#.

Within Manhattan Community District 2, within the former Washington Square Southeast Urban Renewal Area, where the Commission has approved a #large-scale general development# and a #lot line# of such #large-scale general development# coincides with the boundary of a mapped #public park#, such #lot line# shall be considered to be a #street line# of a #wide street# for the purposes of applying all #use# and #bulk# regulations of this Resolution.

APPENDIX F

Inclusionary Housing Designated Areas and Mandatory Inclusionary Housing Areas

*

BROOKLYN

Brooklyn Community District 1





Inclusionary Housing designated area

Excluded Area





Inclusionary Housing designated area

Mandatory Inclusionary Housing Program area see Section 23-154(d)(3) Area # - [date of adoption] MIH Program Option 1

Excluded Area

CD 1

Portion of Community District 1, Brooklyn *

*

Supplemental Cal. No. 3

C 220064 ZSM

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by River Street Partners LLC, pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for, for the grant of special permits pursuant to the following Sections of the Zoning Resolution:

- Section 74-743(a)(2) to modify the height and setback, floor area 1. distribution, maximum residential tower size, and maximum width of building walls facing a shoreline requirements of Section 62-341 (Developments on land and platforms); and
- 2. Section 74-743(a)(13)*:
 - to allow existing land projecting seaward of the bulkhead line a. to be replaced or reconstructed with new platforms and such platform be included as part of the upland lot;
 - to allow such new piers and platforms to be considered lot area for the purposes of determining allowable floor area, dwelling b. (Bulk Computations on Waterfront Zoning Lots); and
 - to waive the requirements of Sections 62-242 (Uses on new c. piers and platforms), 62-54 (Requirements for Public Access on Piers, and Section 62-63 (Design Requirements for Public Access on Piers and Floating Structures);

in connection with a proposed mixed-use development, within a largescale general development, on property generally bounded by North ^{3rd} Street, River Street, North 1st Street, a line 200 feet northwesterly of River Street, Grand Ferry Park, and the U.S. Pierhead Line (Block 2355, Lots 1 and 20; Block 2361, Lots 1, 20 and 21; and Block 2376, Lot 50; and the demapped portions of Metropolitan Avenue** and North 1st Street**), in a C6-2 District***

* Note: Section 74-743 is proposed to be changed under a concurrent related application for a Zoning Text Change (N 220063 ZRK).

** Note: Portions of Metropolitan Avenue and North 1st Street are proposed to be demapped under a concurrent related application for a City Map change (C 210425 MMK).

*** Note: This site is proposed to be rezoned by changing an existing M3-1 District to a C6-2 District under a concurrent related application for a Zoning Map change (C 220062 ZMK).

Plans for this proposal are on file with the City Planning Commission and may be seen at 120 Broadway, 31st Floor, New York, NY 10271-0001.

Supplemental Cal. No. 4

C 220070 ZSK

CD 1 IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by River Street Partners LLC, pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for the grant of a special permit pursuant to Section 74-533 of the Zoning Resolution to reduce the number of required accessory off-street parking spaces from 40 percent to 20 percent, for dwelling units in a development within a Transit Zone, that includes at least 20 percent of all dwelling units as income-restricted housing units, in connection with a proposed mixed-use development, within a largescale general development, on property generally bounded by North 3rd Street, River Street, North 1st Street, a line 200 feet northwesterly of River Street, Grand Ferry Park, and the U.S. Pierhead Line (Block 2355, Lots 1 and 20; Block 2361, Lots 1, 20 and 21; and Block 2376, Lot 50; and the demapped portions of Metropolitan Avenue^{**} and North 1st Street^{**}), in C6-2 District^{***}.

* Note: Section 74-743 is proposed to be changed under a concurrent related application for a Zoning Text Change (N 220063 ZRK).

** Note: Portions of Metropolitan Avenue and North 1st Street are proposed to be demapped under a concurrent related application for a City Map change (C 210425 MMK).

*** Note: This site is proposed to be rezoned by changing an existing M3-1 District to a C6-2 District under a concurrent related application for a Zoning Map change (C 220062 ZMK).

Plans for this proposal are on file with the City Planning Commission and may be seen at 120 Broadway, 31st Floor, New York, NY 10271-0001.

Supplemental Cal. No. 5

C 220061 MLK

CD 1 IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by River Street Partners LLC, pursuant to Section 197-c of the New York City Charter for a landfill of approximately 6,230 square feet located in the East River, in connection with a proposed mixed-use development, within River, in connection with a proposed mixed-use development, within a large-scale general development, on property generally bounded by North 3rd Street, River Street, North 1st Street, a line 200 feet northwesterly of River Street, Grand Ferry Park, and the U.S. Pierhead Line (Block 2355, Lots 1 and 20; Block 2361, Lots 1, 20 and 21; and Block 2376, Lot 50; and the demapped portions of Metropolitan Avenue** and North 1st Street**), in C6-2 District***.

 \ast Note: Section 74-743 is proposed to be changed under a concurrent related application for a Zoning Text Change (N 220063 ZRK).

** Note: Portions of Metropolitan Avenue and North 1st Street are proposed to be demapped under a concurrent related application for a City Map change (C 210425 MMK).

*** Note: This site is proposed to be rezoned by changing an existing M3-1 District to a C6-2 District under a concurrent related application for a Zoning Map change (C 220062 ZMK).

Plans for this proposal are on file with the City Planning Commission and may be seen at 120 Broadway, 31st Floor, New York, NY 10271-0001.

Supplemental Cal. No. 6

CD 1

C 210425 MMK

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by River Street Partners LLC, pursuant to Sections 197-c and 199 of the New York City Charter and Section 5-430 et seq. of the New York City Administrative Code for an amendment to the City Map involving:

- 1) the elimination, discontinuance and closing of Metropolitan Avenue between River Street and the United States Pierhead Line;
- the elimination, discontinuance and closing of a portion of North 2)1st Street from a point 200 feet west of River Street and the United States Pierhead Line;
- 3)the adjustment of grades and block dimensions necessitated thereby;

including authorization for any acquisition or disposition of real property related thereto, in accordance with Map No. Y-2760 dated August 16, 2021 and signed by the Borough President.

NOTICE

On Wednesday, October 6, 2021, a public hearing is being held by the City Planning Commission (CPC), accessible remotely, in conjunction with the above ULURP hearing to receive comments related to a Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DEIS) concerning an application by River Street Partners, LLC (the Applicant). The Applicant is seeking a series of land use applications including a city map change, a landfill application, zoning map amendment, zoning text amendments, zoning authorizations and special permits (the Proposed Actions) from the City Planning Commission (CPC) to facilitate the development of two mixed use towers with mixed income residential, commercial, and community facility uses, and waterfront public spaces (the "Proposed Development") on the proposed development site comprised of Block 2355, Lots 1 and 20; Block 2361, Lots 1, 20, and 21; Block 2376, Lot 50; and portions of Metropolitan Avenue and North 1st Street (collectively known as the "Proposed Development Site") in the Williamsburg neighborhood of Brooklyn, Community District . The Project Area also includes two non-Applicant owned blocks to the east of the Proposed Development Site (Blocks 2356 and 2362).

The Proposed Development would contain approximately 1.336 million gsf, comprised of approximately 1.12 million gsf of residential space (approximately 1,250 dwelling units, of which 313 units (25%) would be affordable pursuant to the MIH program), 50,000 gsf of community facility space, 83,000 gsf of commercial space (including 60,000 gsf of office and 23,000 gsf of local retail), and approximately 83,000 gsf of below-grade parking (up to 250 accessory attended parking spaces)

The Applicant is also requesting an extension of term of special permit and authorization approvals to a period of ten years during which substantial construction of the phased project would be completed. In addition, a Joint Permit Application from the NYS Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) and the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) is being sought in conjunction with the publicly accessible open space proposed along the waterfront.

Written comments on the DEIS are requested and will be received and considered by the Lead Agency through Monday, October 18, 2021 by 5:00 P.M.

For instructions on how to submit comments and participate remotely, please refer to the instructions at the beginning of this agenda.

This hearing is being held, pursuant to the State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA) and City Environmental Quality Review (CEQR), CEQR No. 21DCP157K.

YVETTE V. GRUEL, Calendar Officer City Planning Commission 120 Broadway, 31st Floor, New York, NY 10271 Telephone (212) 720-3370

s22-o6

INDEPENDENT BUDGET OFFICE

■ NOTICE

Ť

The New York City Independent Budget Office Advisory Board, will hold a meeting on Thursday, October 7th, beginning at 8:30 A.M., via video conference. There will be an opportunity for the public to address the advisory board during the public portion of the meeting. For a link to the meeting, please email iboenews@ibo.nyc.ny.us.

Accessibility questions: Lisa Neary, lisan@ibo.nyc.ny.us, by: Wednesday, October 6, 2021, 5:00 P.M.

Ť

s22-o7

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION

PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant, to the provisions of Title 25, Chapter 3 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York (Sections 25-303, 25-307, 25-308, 25-309, 25-313, 25-318, 25-320) on Tuesday, October 5, 2021, at 9:30 A.M., the Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC or agency), will hold a public hearing by teleconference with respect, to the properties list below, and then followed by a public meeting.

The final order and estimated times for each application will be posted on the Landmarks Preservation Commission website the Friday before the hearing. Please note that the order and estimated times are subject to change. The teleconference will be by the Zoom app and will be live streamed on the LPC's YouTube channel, www.youtube.com/nyclpc. Members of the public should observe the meeting on the YouTube channel and may testify on particular matters by joining the meeting using either the Zoom app or by calling in from any phone. Specific instructions on how to observe and testify, including the meeting ID and password, and the call-in number, will be posted on the agency's website, under the "Hearings" tab, https://www1.nyc.gov/site/lpc/ hearings/hearings.page, on the Monday before the public hearing. Any person requiring language assistance services or other reasonable accommodation in order to participate in the hearing or, attend the meeting should contact the LPC by contacting Anthony Fabre, Director of Community and Intergovernmental Affairs, at anfabre@lpc.nyc.gov, at least five (5) business days before the hearing or meeting. Please note: Due, to the City's response to COVID-19, this public hearing and meeting is subject to change and/or cancellation.

282 Park Place - Prospect Heights Historic District LPC-21-06781 - Block 1165 - Lot 15 - Zoning: R6B CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A Renaissance Revival style rowhouse with Romanesque Revival elements, designed by William H. Reynolds and built c. 1897. Application is to construct a stoop

749 5th Avenue - Individual Landmark LPC-22-01811 - Block 655 - Lot 31 - Zoning: M1-1D CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A Victorian style commercial greenhouse, designed by George Curtis Gillespie and, built in 1895. Application is to remove the remainder of a previously demolished building adjoining the greenhouse, and to install portions of fencing and a new entrance courtyard, pathway, and vestibule associated with new fencing and signage and a new building located off the landmark site.

295-297 Hicks Street - Brooklyn Heights Historic District LPC-22-00050 - Block 261 - Lot 111, 9, 110 - Zoning: R6 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

Three vacant lots. Application is to construct two new buildings.

1423 Albemarle Road - Prospect Park South Historic District LPC-22-00018 - Block 5095 - Lot 46 - Zoning: R1-2 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A Queen Anne style house, with Medieval French, English Tudor, Shavian, and American Colonial style influences, designed by John J. Petit and built in 1899. Application is to construct a side-yard addition, create and modify masonry openings, and install a balcony railing.

77 Greene Street - SoHo-Cast Iron Historic District LPC-21-10696 - Block 486 - Lot 21 - Zoning: M1-5A CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A store and loft building, designed by Henry Fernbach and, built in 1877. Application is to paint the cast iron façade.

69 Gansevoort Street - Gansevoort Market Historic District LPC-22-01806 - Block 644 - Lot 64 - Zoning: M1-5 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A 19th century building, modified in the Moderne style by George H. Suess in 1949. Application is to construct a rooftop addition.

163 East 69th Street - Upper East Side Historic District LPC-21-06111 - Block 1404 - Lot 31 - Zoning: R8B CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A Neo-Georgian style garage and house, designed by Albro & Lindeberg and, built in 1909, and later altered in 1954. Application is to construct rooftop and rear yard additions, modify masonry openings, replace windows and doors, and install balconies.

s21-o5

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

PUBLIC HEARINGS

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING

PURSUANT TO STATUTORY REQUIREMENT, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing as part of Local Law 24 of 2021 will be held by remote means on Friday, October 1, 2021, at 1:00 P.M. To obtain information on how to access the hearing, or to register to speak at the hearing, please email cityleg@cityhall.nyc.gov, or call 311. Please note that, if you require special accommodations to participate, you must request it 3 days in advance of the hearing by sending an email to the

aforementioned email address or by calling 311. The hearing can be viewed live on NYC.gov.

> Bill de Blasio Mayor

s24-29

TRANSPORTATION

■ NOTICE

LEGAL NOTICE

NEW YORK STATE URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION D/B/A EMPIRE STATE DEVELOPMENT NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD TUESDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2021, PURSUANT TO SECTION 16 OF THE NEW YORK STATE URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ACT IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED HIGH LINE MOYINHAN CONNECTOR CIVIC PROJECT

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a public hearing, open to all persons, will be held, on Tuesday, October 19, 2021, from 6:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M., by the New York State Urban Development Corporation d/b/a P.M., by the New York State Urban Development Corporation d/b/a Empire State Development ("ESD"), pursuant to Section 16 of the New York State Urban Development Corporation Act (Chapter 174, Section 1, Laws of 1968, as amended; the "UDC Act"), to consider the General Project Plan (the "General Project Plan"), for the proposed High Line Moynihan Connector Civic Project (the "Project"). Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and restrictions on public gatherings, the public hearing will be conducted as a virtual begring utilizing the Zoom video be conducted as a virtual hearing utilizing the Zoom video communications and teleconferencing platform. Detailed instructions for participation in the virtual hearing can be downloaded, at https:// esd.ny.gov/high-line-connector.

The public hearing is for the purpose of: (1) informing the public about the Project; (2) giving all interested persons an opportunity to provide comments on the General Project Plan, pursuant to Section 16 of the UDC Act; and (3), pursuant to Chapter 14 of the City Charter and Title 34, Chapter 7 of the Rules and Regulations of the City of New York, giving all interested persons an opportunity to provide comments on the granting of a revocable consent by the City of New York (the "City"), to allow the Project to span a City right-of-way.

Project Site

<u>Project Site</u> The proposed Project would be located primarily on property, owned by the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey ("PANYNJ"), on Manhattan Tax Block 728, Lot 1 in Community District 4, and portions of it would extend over West 30th Street and West 31st Street, which are City-Owned streets.

Project Description

The Project is described in detail in the General Project Plan, available to the public as set forth below. The Project involves the design and construction of two new elevated bridges connecting the present terminus of the High Line spur, at West 30th Street and Tenth Avenue, to the privately-owned public open space at Manhattan West, a mixed-use development, located north of West 31st Street between Ninth and Tenth Avenues. The Project would create a seamless, safe pedestrian connection from Moynihan Train Hall to destinations on the Far West Side of Midtown, including Hudson Yards, the Javits Center and the Hudson River waterfront. The Project is anticipated to be completed in 2023.

The Project would be designed and built through a public-private partnership among ESD, PANYNJ, Friends of the High Line ("FHL") and a Brookfield Properties affiliate ("Brookfield"). FHL, which will act as the grantee for the Project, is a nonprofit organization that operates the High Line and works with the surrounding community. The grantee for purposes of the GPP will be responsible for daily maintenance and cleanliness of the Project. FHL is devoted to reimagining the role public spaces play in creating connected, healthy neighborhoods and cities Brookfield, which will act as developer of the Project, is a global commercial real estate firm and developer, and the owner of Manhattan West. Brookfield would manage the design and construction of the Project. The budget for the Project is \$50 million and will be funded by a \$20 million State grant administered by ESD and contributions of \$20 million from Brookfield and \$10 million from FHL.

<u>Public Purpose</u> The purpose of the Project is to provide a new public amenity to improve public access, connectivity and pedestrian safety between Penn Station – North America's largest transportation hub – and destinations on Manhattan's Far West Side. The Project would create two connected public bridges linking the High Line to publicly accessible open space at Manhattan West, providing an ADA-accessible passage from the High Line spur to Ninth Avenue directly across from the Farley Office Building and Moynihan Train Hall. This new elevated pathway would a heavily trafficked and uninviting area, and would improve public access, pedestrian safety and pedestrian mobility for residents, commuters, and visitors between transportation hubs to the east (Moynihan Train Hall and Pennsylvania Station) and Hudson Yards, the High Line, and Manhattan's Far West Side. In doing so, the proposed Project would also complement and support the recent public and private investments that are transforming Manhattan's Far West Side.

Discretionary Actions

A number of ESD discretionary actions are subject to review, pursuant to the UDC Act. These actions include awarding a \$20 million grant to FHL for the design and construction of the Project and affirming the General Project Plan. After a public hearing is held on the draft General Project Plan and a subsequent 30-day public comment period is concluded, it is expected that if appropriate, ESD will modify and/or affirm the General Project Plan and enter into a grant disbursement agreement with FHL to administer the State's \$20 million Project grant. In addition, to effectuate the Project, as described in the General Project Plan, ESD would exercise its statutory authority to override the New York City Charter, the New York City Zoning Resolution, the New York City Administrative Code and the Rules of the City of New York to the extent they are inconsistent with the Project and the procedures for implementation of ESD projects under the UDC Act. This override includes, but is not limited to, the applicability of the Uniform Land Use Review Procedure ("ULURP") insofar as it otherwise would be applicable to the Project, Public Design Commission review, and procedures for the issuance of revocable consents by the New York City Department of Transportation and any other local laws which are inconsistent with the design/construction of the Project and the General Project Plan. Subject to such overrides, the New York State Uniform Fire Prevention and Building Code (the "Building Code") will apply, including with respect to all construction, structures and infrastructure on the Project site.

Availability of the General Project Plan

The General Project Plan, which contains a detailed description of the Project, is on file at the office of ESD, 633 Third Avenue, New York, NY 10017, and is available for inspection by the general public between the hours of 9:30 A.M. to 5:00 P.M., Monday through Friday, public holidays excluded.

The General Project Plan is available at the ESD website, at https://esd. ny.gov/high-line-connector. The public may also inspect and/or obtain copies of the General Project Plan, by emailing HighLineMoynihan@esd. ny.gov, or calling (212) 803-2477. Pursuant to Section 16(2) of the UDC Act, ESD also has filed a copy of the General Project Plan, including the findings required under Section 10 of the UDC Act, in the office of the New York City Clerk and has provided a copy thereof to the Mayor of the City of New York, the Manhattan Borough President, the Chair of the New York City Planning Commission and the Chair of Manhattan Community Board 4.

Comments

Comments on the General Project Plan are requested. Participants who wish to provide verbal comment during the virtual meeting will have an opportunity to sign up to speak during registration and/or once the meeting has started. Comments may also be delivered in writing to ESD, 633 Third Avenue, 37th Floor, New York, NY 10017 (Attention: Stacey Teran), up until 5:00 P.M., on Friday, November 19, 2021, or sent by email to HighLineMoynihan@esd.ny.gov, up until 5:00 P.M., on Friday, November 19, 2021. Written or emailed comments received after 5:00 P.M., on November 19, 2021, will not be considered.

All verbal comments made at the public hearing and all written comments received by ESD up to 5:00 P.M., on November 19, 2021, will be considered by ESD prior to final consideration of the General Project Plan.

Dated: September 17, 2021 New York, NY NEW YORK STATE URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION D/B/A EMPIRE STATE DEVELOPMENT

By: Debbie Royce Corporate Secretary

s28-o19

PROPERTY DISPOSITION

CITYWIDE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

SALE

The City of New York in partnership with PropertyRoom.com posts vehicle and heavy machinery auctions online every week, at: https://www.propertyroom.com/s/nyc+fleet

All auctions are open,, to the public and registration is free.

Vehicles can be viewed in person, at: Kenben Industries Ltd., 1908 Shore Parkway, Brooklyn, NY 11214 Phone: (718) 802-0022

No previous arrangements or phone calls are needed to preview. Hours are Monday and Tuesday from 10:00 A.M. – 2:00 P.M.

f23-a4

HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

All Notices Regarding Housing Preservation and Development Dispositions of City-Owned Property appear in the Public Hearing Section.

j4-d30

PROCUREMENT

"Compete To Win" More Contracts!

Thanks to a new City initiative - "Compete To Win" - the NYC Department of Small Business Services offers a new set of FREE services to help create more opportunities for minority and Women-Owned Businesses to compete, connect and grow their business with the City. With NYC Construction Loan, Technical Assistance, NYC Construction Mentorship, Bond Readiness, and NYC Teaming services, the City will be able to help even more small businesses than before.

• Win More Contracts, at nyc.gov/competetowin

"The City of New York is committed to achieving excellence in the design and construction of its capital program, and building on the tradition of innovation in architecture and engineering that has contributed,, to the City's prestige as a global destination. The contracting opportunities for construction/construction services and construction-related services that appear in the individual agency listings below reflect that commitment to excellence."

HHS ACCELERATOR PREQUALIFICATION

To respond to human services Requests for Proposals (RFPs), in accordance with Section 3-16 of the Procurement Policy Board Rules of the City of New York ("PPB Rules"), vendors must first complete and submit an electronic HHS Accelerator Prequalification Application using the City's PASSPort system. The PASSPort system is a web-based system maintained by the City of New York for use by its Mayoral Agencies to manage procurement. Important business information collected in the Prequalification Application is required every three years. Documents related to annual corporate filings must be submitted on an annual basis to remain eligible to compete. Prequalification applications will be reviewed to validate compliance with corporate filings and organizational capacity. Approved organizations will be eligible to compete and would submit electronic proposals through the PASSPort system. The PASSPort Public Portal, which lists all RFPs, including HHS RFPs that require HHS Accelerator Prequalification, may be viewed, at <u>https://passport. cityofnewyork.us/page.aspx/en/rfp/request_browse_public</u>. All current and prospective vendors should frequently review information listed on roadmap to take full advantage of upcoming opportunities for funding. For additional information about HHS Accelerator Prequalification and PASSPort, including background materials, user guides and video tutorials, please visit <u>https://www1.nyc.gov/site/mocs/systems/</u> <u>about-go-to-passport.page</u>.

CITYWIDE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

AWARD

Goods

COMMERCIAL PRINTING AND DIRECT MAIL - Competitive Sealed Bids - PIN#8572000098 - AMT: \$30,886,090.00 - TO: Vanguard Direct Inc., C/O Brooklyn Army Terminal, 140 58th Street, Building B, Unit 1B, Brooklyn, NY 11210.

• s29

FINANCE

AWARD

Services (other than human services)

2ND NEGOTIATED ACQUISITION EXTENSION FOR CENTRAL TREASURY CASH MANAGEMENT SERVICES - Negotiated Acquisition - Available only from a single source -

PIN#83621N0008001 - AMT: \$827,474.00 - TO: Citibank N.A., 388 Greenwich Street, 24th Floor, New York, NY 10013.

The New York City Department of Finance and Citibank, N.A., located at 388 Greenwich Street, New York, NY 10013, entered in an agreement, to provide distribution and maintenance of Central Treasury Banking services for the following Agencies: Department of Housing Preservation and Development, NYC Office of the Comptroller and Department of Education, which is used by the Treasury Division for the processing of cash and securities of contractor retainages. The contract amount is not to exceed \$827,474.00. The contract term shall be for one year from January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021. E-PIN #:83621N0008001.

The proposed contractor has been selected by Negotiated Acquisition Extension, pursuant to Section 3-04 (b)(2)(ii) of the Procurement Policy Board Rules.

• s29

HEALTH AND MENTAL HYGIENE

AWARD

Services (other than human services)

CERTIFIED LACTATION COUNSELOR (CLC) TRAINING - Other - PIN#81622U0001001 - AMT: \$50,000.00 - TO: Healthy Children Project, Inc., 327 Quaker Meeting House Road, East Sandwich, MA 02537.

• s29

HOMELESS SERVICES

■ INTENT TO AWARD

Human Services / Client Services

07122N0004-BRIARWOOD NEGOTIATED ACQUISITION EXTENSION - Negotiated Acquisition - Other - PIN# 07122N0004 - Due 10-1-21 at 12:00 A.M. The New York City Department of Homeless Services (DHS), is requesting an approval for a 6 month of Negotiated Acquisition Extension in the amount of \$1,866,744.00, for repairs at Briarwood Family Residence. The site services Families with Children.

This NAE, is being requested to allow the continuity of critical services until a new RFP is processed.

s24-30

DHS SECURITY

■ INTENT TO AWARD

Services (other than human services)

CONTINUED SERVICES AND GOODS REQUIRED FOR DHS SECURITY OPERATIONS-AXON - Request for Information -PIN#07122Y0022 - Due 10-1-21 at 2:00 P.M.

The Department of Homeless Services (DHS) Security and Emergency Operations, intends to enter into a 3 years Sole Source contract with Axon Enterprise, Inc., for purchase of Axon Body 2 Video Cameras, storage of data and maintenance of equipment, starting from 11/1/2021 to 10/31/2024, including one 2-year renewal option. These equipments and services are only manufactured and available for purchase from Axon. The requested Sole Source solicitation would ensure a continuance of goods and services required to satisfy the agency's security needs.

Any firm or organization which believes they can also provide this service, is invited to respond to the RFI "07122Y0022-Continued services and goods required for DHS Security Operations-Axon" on PASSPort. If you have any questions, please email "frazierjac@dss.nyc. gov", with the subject line "07122Y0022-Continued services and goods required for DHS Security Operations-Axon". Please indicate your interest, by responding to the RFI EPIN: 07122Y0022 in PASSPort, no later than October 1, 2021, 2:00 P.M.

s23-30

HOUSING AUTHORITY

PROCUREMENT

■ SOLICITATION

Goods and Services

SMD_SERVICES_MAINTENANCE PAINTING OF APARTMENTS-UNITY PLAZA (SITES 4-27), UNITY PLAZA (SITES 17, 24, 25A), FIORENTINO PLAZA, LONG ISLAND BAPTIST HOUSES, BROOKLYN - Competitive Sealed Bids -PIN#339880 - Due 10-21-21 at 10:00 A.M.

The Work shall consist of furnishing labor, material, equipment, insurance, incidental items and permits, all in accordance with the Contract Documents, for the painting of residential apartments in any of the Buildings constituting the Development(s) included in this Contract. The Contractor must paint complete apartments (including all bedrooms, kitchen, living room, foyer, dinette, halls, bathrooms) in the manner described below, using a Standard One (1) Coat Paint System or a Standard Two (2) Coat Paint System or Three (3) Coat Paint System Modernization as stated in the Specifications and as directed by the Authority in Work Authorizations.

Interested vendors are invited to obtain a copy of the opportunity, at NYCHA's website by going to http://www.nyc.gov/nychabusiness. On the left side, click on "iSupplier Vendor Registration/Login" link. (1) If you have an iSupplier account, then click on the "Login for registered vendors" link and sign into your iSupplier account. (2) If you do not have an iSupplier account you can request an account by clicking on "New suppliers register in iSupplier" to apply for log-in credentials. Once you have accessed your iSupplier account, log into your account, then choose under the Oracle Financials home page, the menu option "Sourcing Supplier", then choose "Sourcing", then choose Sourcing Homepage"; and conduct a search in the "Search Open Negotiations" box for RFQ Number(s) 339880.

Note: In response, to the COVID-19 outbreak, we are accepting only electronic bids submitted online via iSupplier. Paper bids will not be accepted or considered. Please contact NYCHA Procurement, at procurement@nycha.nyc.gov, for assistance.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids, at date and time specified above.

Housing Authority, 90 Church Street, 6th Floor, New York, NY 10007. JoAnn Park (212) 306-4511; joann.park@nycha.nyc.gov

• s29

HUMAN RESOURCES ADMINISTRATION

■ INTENT TO AWARD

Goods

SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT WITH AXON BWC - Request for Information - PIN#06922Y0071 - Due 10-15-21 at 3:00 P.M.

The Human Resources Administration (HRA) General Support Services, intends into Sole Source negotiation with Axon Enterprise, Inc., for the purchase of Body Worn Cameras (BWC) for HRA Special Officers. Their current contract includes the operation, storage of data and maintenance of equipment, which expires on October 31, 2021. The requested Sole Source solicitation will ensure a continuance of operations by establishing a new contract through October 31, 2026. This Sole Source purchase with Axon Enterprises, Inc., is being requested because they are the only company currently able to address the HRA Office of Police Operations immediate hardware and software needs. Axon Enterprises, Inc., is a responsible company maintaining a high standard of integrity relating to all web based and internet security requirements. Their services which includes a cloud-based storage site would not be functional or accessible should Axon not continue to be the provider. The contract amount is \$567,324.01. The contract term is 11/1/2021 - 10/31/2026. Any firm or organization which believes they can also provide this service is invited to respond to the RFI "06922Y0071 - "Sole Source procurement with Axon BWC for HRA Special Officers" on PASSPort. If you have any questions, please email "frazierjac@dss.nyc.gov", with the subject line "06922Y0071 - "Sole Source procurement with Axon BWC for HRA Special Officers". Please indicate your interest by responding to the RFI EPIN: 06922Y0071 in PASSPort, no later than October 1, 2021, 3:00 P.M.

s23-30

AWARD

Human Services / Client Services

NEW YORK ASIAN WOMEN'S CENTER RENEWAL: PEACE HOUSE - Renewal - PIN#06917N8263KXLR001 - AMT: \$3,280,681.34 - TO: New York Asian Womens Center Inc., 32 Broadway, 10th Floor, New York, NY 10004.

Renewal Peace House, a 20 bed Emergency Shelter for Survivors of Domestic Violence.

• s29

PROVISION OF NYNYIII SCATTER SITE HOUSING AND SUPPORTIVE SERVICES FOR PERSONS LIVING WITH AIDS (PLWAS)- 30 UNITS - Negotiated Acquisition - Judgment required in evaluating proposals - PIN#06909P0005CNVN004 - AMT: \$861,175.00 - TO: Aids Center of Queens County Inc. Advocacy Center of Queens, 161-21 Jamaica Avenue, Jamaica, NY 11432.

Term: 7/1/2021 - 6/30/2022

• s29

SUPPORTIVE HOUSING FOR SINGLE ROOM OCCUPANCY (SRO) FOR HOMELESS SINGLE ADULTS AT 159 EAST 102ND STREET NY NY 10029 - Required/Authorized Source -PIN#06921R0294001 - AMT: \$772,806.00 - TO: Lenox Hill

Neighborhood House, Inc., 331 East 70th Street, New York, NY 10021. Contract Term from 7/1/2021 to 6/30/2027.

🖝 s29

CONTRACTS

■ INTENT TO AWARD

Human Services / Client Services

PROVISION OF THE WELLNESS, COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT, REHABILITATION, AND EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM (WECARE) - Renewal - Due 9-30-21 at 5:00 P.M. 06919P8206KXLR001 - Arbor E&T, LLC dba Equus Workforce Solutions 06919P8231KXLR001 - Maximus Human Services, Inc.

06919P8232KXLR001 - University Behavioral Associates, Inc. 06919P8235KXLR001 - Arbor E&T, LLC dba Equus Workforce Solutions

HRA/DSS, intends to renew four (4) contracts with the contractors listed above, for the Provision of the Wellness, Comprehensive Assessment, Rehabilitation, and Employment Program (WeCARE). Anyone having comments on the performance of the contractor or the proposed renewal of the contract, may contact Sharlotte Smith, at (929) 221-4533. This Notice is for informational purposes only.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids, at date and time specified above.

Human Resources Administration, 150 Greenwich Street, 30th Floor, New York, NY 10007. Sharlotte Smith (929) 221-4533; smithsharlo@dss.nyc.gov

• s29

INVESTIGATION

OPERATIONS

■ INTENT TO AWARD

Goods

ONBASE MAINTENANCE & SUPPORT FOR COMPLAINT UNIT SYSTEM - Request for Information - PIN#03222Y0003 -Due 10-13-21 at 12:00 P.M.

NYC Department of Investigation, intends to enter into a sole source contract, with Paperless for the provision of OnBase license Maintenance & Support for the Complaint Unit Processing System. OnBase license is an enterprise content management software that integrates document management, business process management and records management in a single application, utilized for the agency's Complaint Unit Processing System. Any vendor who is capable of providing this goods and services to DOI may express their interests in PASSPORT RFI # 03222Y0003. Agency contact information, Ereny Hanna, DACCO, at ehanna@doi.nyc.gov

If you need technical assistance, please contact Mayor's Office of Contract Service (MOCS), at help@mocs.nyc.gov

LAW DEPARTMENT

■ INTENT TO AWARD

Services (other than human services)

AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING NAE #1 PIN 02522X000212 - Negotiated Acquisition - Other - PIN#02522N0005 - Due 10-19-21 at 5:00 P.M.

The New York City Law Department (the "Department"), is seeking a negotiated acquisition extension contract with our current contractor, New York Legal Publishing, Inc., to provide legal publishing and information services. This project has two components: 1) the publication and marketing of a multi-volume compilation of the Rules of the City of New York ("RCNY"), including, for the term of the contract, the monthly supplementation of the compilation, and 2) the creation and maintenance of an electronic database, accessible, at no cost, to the public via the Internet, of the text of the New York City Charter (the "Charter"), the New York City Administrative Code (the "Code") and the RCNY. For Legal Counsel division. PIN 02522X00212.

The Department needs to enter into an extension contract with the current contractor because of the need to maintain continuity of services while the Department completes the procurement of a new contract for these services. The contract resulting from this negotiated acquisition extension procurement will be terminated if the new contract awards are registered prior, to the end date of the negotiated acquisition contract.

PARKS AND RECREATION

REVENUE AND CONCESSIONS

■ SOLICITATION

Construction / Construction Services

M014-119M-JACKIE ROBINSON RECREATION CENTER HVAC SYSTEM RECONSTRUCTION - Competitive Sealed Bids -PIN# 84621B0062 - Due 10-27-21 at 3:30 P.M.

M014-119M- Jackie Robinson Recreation Center Hvac System Reconstruction, located at 85 Bradhurst Avenue, Borough of Manhattan.

*Please note that date of Bid Submission is different than date of Bid Opening. Please refer to website for updated procedures due to pandemic.

This procurement is subject to:

- Participation goals for MBEs and/or WBEs as required by Local Law 1 of 2013
- Project Labor Agreement

Bidders are hereby advised that this contract is subject to the Project Labor Agreement (PLA) Covering Specified Renovation and Rehabilitation of City Owned Buildings and Structures entered into between the City and the Building and Construction Trades Council of Greater New York ("BCTC") affiliated local unions. Please refer to the bid documents for further information.

Pre-Bid Conference Date: (via Zoom Conference) 10/13/21 Time: 11:30 A.M. Bid Submission Due Date: 10/27/21 Time: 3:30 P.M. by Mail or Drop Box, at Olmsted Center Annex Date of Bid Opening (via Zoom Conference): 10/29/21 Time: 10:30 A.M.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9573076290pwd=cnVXVzN2Q014SjBLaktvVzIzWnlvUT09

Meeting ID: 957 307 6290 Passcode: 118035 Conf. Number: +1 (929) 205-6099, 9573076290#, *118035#

The Cost Estimate Range is \$3,000,000.00 to \$5,000,000.00

Bid documents are available online for free through NYC PASSPort System, https://www1.nyc.gov/site/mocs/systems/about-go-to-passport. page To download the bid solicitation documents (including drawings if any), you must have an NYC ID Account and Login.

Pre-Bid Conference location -Zoom Link - Meeting ID: 957 307 6290 Passcode: 118035 Conf. Number: +1 (929) 205-6099, 9573076290#, *118035#

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9573076290?pwd=cnVXVzN2Q014 SjBLaktvVzIzWnlvUT09

Mandatory: no Date/Time - 2021-10-13 11:30:00

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Parks and Recreation, Olmsted Center Annex, Flushing Meadows-Corona Park, Flushing, NY 11368. Ani Jamgotchian, ani.jamgotchian@parks.nyc.gov

• s29

Q004-213M-RALPH DEMARCO PARK SHORELINE

ŘECONSTRUCTION (HURRICANE SANDY) - Competitive Sealed Bids - PIN#84621B0048 - Due 10-22-21 at 3:30 A.M.

Q004-213M-Ralph Demarco park reconstruction shoreline (Hurricane Sandy), located at East River and Shore Boulevard, Ditmars Boulevard, 20th Avenue, Borough of Queens

Please note that date of Bid Submission is different than date of Bid Opening. Please refer to website for updated procedures due to pandemic.

This procurement is subject to:

- \bullet Participation goals for MBEs and/or WBEs, as required by Local Law 1 of 2013
- Apprenticeship Requirements
- FEMA (Grant Funded)

Bid Submission Due Date: 10/22/21 Time: 3:30 P.M. by Mail or Drop Box, at Olmsted Center Annex

Date of Bid Opening (via Zoom Conference): 10/25/21 Time: 10:30 A.M. https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9573076290pwd=cnVXVzN2Q014SjBLaktvV zIzWnlvUT09 Meeting ID: 957 307 6290 Passcode: 118035

Conf. Number: +1 (929) 205-6099, 9573076290#, *118035#

The Cost Estimate Range is \$3,000,000.00 to \$5,000,000.00

Bid documents are available online for free through NYC PASSPort System, https://www1.nyc.gov/site/mocs/systems/about-go-to-passport. page. To download the bid solicitation documents (including drawings if any), you must have an NYC ID Account and Login.

Bid opening Location - Zoom Link - Meeting ID: 957 307 6290 Passcode: 118035 Conf. Number: +1 (929) 205-6099, 9573076290#, *118035#

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9573076290?pwd=cnVXVzN2Q014 SjBLaktvVzIzWnlvUT09

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids, at date and time specified above.

Parks and Recreation, Olmsted Center Annex, Flushing Meadows-Corona Park, Flushing, NY 11368. Kylie Murphy (718) 760-6686; kylie.murphy@parks.nyc.gov

R043-119M-LYONS RECREATION CENTER RECONSTRUCTION, STATEN ISLAND. - Competitive Sealed Bids - PIN# 84621B0089 -Due 10-27-21 at 3:30 P.M.

The partial reconstruction of Lyons Pool Recreation Center, located at the intersection of Victory Boulevard and Murray Hulbert Avenue, Borough of Staten Island, known as Contract Number R043-119M.

Please note that date of Bid Submission is different than date of Bid Opening. Please refer to website for updated procedures due to pandemic.

This procurement is subject to:

Participation goals for MBEs and/or WBEs as required by Local Law 1 of 2013

Wicks Law Subcontractor ID Requirements

Bid Submission Due Date: 10/27/2021. Time: 3:30 P.M., by Mail or Drop Box at Olmsted Center Annex

Date of Bid Opening (via Zoom Conference): 10/29/2021 Time: 10:30 A.M. https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9573076290 pwd=cnVXVzN2Q014SjBLaktvVz IzWnlvUT09

Meeting ID: 957 307 6290 Passcode: 118035

Conf. Number: +1 (929) 205-6099, 9573076290#, *118035#

The Cost Estimate Range is: \$1,000,000 - \$3,000,000

Bid documents are available online for free through NYC PASSPort System, https://www1.nyc.gov/site/mocs/systems/about-go-to-passport. page To download the bid solicitation documents (including drawings if any), you must have an NYC ID Account and Login.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Parks and Recreation, Olmsted Center Annex, Flushing Meadows-Corona Park, Flushing, NY 11368. Kylie Murphy (718) 760-6686; kylie.murphy@parks.nyc.gov

 $Services \ (other \ than \ human \ services)$

FOR THE DEVELOPMENT, OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF BICYCLE RENTALS AND OTHER RECREATIONAL EQUIPMENT RENTALS ON STATEN ISLAND - Competitive Sealed Proposals - Judgment required in evaluating proposals -PIN#R46-BR-2021 - Due 10-21-21 at 3:00 P.M.

In accordance with Section 1-13 of the Concession Rules of the City of New York, the New York City Department of Parks and Recreation ("Parks"), is issuing, as of the date of this notice, a non-significant Request for Proposals ("RFP") proposals, for the development, operation and maintenance of bicycle rentals and other recreational equipment rentals, at various locations, on Staten Island, with the option for future Staten Island locations.

There will be a recommended remote proposer meeting, on Friday, October 1, 2021, at 1:00 P.M. If you are considering responding to this RFP, please make every effort to attend this recommended remote proposer meeting.

The Microsoft Teams link for the remote proposer meeting is as follows:

 $https://teams.microsoft.com//meetup-join/19\%3ameeting_Y2ZhMjFhYTMtMGE4Zi00ODY0LTg4ZWYtZTBlN2ExMDkzZDk3\%40thread.v2/0?conteductions/amegianews$

[•] s29

 $xt = \%7b\%22Tid\%22\%3a\%2232f56fc7{-}5f81{-}4e22{-}a95b{-}15da66513bef\%22\%$ 2c%22Oid%22%3a%22d47d17ec-c51f-4e53-ad23-fce00dfe3654%22%7d

You may also join the remote proposer meeting by phone using the following information:

Dial: +1 646-893-7101 Phone Conference ID: 579 956 151#

Subject to availability and by appointment only, we may set up a meeting at the proposed pre-approved concession site, at the FDR Boardwalk and Sand Lane.

All proposals submitted in response to this RFP, must be submitted no later than Thursday, October 21, 2021, at 3:00 P.M. Hard copies of the RFP can be obtained at no cost, commencing Monday, September 20, 2021 through Thursday, October 21, 2021, by contacting Eric Weiss, Senior Project Manager, at (212) 360-3483, or at, Eric.Weiss@parks.nyc.gov.

The RFP is also available for download, on Monday, September 20, 2021 through Thursday, October 21, 2021, on Parks' website. To download the RFP, visit http://www.nyc.gov/parks/

businessopportunities, and click on the "Concessions Opportunities at Parks" link. Once you have logged in, click on the "download" link that appears adjacent to the RFP's description.

For more information, or if you cannot attend the remote proposer meeting, prospective proposers may contact Eric Weiss, Senior Project Manager, at (212) 360-3483, or at, Eric.Weiss@parks.nyc.gov.

TELECOMMUNICATION DEVICE FOR THE DEAF (TDD) (212) 504-4115.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Parks and Recreation, The Arsenal, Central Park, 830 Fifth Avenue, Room 407, New York, NY 10065. Eric Weiss (212) 360-3483; eric.weiss@parks.nyc.gov

s20-o1

POLICE DEPARTMENT

MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET

■ SOLICITATION

Services (other than human services)

EXECUTIVE MASTERS DEGREE PROGRAM - Competitive Sealed Proposals - Other - PIN#05621P0006 - Due 11-23-21 at 2:00 $\mathbf{P}\mathbf{M}$

The New York City Police Department, is seeking an appropriately qualified vendor, to provide a successful, comprehensive, Executive Master's Degree Program for active NYPD Lieutenants and above ranks with an advanced education and understanding of the Criminal Justice system through a Masters in Criminal Justice. This RFP ("RFx"), is being released through PASSPort, New York City's online procurement portal. Responses to this RFx should be submitted via PASSPort. To access the solicitation, please visit the PASSPort Public Portal, at https://www1.nyc.gov/site/mocs/systems/about-go-to-passport. page and click on the "Search Funding Opportunities in PASSPort' button. To locate the RFx on the Public Portal, insert the EPIN: 05621P0006 into the Keywords search field. If you need assistance submitting a response, please contact help@mocs.nyc.gov.

Pre-Bid Conference location -The Pre-Proposal conference ("PPC") for this RFP will be hosted as a virtual event on the Microsoft TEAMS platform. A prospective proposing firm (the "Proposer") wishing to participate in the PPC must RSVP under the subject line "NYPD EXECUTIVE MASTERS DEGREE" by 2:00 P.M. ET October 4, 2021, NYPD Email: contracts@nypd.org NY 10038. Mandatory: no Date/Time - 2021-10-07 10:00:00. Different proposals must be technically evaluated and scored to obtain the best overall value, to the department rather than going with the lowest bid.

s29

SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION AUTHORITY

CONTRACT SERVICES

■ SOLICITATION

Goods and Services

SOLICITATION NO. SCA-22-00020R-ARCHITECTURE AND ENGINEERING SERVICES IN CONNECTION WITH CAPACITY **PROJECTS** - Request for Proposals - PIN#Solicitation No. SCA-22-00020R - Due 9-30-21 at 4:00 P.M.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids, at date and time specified above.

School Construction Authority, Roxane Pacheco, (718) 472-8361; rfp@nycsca.org

• s29

TRANSPORTATION

FRANCHISES, CONCESSIONS & CONSENTS

■ SOLICITATION

Services (other than human services)

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS - FOOD AND BEVERAGE CONCESSION AT PIER 11 IN MANHATTAN - Request for Proposals - PIN#84122MNAD511 - Due 11-5-21 at 2:00 P.M.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids, at date and time specified above. Transportation, 55 Water Street, 9th Floor, New York, NY 10041.

Brandon Budelman (212) 839-9625; bbudelman@dot.nyc.gov

SPECIAL MATERIALS

CITY PLANNING

■ NOTICE

NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT

New York Blood Center - Center East

Project Identification

Lead Agency

City Planning Commission

120 Broadway, 31st Floor New York, NY 10271

CEQR No. 21DCP080M ULURP Nos. C210351 ZMM, N 210352 ZRM, C 210353 ZSM SEQRA Classification: Type I

Contact Person

Stephanie Shellooe, Deputy Director (212) 720-3328 Environmental Assessment and Review Division New York City Department of City Planning

Pursuant to City Environmental Quality Review (CEQR), Mayoral Executive Order No. 91 of 1977, CEQR Rules of Procedure of 1991 and the regulations of Article 8 of the State Environmental Conservation Law, State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA) as found in 6 NYCRR Part 617, a Final Environmental Impact Statement (FEIS) has here prepared for the order index being of the FEIS one been prepared for the action described below. Copies of the FEIS are available for public inspection, at the office of the undersigned as well as online, at https://www1.nyc.gov/site/planning/applicants/eisdocuments.page. The proposal involves actions by the City planning Commission City and Council of the City of New York, pursuant to Uniform Land Use Review Procedure (ULURP). A public hearing on the DEIS was held on July 29, 2021, at the City Planning Commission Hearing Room, Lower Level, 120 Broadway, New York, NY 10271, Planning Commission's citywide public hearing, pursuant to ULURP. Written comments on the DEIS were requested and received by the Lead Agency through August 9, 2021. The FEIS addresses all substantive comments made on the DEIS during the public hearing and subsequent comment period.

The Applicant, the New York Blood Center, is requesting a rezoning and other discretionary actions (the Proposed Actions) from the City

Planning Commission (CPC) to facilitate the construction of the Proposed Project, an approximately 596,200 gross-square-foot (gsf) state-of-the-art laboratory building with related offices on the site of the Applicant's existing building, at 310 East 67th Street, Block 1441 Lot 40 (the "Development Site"). The Development Site is located on the Upper East Side in Manhattan Community District 8. Block 1441 is, bounded by East 66th and East 67th Streets and First and Second Avenues. The Development Site is part of a larger Rezoning Area, which also includes Block 1441, Lots 1001–1202, and Block 1421, p/o Lot 21.

To facilitate the Proposed Project the Applicant is requesting several actions from the New York CPC: a zoning map amendment in order to rezone the Development Site from R8B to C2-7; designation of the Development Site for Mandatory Inclusionary Housing (MIH); and to rezone the remainder of the Rezoning Area (Block 1441, Lots 1001–1202 and the eastern 100 feet of Block 1421, p/o Lot 21) from C1-9 to C2-8. The Applicant is also requesting a zoning text amendment to Section 74-48 of the Zoning Resolution; and a special permit pursuant, to the amended Section 74-48 to modify various sections of the Zoning Resolution, as detailed below. In addition, the Applicant may seek a revocable consent from the New York City Department of Transportation (DOT) to allow a Marquee projection over the building's entrance in accordance with the NYC Building Code.

The Development Site is occupied by a three-story former trade school , built in 1930. The existing NYBC structure has been used by the Applicant for their existing operations including laboratories, offices, and van parking since 1964. Among the existing biomedical laboratories, at NYBC, there is a Biosafety Level-3 (BSL-3) laboratory. Although the existing NYBC structure has been modernized over the years, it is antiquated and not suitable for modern scientific research. The primary pedestrian entrance is on East 67th Street, while the service entrance, wheelchair entrance, two curb cuts, loading docks, and access to 30 accessory parking spaces are all on East 66th Street. An existing auditorium space inside the building is used for meetings including some meetings of Community Board 8.

In addition, to the existing NYBC facility, the Rezoning Area contains two residential buildings, not owned or controlled by the Applicant. Immediately adjacent, to the Development Site on Lots 1001–1202 is 310 East 66th Street, a 16-story, approximately 208,000-gsf white brick-clad building on Second Avenue between East 66th and East 67th Streets. It has ground floor retail uses in its Second Avenue frontage. Across Second Avenue is a 45-story approximately 776,206 gsf tower sheathed in dark glass and set back from the surrounding streets (Block 1421, p/o Lot 21). It has a sunken ground level with retail space. It is part of a larger development which includes townhouses on East 67th Street that are outside the rezoning area. Given the existing size and use of these two buildings, neither site is expected to be redeveloped as a result of the rezoning.

As part of the Proposed Project, the existing NYBC building on the Development Site would be demolished and replaced with a new building of approximately 596,200 gsf, split between 206,400 gsf of Use Group (UG)-4 community facility uses for the Applicant and 389,800 gsf of commercial laboratories and related uses for the Applicant's partners. The building would have 16 floors and rise to a height of approximately 334 feet, to the top of the screen wall. The design of the Proposed Project comprises a four-story base covering the entire lot and above that would be a laboratory tower providing floor plates of a minimum of 29,000 gsf with 16-foot floor-to-floor heights required to accommodate the robust mechanical systems needed in laboratory buildings. These building dimensions. Three curb cuts are proposed on East 66th Street to accommodate service access, including loading, waste removal, and the Applicant's fleet parking. Approximately 15,000 square feet of exterior open space would be created in a roof garden where the upper portion of the building is setback from the base. The open space would wrap around the entire building, but it would be widest on the west side. It would feature plantings as well as paved areas. The roof garden would be an important tenant amenity.

In order to accomplish the Proposed Project, the Applicant is requesting the following zoning actions:

- 1. A zoning map amendment to rezone the Development Site and the block-front parcels on Second Avenue (affecting Lots 1001-1004 of Block 1441 and part of Lot 21 of Block 1421, which, together with the Development Site, constitute the "Project Area"), including (a) changing the current R8B district on the Development Site to a C2-7 district, and (b) changing the current C1-9 district on the Second Avenue to a C2-8 district on both sides of Second Avenue, between East 66th Street and East 67th Street, to a depth of 100 feet;
- 2. Zoning text amendments (a) to Section 74-48 of the Zoning Resolution to allow, by special permit, scientific research and development facilities in C2-7 districts, and in conjunction therewith, to allow modifications of the floor area, height and setback, yard, and sign regulations, and (b) to Appendix F of the Zoning Resolution, to designate the Development Site as a Mandatory Inclusionary Housing (MIH) area; and

- 3. A zoning special permit, pursuant to Section 74-48, as amended, to permit:
 - A scientific research and development facility in a C2-7 district within Community District 8 in the Borough of Manhattan;
 - The floor area of the scientific research and development facility to exceed the 2 FAR permitted in C2-7 districts for commercial uses, pursuant to Zoning Resolution Section 33-122, not to exceed the 10 FAR permitted for community facility uses;
 - Modifications of the height and setback regulations of Section 33-432 and the rear yard equivalent regulations of Section 33-283, which will allow the Proposed Development to be built with the large floorplates required for modern, efficient laboratory uses; and
 - Modifications of the sign regulations to allow signs on the zoning lot to exceed the surface area limitation of Section 32-641, 32-642, and 32-643 and the height limitations of Section 32-655, and modification of the regulations of Section 32-67, which require signs in commercial zoning districts facing a residential district or a public park to follow the C1 district sign regulations.

In addition, the applicant may seek a revocable consent from the New York City Department of Transportation (DOT) to allow a Marquee projection over the building's entrance in accordance with the NYC Building Code.

There would be a Restrictive Declaration in connection with the Proposed Actions. The Restrictive Declaration is expected to:

- Provide for the implementation of "Project Components Related, to the Environment" (PCREs) (i.e., certain project components which were material, to the environmental analysis); and
- Provide for measures necessary to mitigate any significant adverse impacts.

The Proposed Actions are necessary to allow the Proposed Project to be suitable for modern, state-of-the-art laboratories that would further the City's goal of expanding the life sciences industry and would support the academic medical institutions in the area, as well as allow a redevelopment by the Applicant that would greatly improve its facilities. NYBC is a not-for-profit institution with a dual mission of supplying transfusion products, to the New York metro region and conducting scientific research. However, the Applicant is constrained by the existing NYBC building that was constructed as a trade school approximately 90 years ago. While improvements have been made over the years, the existing building does not satisfy the Applicant's current needs and leaves significant untapped potential for the NYC life sciences ecosystem, which is a critical economic engine for the city. The existing building is an antiquated structure that does not have the dimensions or mechanical systems necessary for modern life sciences laboratories, which are essential to enable the Applicant to advance its research mission. Further, the existing approximately 131,000 sf (zfa) building is not large enough to allow the Applicant to share its space with its institutional and commercial collaborators, who could foster the translation of basic science research into commercial applications.

The Proposed Project would be constructed in a single phase, anticipated to begin in 2022 and to be complete in 2026. Accordingly, the EIS considers a 2026 Build Year for analysis purposes.

In order to assess the possible effects of the Proposed Actions, a RWCDS was developed to compare the Future without the Proposed Actions (the No Action condition) and the Future with the Proposed Actions (the With Action condition). The incremental difference between the future No Action condition and future With Action condition serves as the basis for identifying potential environmental impacts, as described below.

Absent the Proposed Actions, the Applicant would construct a new building as-of-right containing laboratory space (including a BSL-3 laboratory space and certified clean room facility space for NYBC) as well as other UG-4 community facility uses. The new building would be an approximately 229,092-gsf split between 40,161 gsf of medical offices and 188,931 gsf of space for the Applicant's operations. The cellar level of the structure would occupy the entire Development Site and six-story-wings would rise on both street frontages to a maximum base height of approximately 60 feet, a maximum roof height of approximately 75 feet. Six interior parking spaces would be provided for the Applicant's vehicle fleet. No development is anticipated in the remainder of the Rezoning Area.

As described above, the Proposed Project would be a new building making use of the entire 45,000 square foot Development Site. It would provide approximately 596,200 gsf, split between 206,400 gsf of UG-4 community facility uses for the Applicant and 389,800 gsf of

commercial laboratories and related uses for the Applicant's partners. The building would have 16 floors and rise to a height of approximately 334 feet, to the top of the screen wall. The main pedestrian entrance would be on East 67th Street, and service access would be on East 66th Street where three curb cuts are proposed to accommodate service access, including loading, waste removal, and six spaces for NYBC fleet parking.

The FEIS assesses whether development resulting from the Proposed Actions could result in significant adverse environmental impacts. The FEIS identifies significant adverse impacts related to shadows and construction (noise).

Shadows: The Proposed Project would result in three to four hours of new incremental shadows cast on St. Catherine's Park during the afternoons in the spring, summer, and fall, covering large areas of the park, at times, thereby causing a significant adverse shadow impact, to the use of the park in the late afternoons in those seasons. An alternative to reduce the shadow impact has been considered in Chapter 17, "Alternatives," of the EIS. The Applicant has stated that, at this time, there is no massing alternative to remove the impact, meet the Applicant's programmatic needs, and be financially feasible. The significant adverse shadow impact would be partially mitigated by means of a financial contribution by the Applicant to NYC Parks towards improvements to St. Catherine's Park that would enhance user experience and enjoyment of the Park. Improvements would include a limited reconstruction of the playground in the eastern section of the Park, reconstruction of the comfort station, and renovation of the multi-purpose play area. The Applicant will enter into a Restrictive Declaration that will require this contribution. NYC Parks will determine how to utilize such funds. Because the significant adverse shadow impact would not be fully mitigated, the Proposed Project would result in an unavoidable significant adverse shadow impact on St. Catherine's Park.

Construction (Noise): The Proposed Project would also result in significant adverse impacts related to construction noise. Mitigation measures have been identified to address the significant adverse impacts where feasible and practicable. As discussed below, partial mitigation is proposed for some of the significant adverse impacts of the Proposed Project. Significant adverse impacts that cannot be fully mitigated through reasonably practicable measures are also identified and discussed below in "Unavoidable Adverse Impacts."

Significant adverse noise impacts are predicted to occur, at multiple sensitive locations (i.e., MSKCC facilities on East 66th Street and Second Avenue, the JREC, the 67th Street Library, residences immediately adjacent, to the proposed development site at 301 and 321 East 66th Street, residences at 324 through 340 East 66th Street, residences, at 332, 338, and 342 East 67th Street, and residences, at 315 East 65th Street) as a result of construction of the Proposed Project.

Construction of the Proposed Project would be required to follow the New York City Noise Control Code for construction noise control measures. Additionally, as mitigation for the predicted impacts, the Applicant would incorporate measures to control construction noise that go beyond those required by Code. Specific noise control measures would be incorporated in noise mitigation plan(s) required under the New York City Noise Code, including a variety of source and path controls.

In terms of source controls (i.e., reducing noise levels, at the source or during the most sensitive time periods) and path controls (e.g., placement of equipment, implementation of barriers or enclosures between equipment and sensitive receptors), the following measures would be implemented in accordance with the New York City Noise Code: a) Equipment that meets the sound level standards specified in Subchapter 5 of the New York City Noise Control Code would be utilized from the start of construction. Table 16-9 in Chapter 16, "Construction," shows the noise levels for typical construction equipment and the mandated noise levels for the equipment that would be used for construction of the Proposed Project; b) As early in the construction period as logistics would allow, diesel- or gas-powered equipment would be replaced with electrical-powered equipment such as welders, water pumps, bench saws, and table saws (i.e., early electrification), to the extent feasible and practicable. Where electrical equipment cannot be used, diesel or gas-powered generators and pumps would be located within buildings, to the extent feasible and practicable; c) Where feasible and practicable, the construction site would be configured to minimize back-up alarm noise (i.e., the site will be configured, to the extent feasible and practicable to allow trucks to pull through without needing to turn around). In addition, no trucks would be allowed to idle more than three minutes, at the construction site based upon Title 24, Chapter 1, Subchapter 7, Section 24-163 of the New York City Administrative Code; d) Contractors and subcontractors would be required to properly maintain their equipment and mufflers; e) Where logistics allow, noisy equipment, such as cranes, concrete pumps, concrete trucks, and delivery trucks, would be located away from and shielded from sensitive receptor locations; f) Noise barriers constructed from plywood or other materials consistent with the noise barrier requirements set forth in DEP's "Rules for Citywide

Construction Noise Mitigation," would be erected, to provide shielding; g) Concrete trucks would be required to be located inside site-perimeter noise barriers while pouring or being washed out; and h) Path noise control measures (i.e., portable noise barriers, panels, enclosures, and acoustical tents) for certain dominant noise equipment, to the extent feasible and practical.

Additionally, the Proposed Project would, where feasible, practicable, and effective to control construction noise, incorporate site-perimeter noise barriers during concrete operations least 12 feet tall with a cantilever towards the work area.

Mitigation measures to control noise, at the receptors predicted to experience impacts would be offered during construction of the Proposed Project., at building façades that are predicted to experience impact, the Applicant would offer to make available, at no cost for purchase and installation storm windows for façades that do not already have insulated glass windows and/or one window air conditioner per living room and bedroom, at residences or one window air conditioner per classroom, at school receptors that do not already have alternative means of ventilation. The mitigation measures would be implemented prior, to the start of construction. However, the most noise-intensive construction activity nearest the receptors experiencing significant adverse impacts would result in interior noise levels up to $62~\rm dBA~L_{10},$ which is 17 dBA greater than the level considered acceptable according to CEQR~Technical~Manual noise exposure guidelines. Consequently, significant adverse noise impacts predicted to occur, at the above-mentioned receptors would be only partially mitigated.

The DEIS considers two Alternatives - A No Action Alternative and a No Significant Shadow Impact Alternative. The No Action Alternative examines future conditions within the Project Area, but assumes the absence of the Proposed Actions (i.e., none of the discretionary approvals proposed as part of the Proposed Actions would be adopted). The No Significant Shadow Impact Alternative examines a scenario in which the bulk of the Proposed Project is changed specifically to reduce the significant adverse shadow impact associated with the Proposed Actions.

Copies of the DEIS may be obtained from the Environmental Assessment and Review Division, New York City Department of City Planning, 120 Broadway, 31st Floor, New York, NY 10271, Stephanie Shellooe, Director (212) 720-3328, and on the New York City Department of City Planning's website located, at https://www1.nyc. gov/site/planning/applicants/env-review/new-york-blood-center.page

COMPTROLLER

■ NOTICE

NOTICE OF ADVANCE PAYMENT OF AWARDS PURSUANT TO THE STATUTES IN SUCH cases made and provided, notice is hereby given that the Comptroller of the City of New York, will be ready to pay, at 1 Centre Street, Room 629, New York, NY 10007, on 10/5/2021, to the person or persons legally entitled an amount as certified, to the Comptroller by the Corporation Counsel on damage parcels, as follows:

Block	Lot
1790	44
1790	28
1790	46
	1790 1790

Acquired in the proceeding entitled: <u>FIFTEENTH AMENDED</u> <u>HARLEM-EAST HARLEM URBAN RENEWAL PLAN (EAST 125TH</u> <u>STREET), STAGES 1 AND 2</u> subject to any liens and encumbrances of record on such property. The amount advanced shall cease to bear interest on the specified date above.

Scott M. Stringer Comptroller **s21-o4**

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

■ NOTICE

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic has severely impacted New York City and its economy, and is addressed effectively only by joint action of the City, State, and Federal governments; and

WHEREAS, the State of emergency to address the threat and impacts of COVID-19 in the City of New York first declared in Emergency Executive Order No. 98, and extended most recently by Emergency Executive Order No. 220, remains in effect; and

WHEREAS, this Order is given because of the propensity of the virus to spread person-to-person, and also because the actions taken to prevent such spread have led to property loss and damage;

WHEREAS, the U.S. Centers for Disease Control ("CDC") reports that new variants of COVID-19, classified as "variants of concern," are present in the United States;

WHEREAS, some of these new variants currently account for the majority of COVID-19 cases sequenced in New York City and are much more transmissible than earlier variants;

WHEREAS, the CDC has stated that vaccination is the most effective tool to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 and protect against severe illness;

WHEREAS, the CDC has also stated that vaccination benefits both vaccine recipients and those with whom they come into contact, including individuals who are ineligible for the vaccine due to age, health or other conditions;

WHEREAS, the recent appearance in the City of the highly transmissible Delta variant of COVID-19 has substantially increased the risk of infection;

WHEREAS, indoor entertainment, recreation, dining and fitness settings generally involve groups of unassociated people interacting for a substantial period of time and requiring vaccination for all individuals in these areas, including workers, will protect the public health, promote public safety, and save the lives of not just those vaccinated individuals but the public, at large;

WHEREAS, 57% of City residents are fully vaccinated and 64% of residents have received, at least one dose, and mandating vaccinations, at the types of establishments that residents frequent will incentivize vaccinations, increasing the City's vaccination rates and saving lives; and

WHEREAS, a study by Yale University demonstrated that the City's vaccination campaign was estimated to have prevented about 250,000 COVID-19 cases, 44,000 hospitalizations and 8,300 deaths from COVID-19 infection since the start of vaccination through July 1, 2021, and the City believes the number of prevented cases, hospitalizations and death has risen since then; and that between January 1, 2021, and June 15, 2021, over 98% of hospitalizations and deaths from COVID-19 infection involved those who were not fully vaccinated;

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant, to the powers vested in me by the laws of the State of New York and the City of New York, including but not limited, to the New York Executive Law, the New York City Charter and the Administrative Code of the City of New York, and the common law authority to protect the public in the event of an emergency:

Section 1. I hereby direct that the State of Emergency declared in Emergency Executive Order No. 98, dated March 12, 2020, and extended by subsequent orders, is extended for thirty (30) days. § 2. I hereby direct that section 1 of Emergency Executive Order No. 226, dated August 20, 2021, is extended for five (5) days.

§ 3. I hereby direct that section 2 of Emergency Executive Order No. 226, dated August 20, 2021, shall be superseded in its entirety by the provisions of section 4 of this Order.

4. a. The program established by this section shall be known as the Key to NYC program.

b. I hereby order that, except as provided in subdivision c of this section, a covered entity shall not permit a patron, full- or part-time employee, intern, volunteer, or contractor to enter a covered premises without displaying proof of vaccination and identification bearing the same identifying information as the proof of vaccination.

c. I hereby order that the following individuals are exempted from this section, and therefore may enter a covered premises without displaying proof of vaccination, provided that such individuals wear a face mask, at all times when they are unable to maintain six (6) feet of distance from other individuals inside the covered premises:

- 1. Individuals entering for a quick and limited purpose (for example, using the restroom, placing or picking up an order or service, changing clothes in a locker room, or performing necessary repairs);
- 2. A nonresident performing artist not regularly employed by the covered entity, or a nonresident individual accompanying such a performing artist, while the performing artist or individual is in a

covered premises for the purposes of such artist's performance; and

3. A nonresident professional, athlete/sports team that is not based in New York City (i.e., not a New York City "home team"), or a nonresident individual accompanying such professional, athlete/ sports team, who enters a covered premises as part of their regular employment for purposes of the professional, athlete/ sports team competition.

d. I hereby direct each covered entity to develop and keep a written record describing the covered entity's protocol for implementing and enforcing the requirements of this section. Such written record shall be available for inspection upon a request of a City official as allowed by law.

e. I hereby direct each covered entity to post a sign in a conspicuous place that is viewable by prospective patrons prior to entering the establishment. The sign must alert patrons, to the vaccination requirement in this section and inform them that employees and patrons are required to be vaccinated. The Department for Health and Mental Hygiene ("DOHMH") shall determine the text of such sign and provide a template on its website that a covered entity may use. A covered entity may use the sign available online, at nyc.gov/keytoNYC, or use its own sign, provided its sign must be no smaller than 8.5 inches by 11 inches, with text provided by DOHMH in, at least 14-point font.

f. For the purposes of this Order:

- 1. "Contractor" means the owner or employee of any business that a covered entity has hired to perform work within a covered premise.
- 2. "Covered entity" means any entity that operates one or more covered premises, except that it shall not include pre-kindergarten through grade twelve (12) public and non-public schools and programs, houses of worship, child care programs, senior centers, community centers, or as otherwise indicated by this Order.
- 3. "Covered premises" means any of the following locations, except as provided in paragraph iv of this subsection:
 - 1. Indoor Entertainment and Recreational Settings, including indoor portions of the following locations, regardless of the activity, at such locations: movie theaters, music or concert venues, adult entertainment, casinos, botanical gardens, commercial event and party venues, museums, aquariums, zoos, professional sports arenas and indoor stadiums, convention centers and exhibition halls, performing arts theaters, bowling alleys, arcades, indoor play areas, pool and billiard halls, and other recreational game centers;
- 2. Indoor Food Services, including indoor portions of food service establishments offering food and drink, including all indoor dining areas of food service establishments that receive letter grades as described in section 81.51 of the Health Code; businesses operating indoor seating areas of food courts; catering food service establishments that provide food indoors on its premises; and any indoor portions of an establishment that is regulated by the New York State Department of Agriculture and Markets offering food for on-premises indoor consumption. The requirements of this Order shall not apply to any establishment offering food or drink exclusively for off-premises or outdoor consumption, or to a food service establishment providing only charitable food services, such as soup kitchens;
- 3. Indoor Gyms and Fitness Settings, including indoor portions of standalone and hotel gyms and fitness centers, gyms and fitness centers in higher education institutions, yoga/Pilates/barre/dance studios, boxing/kickboxing gyms, fitness boot camps, indoor pools, CrossFit or other plyometric boxes, and other facilities used for conducting group fitness classes.
- 4. "Covered premises" do not include houses of worship or locations in a residential or office building the use of which is limited to residents, owners, or tenants of that building.
- 4. "Indoor portion" means any part of a covered premises with a roof or overhang that is enclosed by, at least three walls, except that the following will not be considered an indoor portion: (1) a structure on the sidewalk or roadway if it is entirely open on the side facing the sidewalk; and (2) an outdoor dining structure for individual parties, such as a plastic dome, if it has adequate ventilation to allow for air circulation.
- 5. "Nonresident" means any individual who is not a resident of New York City.
- 6. "Patron" means any individual 12 years of age or older who patronizes, enters, attends an event, or purchases goods or services within a covered premise.
- 7. "Identification" means an official document bearing the name of the individual and a photo or date of birth. Examples of acceptable

identification include but are not limited to: driver's license, nondriver government ID card, IDNYC, passport, and school ID card.

- 8. "Proof of vaccination" means proof of receipt of, at least one dose of a COVID-19 vaccine authorized for emergency use or licensed for use by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration or authorized for emergency use by the World Health Organization. Such proof may be established by:
 - 1. (i) A CDC COVID-19 Vaccination Record Card or an official immunization record from the jurisdiction, state, or country where the vaccine was administered or a digital or physical photo of such a card or record, reflecting the person's name, vaccine brand, and date administered; or
- 2. (ii) A New York City COVID Safe Pass (available to download on Apple and Android smartphone devices); or
- 3. (iii) A New York State Excelsior Pass.

g. I hereby direct that each instance that a covered entity fails to check an individual's vaccination status shall constitute a separate violation of this section.

h. I hereby direct the City's Commission on Human Rights to develop guidance to assist covered entities in complying with this section in an equitable manner consistent with applicable provisions of the New York City Human Rights Law.

i. I hereby direct, in accordance with section 25 of the Executive Law, that staff from any agency as may hereafter be designated by the Commissioner of Health and Mental Hygiene shall enforce the directives set forth in this section.

j. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of any subsequent emergency executive order continuing this section:

- I hereby direct that any person or entity who is determined to have violated the requirements of the Key to NYC Program shall be subject to a fine, penalty and forfeiture of not less than \$1,000. If the person or entity is determined to have committed a subsequent violation of this section within twelve months of the initial violation for which a penalty was assessed, such person or entity shall be subject to a fine, penalty and forfeiture of not less than \$2,000. For every violation thereafter, such person or entity shall be subject to a fine, penalty and forfeiture of not less than \$5,000 if the person or entity committed the violation within twelve months of the violation for which the second penalty was assessed. This section may be enforced, pursuant to sections 3.05, 3.07, or 3.11 of the Health Code and sections 558 and 562 of the Charter.
- 2. I hereby suspend: (i) Appendix 7-A of Chapter 7 of Title 24 of the Rules of the City of New York, to the extent it would limit a violation of this section to be punished with a standard penalty of \$1,000 or a default penalty of \$2,000; and (ii) section 7-08 of such Chapter 7 and section 3.11 of the Health Code,, to the extent such provisions would limit the default penalty amount that may be imposed for a violation of this section to \$2,000.

k. Covered entities shall comply with further guidelines issued by DOHMH to further the intent of this section and increase the number of vaccinated individuals in the City.

1. Section 20-1271 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York is modified by adding the following provision, to the definition of "just cause:" Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter, a fast food employer shall be deemed to have just cause when a fast food employee has failed, to provide proof of vaccination required by an emergency executive order issued in response, to the COVID-19 pandemic and shall not be required to follow progressive discipline procedures prior to terminating the employee, provided that the employee shall have 30 days from the date when the employer notified the employee of the requirement to submit such proof and the employee shall be placed on leave following such notification until such proof is provided. This provision shall not excuse the employer from the responsibility, to provide a reasonable accommodation where required by law.

§ 5. I hereby direct the Fire and Police Departments, the Department of Buildings, the Sheriff, and other agencies as needed, to enforce the directives set forth in section 2 of this Order in accordance with their lawful authorities, including Administrative Code sections 15-227(a), 28-105.10.1, and 28-201.1, and section 107.6 of the Fire Code. Violations of the directives set forth in section 1 of this Order may be issued as if they were violations under the Health Code sections 3.07 and 3.11, and enforced by the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene or any other agency.

§ 6. This Emergency Executive Order shall take effect immediately, except that section 4(j) of this Order shall take effect on September 13, 2021. The State of Emergency shall remain in effect for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days or until rescinded, whichever occurs first. Additional declarations to extend the State

of Emergency for additional periods not to exceed thirty (30) days shall be issued if needed.

Bill de Blasio, MAYOR

• s29

EMERGENCY EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 222 August 5, 2021

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic has severely impacted New York City and its economy, and is addressed effectively only by joint action of the City, State, and Federal governments; and

WHEREAS, the state of emergency to address the threat and impacts of COVID-19 in the City of New York first declared in Emergency Executive Order No. 98, and extended most recently by Emergency Executive Order No. 220, remains in effect; and

WHEREAS, this Order is given because of the propensity of the virus to spread person-to-person, and also because the actions taken to prevent such spread have led to property loss and damage;

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the powers vested in me by the laws of the State of New York and the City of New York, including but not limited, to the New York Executive Law, the New York City Charter and the Administrative Code of the City of New York, and the common law authority to protect the public in the event of an emergency:

Section 1. I hereby direct that section 1 of Emergency Executive Order No. 221, dated July 31, 2021, is extended for five (5) days.

§ 2. I hereby direct the Fire and Police Departments, the Department of Buildings, the Sheriff, and other agencies as needed, to enforce the directives set forth in this Order in accordance with their lawful authorities, including Administrative Code sections 15-227(a), 28-105.10.1, and 28-201.1, and section 107.6 of the Fire Code. Violations of the directives set forth in this Order may be issued as if they were violations under the Health Code sections 3.07 and 3.11, and enforced by the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene or any other agency.

§3. This Emergency Executive Order shall take effect immediately.

Bill de Blasio, MAYOR

• s29

EMERGENCY EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 223 August 10, 2021

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic has severely impacted New York City and its economy, and is addressed effectively only by joint action of the City, State, and Federal governments; and

WHEREAS, the state of emergency to address the threat and impacts of COVID-19 in the City of New York first declared in Emergency Executive Order No. 98, and extended most recently by Emergency Executive Order No. 220, remains in effect; and

WHEREAS, this Order is given because of the propensity of the virus to spread person-to-person, and also because the actions taken to prevent such spread have led to property loss and damage;

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the powers vested in me by the laws of the State of New York and the City of New York, including but not limited to the New York Executive Law, the New York City Charter and the Administrative Code of the City of New York, and the common law authority to protect the public in the event of an emergency:

Section 1. I hereby direct that section 1 of Emergency Executive Order No. 222, dated August 5, 2021, is extended for five (5) days.

§ 2. I hereby direct the Fire and Police Departments, the Department of Buildings, the Sheriff, and other agencies as needed, to enforce the directives set forth in this Order in accordance with their lawful authorities, including Administrative Code sections 15-227(a), 28-105.10.1, and 28-201.1, and section 107.6 of the Fire Code. Violations of the directives set forth in this Order may be issued as if they were violations under the Health Code sections 3.07 and 3.11, and enforced by the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene or any other agency.

§3. This Emergency Executive Order shall take effect immediately.

Emma Wolfe, DEPUTY MAYOR FOR ADMINISTRATION ACTING MAYOR

• s29

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic has severely impacted New York City and its economy, and is addressed effectively only by joint action of the City, State, and Federal governments; and

WHEREAS, the state of emergency to address the threat and impacts of COVID-19 in the City of New York first declared in Emergency Executive Order No. 98, and extended most recently by Emergency Executive Order No. 220, remains in effect; and

WHEREAS, this Order is given because of the propensity of the virus to spread person-to-person, and also because the actions taken to prevent such spread have led to property loss and damage;

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant, to the powers vested in me by the laws of the State of New York and the City of New York, including but not limited, to the New York Executive Law, the New York City Charter and the Administrative Code of the City of New York, and the common law authority to protect the public in the event of an emergency:

Section 1. I hereby direct that section 1 of Emergency Executive Order No. 223, dated August 10, 2021, is extended for five (5) days.

§ 2. I hereby direct the Fire and Police Departments, the Department of Buildings, the Sheriff, and other agencies as needed, to enforce the directives set forth in this Order in accordance with their lawful authorities, including Administrative Code sections 15-227(a), 28-105.10.1, and 28-201.1, and section 107.6 of the Fire Code. Violations of the directives set forth in this Order may be issued as if they were violations under the Health Code sections 3.07 and 3.11, and enforced by the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene or any other agency.

§3. This Emergency Executive Order shall take effect immediately.

Bill de Blasio, MAYOR

• s29

EMERGENCY EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 225 August 16, 2021

Key to NYC: Requiring COVID-19 Vaccination for Indoor Entertainment, Recreation, Dining and Fitness Settings

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic has severely impacted New York City and its economy, and is addressed effectively only by joint action of the City, State, and Federal governments;

WHEREAS, the state of emergency to address the threat and impacts of COVID-19 in the City of New York first declared in Emergency Executive Order No. 98, and extended most recently by Emergency Executive Order No. 220, remains in effect;

WHEREAS, this Order is necessary because of the propensity of the virus to spread person-to-person, and also because the actions taken to prevent such spread have led to property loss and damage;

WHEREAS, the U.S. Centers for Disease Control ("CDC") reports that new variants of COVID-19, classified as "variants of concern," are present in the United States;

WHEREAS, some of these new variants currently account for the majority of COVID-19 cases sequenced in New York City and are much more transmissible than earlier variants;

WHEREAS, the CDC has stated that vaccination is the most effective tool to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 and protect against severe illness;

WHEREAS, the CDC has also stated that vaccination benefits both vaccine recipients and those with whom they come into contact, including individuals who are ineligible for the vaccine due to age, health or other conditions;

WHEREAS, the recent appearance in the City of the highly transmissible Delta variant of COVID-19 has substantially increased the risk of infection;

WHEREAS, indoor entertainment, recreation, dining and fitness settings generally involve groups of unassociated people interacting for a substantial period of time and requiring vaccination for all individuals in these areas, including workers, will protect the public health, promote public safety, and save the lives of not just those vaccinated individuals but the public, at large;

WHEREAS, 56% of City residents are fully vaccinated and 62% of residents have received, at least one dose, and mandating vaccinations, at the types of establishments that residents frequent will incentivize vaccinations, increasing the City's vaccination rates and saving lives; and

WHEREAS, a study by Yale University demonstrated that the City's vaccination campaign was estimated to have prevented about 250,000 COVID-19 cases, 44,000 hospitalizations and 8,300 deaths from COVID-19 infection since the start of vaccination through July 1, 2021, and the City believes the number of prevented cases, hospitalizations and death has risen since then; and that between January 1, 2021, and June 15, 2021, over 98% of hospitalizations and deaths from COVID-19 infection involved those who were not fully vaccinated;

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant, to the powers vested in me by the laws of the State of New York and the City of New York, including but not limited, to the New York Executive Law, the New York City Charter and the Administrative Code of the City of New York, and the common law authority to protect the public in the event of an emergency:

Section 1. I hereby order that a covered entity shall not permit a patron, full- or part-time employee, intern, volunteer, or contractor to enter a covered premises without displaying proof of vaccination and identification bearing the same identifying information as the proof of vaccination.

§ 2. I hereby order that the following individuals are exempted from this Order, and therefore may enter a covered premises without displaying proof of vaccination, provided that such individuals wear a face mask, at all times they are unable to maintain six (6) feet of distance from other individuals inside the covered premises:

- 1. Individuals entering for a quick and limited purpose (for example, using the restroom, placing or picking up an order or service, changing clothes in a locker room, or performing necessary repairs);
- 2. A nonresident performing artist not regularly employed by the covered entity while they are in a covered premises for purposes of performing;
- 3. A nonresident professional, athlete/sports team who enters a covered premises as part of their regular employment for purposes of competing; and
- 4. A nonresident individual accompanying a performing artist or professional, athlete/sports team into a covered premises as part of their regular employment so long as the performing artist or professional, athlete/sports team are performing or competing in the covered premises.

§ 3. I hereby direct each covered entity to develop and keep a written record describing the covered entity's protocol for implementing and enforcing the requirements of this Order. Such written record shall be available for inspection upon a request of a City official as allowed by law.

§ 4. I hereby direct each covered entity to post a sign in a conspicuous place that is viewable by prospective patrons prior to entering the establishment. The sign must alert patrons, to the vaccination requirement in this Order and inform them that employees and patrons are required to be vaccinated. The Department for Health and Mental Hygiene ("DOHMH") shall determine the text of such sign and provide a template on its website that a covered entity may use. A covered entity may use the sign available online, at nyc.gov/keytoNYC, or use its own sign provided its sign must be no smaller than 8.5 inches by 11 inches, with text provided by DOHMH in, at least 14-point font. § 5. For the purposes of this Order:

- 1. "Contractor" means the owner and/or employees of any business that a covered entity has hired to perform work within a covered premise, except that it shall not include nonresident owners and/ or employees.
- 2. "Covered entity" means any entity that operates one or more covered premises, except that it shall not include pre-kindergarten through grade twelve (12) public and non-public schools and programs, child care programs, senior centers, community centers, or as otherwise indicated by this Order.
- 3. "Covered premises" means any location, except a location in a residential or office building the use of which is limited to residents, owners, or tenants of that building, that is used for the following purposes:
 - 1. Indoor Entertainment and Recreational Settings, including indoor portions of the following locations, regardless of the activity, at such locations: movie theaters, music or concert venues, adult entertainment, casinos, botanical gardens, commercial event and party venues, museums and galleries, aquariums, zoos, professional sports arenas and indoor stadiums, convention centers and exhibition halls, performing arts theaters, bowling alleys, arcades, indoor play areas, pool and billiard halls, and other recreational game centers;
- 2. Indoor Food Services , including indoor portions of food service establishments offering food and drink, including all indoor dining areas of food service establishments that receive letter grades as described in section 81.51 of the Health Code; businesses operating indoor seating areas of food courts; catering food service establishments that provide food indoors on its premises; and any indoor portions of food service establishment that is regulated by the New York State Department of Agriculture and Markets offering food for on-premises indoor consumption. The requirements of this Order shall not apply to any food service establishment offering food and/or drink exclusively for off-premises or outdoor consumption, or to a food service establishment providing charitable food services such as soup kitchens;

- Indoor Gyms and Fitness Settings, including indoor portions 3. of standalone and hotel gyms and fitness centers, gyms and fitness centers in higher education institutions, yoga/Pilates/barre/dance studios, boxing/kickboxing gyms, fitness boot camps, indoor pools, CrossFit or other plyometric boxes, and other facilities used for conducting group fitness classes.
- 4. "Indoor portion" means any part of a covered premises with a roof or overhang that is enclosed by, at least three walls, except that the following will not be considered an indoor portion: (1) a structure on the sidewalk or roadway if it is entirely open on the side facing the sidewalk; and (2) an outdoor dining structure for individual parties, such as a plastic dome, if it has adequate ventilation to allow for air circulation.
- "Nonresident" means any individual who is not a resident of New 5. York City.
- 6. "Patron" means any individual 12 years of age or older who patronizes, enters, attends an event, or purchases goods or services within a covered premise.
- 7 "Identification" means an official document bearing the name of the individual and a photo or date of birth. Examples of acceptable identification include but are not limited to: driver's license, nondriver government ID card, IDNYC, passport, and school ID card.
- 8 "Proof of vaccination" means proof of receipt of, at least one dose of a COVID-19 vaccine authorized for emergency use or licensed for use by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration or authorized for emergency use by the World Health Organization. Such proof may be established by:
 - 1. A CDC COVID-19 Vaccination Record Card or an official immunization record from the jurisdiction, state, or country where the vaccine was administered or a digital or physical photo of such a card or record, reflecting the person's name, vaccine brand, and date administered; or
 - A New York City COVID Safe Pass (available to download on 2. Apple and Android smartphone devices); or
- A New York State Excelsior Pass.

§ 6. I hereby direct that each instance that a covered entity fails to check an individual's vaccination status shall constitute a separate violation of this Order.

§ 7. I hereby direct the City's Commission on Human Rights to develop guidance to assist covered entities in complying with this Order in an equitable manner consistent with applicable provisions of the New York City Human Rights Law.

§ 8. I hereby direct, in accordance with Executive Law § 25, that staff from any agency as may hereafter be designated by the DOHMH Commissioner shall enforce the directives set forth in this Order. § 9. I hereby direct that any person or entity who is determined to have violated this Order shall be subject to a fine, penalty and forfeiture of not less than \$1,000. If the person or entity is determined to have committed a subsequent violation of this Order within twelve months of the initial violation for which a penalty was assessed, such person or entity shall be subject to a fine, penalty and forfeiture of not less than \$2,000. For every violation thereafter, such person or entity shall be subject to a fine, penalty and forfeiture of not less than \$5,000 if the person or entity committed the violation within twelve months of the violation for which the second penalty was assessed. This Order may be enforced, pursuant to sections 3.05, 3.07, and/or 3.11 of the Health Code and sections 558 and 562 of the Charter. I hereby suspend Appendix 7-A of Chapter 7 of the Rules of the City of New York, to the extent it would limit a violation of this Order to be punished with a standard penalty of \$1,000 or a default penalty of \$2,000. 10. Covered entities shall comply with further guidelines issued by

DOHMH to further the intent of this Order and increase the number of vaccinated individuals in the City. § 11. This Emergency Executive Order shall take effect on August 17,

2021, except for section 9 of this Order, which shall take effect on September 13, 2021.

Bill de Blasio, MAYOR

• s29

EMERGENCY EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 226 August 20, 2021

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic has severely impacted New York City and its economy, and is addressed effectively only by joint action of the City, State, and Federal governments; and

WHEREAS, the state of emergency to address the threat and impacts of COVID-19 in the City of New York first declared in Emergency Executive Order No. 98, and extended most recently by Emergency Executive Order No. 220, remains in effect; and

WHEREAS, this Order is given because of the propensity of the virus to spread person-to-person, and also because the actions taken to prevent such spread have led to property loss and damage;

WHEREAS, the U.S. Centers for Disease Control ("CDC") reports that new variants of COVID-19, classified as "variants of concern," are present in the United States;

WHEREAS, some of these new variants currently account for the majority of COVID-19 cases sequenced in New York City and are much more transmissible than earlier variants;

WHEREAS, the CDC has stated that vaccination is the most effective tool to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 and protect against severe illness:

WHEREAS, the CDC has also stated that vaccination benefits both vaccine recipients and those with whom they come into contact, including individuals who are ineligible for the vaccine due to age, health or other conditions;

WHEREAS, the recent appearance in the City of the highly transmissible Delta variant of COVID-19 has substantially increased the risk of infection;

WHEREAS, indoor entertainment, recreation, dining and fitness settings generally involve groups of unassociated people interacting for a substantial period of time and requiring vaccination for all individuals in these areas, including workers, will protect the public health, promote public safety, and save the lives of not just those vaccinated individuals but the public, at large;

WHEREAS, 56% of City residents are fully vaccinated and 62% of residents have received, at least one dose, and mandating vaccinations, at the types of establishments that residents frequent will incentivize vaccinations, increasing the City's vaccination rates and saving lives; and

WHEREAS, a study by Yale University demonstrated that the City's vaccination campaign was estimated to have prevented about 250,000 COVID-19 cases, 44,000 hospitalizations and 8,300 deaths from COVID-19 infection since the start of vaccination through July 1, 2021, and the City believes the number of prevented cases, hospitalizations and death has risen since then; and that between January 1, 2021, and June 15, 2021, over 98% of hospitalizations and deaths from COVID-19 infection involved those who were not fully vaccinated;

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the powers vested in me by the laws of the State of New York and the City of New York, including but not limited, to the New York Executive Law, the New York City Charter and the Administrative Code of the City of New York, and the common law authority to protect the public in the event of an emergency: Section 1. I hereby direct that section 1 of Emergency Executive Order No. 224, dated August 15, 2021, is extended for five (5) days.

§ 2. I hereby direct that sections 1 through 11 of Emergency Executive Order No. 225, dated August 16, 2021 shall be superseded in their This section shall be known as the Key to NYC program.

I hereby order that a covered entity shall not permit a patron, full- or part-time employee, intern, volunteer, or contractor to enter a covered premises without displaying proof of vaccination and identification bearing the same identifying information as the proof of vaccination.

3. I hereby order that the following individuals are exempted from this section, and therefore may enter a covered premises without displaying proof of vaccination, provided that such individuals wear a face mask, at all times when they are unable to maintain six (6) feet of distance from other individuals inside the covered premises:

a. Individuals entering for a quick and limited purpose (for example, using the restroom, placing or picking up an order or service, changing clothes in a locker room, or performing necessary repairs); b. A nonresident performing artist not regularly employed by the covered entity, or a nonresident individual accompanying such a performing artist, while the performing artist or individual is in a covered premises for the purposes of such artist's performance; and c. A nonresident professional, athlete/sports team that is not based in New York City (i.e., not a New York City "home team"), or a nonresident individual accompanying such professional, athlete/sports team, who enters a covered premises as part of their regular employment for purposes of the professional, athlete/sports team competition.

4. I hereby direct each covered entity to develop and keep a written record describing the covered entity's protocol for implementing and enforcing the requirements of this section. Such written record shall be available for inspection upon a request of a City official as allowed by law.

5. I hereby direct each covered entity to post a sign in a conspicuous place that is viewable by prospective patrons prior to entering the establishment. The sign must alert patrons, to the vaccination requirement in this section and inform them that employees and patrons are required to be vaccinated. The Department for Health and Mental Hygiene ("DOHMH") shall determine the text of such sign and provide a template on its website that a covered entity may use. A covered entity may use the sign available online, at nyc.gov/keytoNYC, or use its own sign provided its sign must be no smaller than 8.5 inches by 11 inches, with text provided by DOHMH in, at least 14-point font.

6. For the purposes of this Order: a. "Contractor" means the owner or employee of any business that a covered entity has hired to perform work within a covered premise. b. "Covered entity" means any entity that operates one or more covered premises, except that it shall not include pre-kindergarten through grade twelve (12) public and non-public schools and programs, houses of worship, child care programs, senior centers, community centers, or as otherwise indicated by this Order.

c. "Covered premises" means any location, except a location in a residential or office building the use of which is limited to residents, owners, or tenants of that building, that is used for the following purposes:

i. Indoor Entertainment and Recreational Settings, including indoor portions of the following locations, regardless of the activity, at such locations: movie theaters, music or concert venues, adult entertainment, casinos, botanical gardens, commercial event and party venues, museums, aquariums, zoos professional sports arenas and indoor stadiums, convention centers and exhibition halls, performing arts theaters, bowling alleys, arcades, indoor play areas, pool and billiard halls, and other recreational game centers;

ii. Indoor Food Services, including indoor portions of food service establishments offering food and drink, including all indoor dining areas of food service establishments that receive letter grades as described in section 81.51 of the Health Code; businesses operating indoor seating areas of food courts; catering food service establishments that provide food indoors on its premises; and any indoor portions of an establishment that is regulated by the New York State Department of Agriculture and Markets offering food for on-premises indoor consumption. The requirements of this Order shall not apply to any establishment offering food or drink exclusively for off-premises or outdoor consumption, or to a food service establishment providing only charitable food services, such as soup kitchens; iii. Indoor Gyms and Fitness Settings,

including indoor portions of standalone and hotel gyms and fitness centers, gyms and fitness centers in higher education institutions, yoga/Pilates/barre/dance studios, boxing/kickboxing gyms, fitness boot camps, indoor pools, CrossFit or other plyometric boxes, and other facilities used for conducting group fitness classes.

d. "Indoor portion" means any part of a covered premises with a roof or overhang that is enclosed by, at least three walls, except that the following will not be considered an indoor portion: (1) a structure on the sidewalk or roadway if it is entirely open on the side facing the sidewalk; and (2) an outdoor dining structure for individual parties, such as a plastic dome, if it has adequate ventilation to allow for air circulation.

"Nonresident" means any individual who is not a resident of New York City.

f. "Patron" means any individual 12 years of age or older who patronizes, enters, attends an event, or purchases goods or services within a covered premise.

g. "Identification" means an official document bearing the name of the individual and a photo or date of birth. Examples of acceptable identification include but are not limited to: driver's license, non-driver government ID card, IDNYC, passport, and school ID card. h. "Proof of vaccination" means proof of receipt of, at least one dose of a COVID-19 vaccine authorized for emergency use or licensed for use by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration or authorized for emergency use by the World Health Organization. Such proof may be established

i. A CDC COVID-19 Vaccination Record Card or an official immunization record from the jurisdiction, state, or country where the vaccine was administered or a digital or physical photo of such a card or record, reflecting the person's name, vaccine brand, and date administered; or

ii. A New York City COVID Safe Pass (available to download on Apple and Android smartphone devices); or iii. A New York State Excelsior Pass.

7. I hereby direct that each instance that a covered entity fails to check an individual's vaccination status shall constitute a separate violation of this section

8. I hereby direct the City's Commission on Human Rights to develop guidance to assist covered entities in complying with this section in an equitable manner consistent with applicable provisions of the New York City Human Rights Law.

9. I hereby direct, in accordance with section 25 of the Executive Law, that staff from any agency as may hereafter be designated by the Commissioner of Health and Mental Hygiene shall enforce the directives set forth in this section.

10. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of any subsequent emergency executive order continuing this section:

a. I hereby direct that any person or entity who is determined to have violated this section shall be subject to a fine, penalty and forfeiture of not less than \$1,000. If the person or entity is determined to have committed a subsequent violation of this section within twelve months of the initial violation for which a penalty was assessed, such person or entity shall be subject to a fine, penalty and forfeiture of not less than \$2,000. For every violation thereafter, such person or entity shall be subject to a fine, penalty and forfeiture of not less than \$5,000 if the

person or entity committed the violation within twelve months of the violation for which the second penalty was assessed. This section may be enforced, pursuant to sections 3.05, 3.07, or 3.11 of the Health Code and sections 558 and 562 of the Charter.

b. I hereby suspend: (i) Appendix 7-A of Chapter 7 of Title 24 of the Rules of the City of New York, to the extent it would limit a violation of this section to be punished with a standard penalty of \$1,000 or a default penalty of \$2,000; and (ii) section 7-08 of such Chapter 7 and section 3.11 of the Health Code,, to the extent such provisions would limit the default penalty amount that may be imposed for a violation of this section to \$2,000.

. 11. Covered entities shall comply with further guidelines issued by DOHMH to further the intent of this section and increase the number of vaccinated individuals in the City.

3. I hereby direct the Fire and Police Departments, the Department of Buildings, the Sheriff, and other agencies as needed, to enforce the directives set forth in section 1 of this Order in accordance with their lawful authorities, including Administrative Code sections 15-227(a), 28-105.10.1, and 28-201.1, and section 107.6 of the Fire Code. Violations of the directives set forth in section 1 of this Order may be issued as if they were violations under the Health Code sections 3.07 and 3.11, and enforced by the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene or any other agency.

§ 4. This Emergency Executive Order shall take effect immediately, except that paragraph 10 of section 2 of this Order shall take effect on September 13, 2021.

> Bill de Blasio, MAYOR

• s29

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 74 July 31, 2021

Safety Practices of Public-Facing Contracted Personnel During The COVID-19 Crisis

WHEREAS, the City's efforts to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 are critical, to the health and well-being of City workers and residents and other persons with whom they interact in the provision of services; and

WHEREAS, wearing a face covering that covers the person's mouth and nose is a highly effective measure for reducing the spread of COVID-19: and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Centers for Disease Control ("CDC") reports that new variants of COVID-19, identified as "variants of concern," have emerged in the United States, and some of these new variants, which currently account for the majority of COVID-19 cases sequenced in New York City, are more transmissible than earlier variants; and

WHEREAS, the CDC has stated that vaccination is an effective tool to prevent the spread of COVID-19 and benefits both vaccine recipients and those they come into contact with, including persons who for reasons of age, health, or other conditions cannot themselves be vaccinated; and

WHEREAS, the recent appearance in the City of the highly transmissible Delta variant of COVID-19 has substantially increased the risk of infection for the City's workforce; and

WHEREAS, many employees of City contractors hold positions in which they come into contact with other people in the course of their work for the City, and are thus in a position to transmit or contract COVID-19 while they are, at work; and

WHEREAS, it is essential that the City promote the best health and safety practices recognized in light of current scientific understanding of the conditions under which COVID-19 can spread;

NOW, THEREFORE, by the power vested in me as Mayor of the City of New York, it is hereby ordered:

Section 1. Definitions. For the purposes of this Order, the following terms have the following meanings:

Contract. The term "contract" means a contract awarded by the City, and any subcontract under such a contract, for work (i) to be performed within the City of New York; and (ii) where employees can be expected to physically interact with City employees or members of the public in the course of performing work under the contract.

Covered Employee. The term "covered employee" means a person (i) employed by a contractor or subcontractor holding a contract; (ii) whose salary is paid in whole or in part from funds provided under a City contract; and (iii) who performs any part of the work under the contract within the City of New York. However, a person whose work under the contract does not include physical interaction with City employees or members of the public shall not be deemed to be a covered employee

<u>Full vaccination</u>. The term "full vaccination" means at least two weeks have passed after a person received a single-dose of an FDA- or WHO-approved COVID-19 vaccine or the second dose of an FDA- or WHO-approved two-dose COVID-19 vaccine.

§ 2. Requirement. Effective August 2, 2021, all City agencies must take all necessary actions, to ensure that their contractors require their covered employees to: (i) wear a face covering , at all times the covered employee can be expected to physically interact with City employees and members of the public in the course of performing work under the contract, or (ii) provide proof of their full vaccination status. § 3. Notice. Each City agency must send each of its contractors notice that the Mayor has directed City contractors to comply with the requirement of this Order and request a response from each such contractor, as soon as possible, with regard, to the contractor's intent to follow the Mayor's directive.

§ 4. Future Contracts. The Law Department and the Mayor's Office of Contract Services shall work with City agencies, to ensure that the requirements of this Order are reflected in all future City contracts, renewals, amendments, and modifications.

§5. Effective date. This Order shall take effect immediately.

Bill de Blasio, MAYOR

• s29

EXECUTIVE ORDER 77 August 25, 2021

Safety Practices of Public-Facing Contracted Personnel During the COVID-19 Crisis

WHEREAS, the City's efforts to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 are critical, to the health and well-being of City workers and residents and other persons with whom they interact in the provision of services; and

WHEREAS, wearing a face covering that covers the person's mouth and nose is a highly effective measure for reducing the spread of COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Centers for Disease Control ("CDC") reports that new variants of COVID-19, identified as "variants of concern," have emerged in the United States, and some of these new variants, which currently account for the majority of COVID-19 cases sequenced in New York City, are more transmissible than earlier variants; and

WHEREAS, the CDC has stated that vaccination is an effective tool to prevent the spread of COVID-19 and benefits both vaccine recipients and those they come into contact with, including persons who for reasons of age, health, or other conditions cannot themselves be vaccinated; and

WHEREAS, the recent appearance in the City of the highly transmissible Delta variant of COVID-19 has substantially increased the risk of infection for the City's workforce; and

WHEREAS, many employees of City contractors hold positions in which they come into contact with other people in the course of their work for the City, and are thus in a position to transmit or contract COVID-19 while they are, at work; and

WHEREAS, it is essential that the City promote the best health and safety practices recognized in light of current scientific understanding of the conditions under which COVID-19 can spread;

NOW, THEREFORE, by the power vested in me as Mayor of the City of New York, it is hereby ordered:

Section 1. Section 2 of Executive Order No. 74, dated July 31, 2021, is amended to read as follows:

§ 2. Requirement. Effective August 2, 2021, all City agencies must take all necessary actions, to ensure that their contractors:

1. Require all covered employees, including those who are fully vaccinated against COVID-19, to wear a face covering when interacting with members of the public or present in a pre-kindergarten to twelfth grade school, public transit facility, homeless shelter, correctional facility, nursing home, or health care setting.

2. Authorize covered employees to remove their face covering in the workplace (indoors or outdoors) or when interacting with City employees only when:

- 1. They are not required by subdivision (i) of this section to wear the face covering; and
- 2. They have provided documentation of their full vaccination status.

2. This Order takes effect immediately and is retroactive to and deemed to have been in effect as of July 31, 2021.

Bill de Blasio, MAYOR

• s29

EMERGENCY EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 235 SEPTEMBER 7, 2021

WHEREAS, the public safety was imperiled by a flash flood emergency

caused by the remnants of Hurricane Ida that flooded roads, impacted mass transit, stranded motorists, and caused widespread damage to residential and commercial buildings throughout the City, causing unsafe conditions in those buildings and imperiling health and safety;

WHEREAS, the repair and re-occupation of buildings damaged by the storm is essential, to the public health, safety and economic well-being of the City and will be encouraged and incentivized by waiving certain fees that would be payable, to the Department of Environmental Protection for asbestos removal or the Department of Buildings ("Department") for permits and inspections required by law for such work and would alleviate conditions of imminent peril; and

WHEREAS, on September 1, 2021, I declared a state of emergency to exist within the City of New York, extended most recently by Emergency Executive Order 234, and such declaration remains in effect for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days or until rescinded, whichever occurs first;

NOW, THEREFORE, by the power vested in me as Mayor of the City of New York, pursuant to law, including Executive Law § 24, I hereby order:

Section 1. I hereby direct that section 2 of Emergency Executive Order No. 234, dated September 5, 2021, is extended for five (5) days.

§ 2. I hereby suspend the following provisions of the Administrative Code of the City of New York ("Admin. Code"), to the extent necessary to allow the Department to waive all fees, which would otherwise be required to be paid, to the Department by Title 28 of the Admin. Code, the electrical code or the rules of the Department, in connection with applications, permits and inspections for work including:

a. The fees required by Admin. Code $27\-3018(c)$ relating to electrical permit fees;

b. The fees required by Admin. Code § 28-104.5 relating to construction document filing fees;

c. The fees required by Admin. Code § 28-105.6 relating to permit filing fees;

d. The fees required by Admin. Code § 28-112.1 and Table 28-112.2 relating to fees and fee table; and e. The fees required by Admin. Code§ 28-112.8 and Table 28-112.8 related to special fees.

Applications and permits for demolition work, alteration work, new building work, plumbing work, electrical work, and associated work permits and inspections, as described in this section, shall be eligible for suspension of fees if the applicant submits a certification that such work is due to storm damage.

§ 3. I hereby suspend section 1-25 of Title 15 of the Rules of the City of New York, to the extent necessary to waive fees related, to the removal of asbestos and waive the seven (7) day advance submittal requirement. Applicants shall be required to submit a certification that such work is due to storm damage to be eligible for suspension of the fees.

§ 4. I hereby direct that sections 2 and 3 of this Order shall be retroactive and deemed to have been in effect as of September 1, 2021.

§ 5. This Emergency Executive Order shall take effect immediately and shall remain in effect for five (5) days unless it is terminated or modified, at an earlier date.

Bill de Blasio MAYOR

• s29

EMERGENCY EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 236 SEPTEMBER 9, 2021

WHEREAS, the public safety was imperiled by a flash flood emergency caused by the remnants of Hurricane Ida that flooded roads, impacted mass transit, stranded motorists, and caused widespread damage to residential and commercial buildings throughout the City, causing unsafe conditions in those buildings and imperiling health and safety;

WHEREAS, the state of emergency to address the remnants of Hurricane Ida, declared in Emergency Executive Order No. 230, and extended most recently by Emergency Executive Order No. 234, remains in effect; and

WHEREAS, additional reasons for requiring the measures continued in this Order are set forth in Emergency Executive Order No. 235;

NOW, THEREFORE, by the power vested in me as Mayor of the City of New York, pursuant to law, including Executive Law \S 24, I hereby order:

Section 1. I hereby direct that sections 1, 2, 3, 4 of Emergency Executive Order No. 235, dated September 7, 2021, are extended for five (5) days.

§ 2. The City Cleanup Corps and relevant agencies shall work to clear debris in affected areas on both public and private property.

§ 4. This Emergency Executive Order shall take effect immediately and shall remain in effect for five (5) days unless it is terminated or modified, at an earlier date.

Bill de Blasio MAYOR

🕶 s29

MAYOR'S OFFICE OF CONTRACT SERVICES

■ NOTICE

Notice of Intent to Issue New Solicitation(s) Not Included in FY 2021 Annual Contracting Plan and Schedule

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Mayor will be issuing the following solicitation(s) not included in the FY 2021 Annual Contracting Plan and Schedule that is published, pursuant to New York City Charter § 312(a):

Agency: Department of Environmental Protection

Bescription of services sought: 1527-PBS: Maintenance of Petroleum Bulk storage tank, at various Wastewater Treatment Plants, Pump Station and Associated DEP facilities.

Start date of the proposed contract: 4/2/2022

End date of the proposed contract: 4/1/2025

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: Competitive Sealed Bid

Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: None Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 0

• s29

<u>Notice of Intent to Issue New Solicitation(s) Not Included in FY</u> 2021 Annual Contracting Plan and Schedule

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Mayor will be issuing the following solicitation(s) not included in the FY 2021 Annual Contracting Plan and Schedule that is published, pursuant to New York City Charter § 312(a):

Agency: Department of Design and Construction

Description of services sought: 40141-4077 Design Services 360 Adams St.- Elevator Modernization

Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021

End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative

Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative City Planner, Administrative City Planner NM, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manger NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Chemical Engineer, Assistant Civil Engineer, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Urban Designer, Associate Project Manager, Associate Urban Designer, Civil Engineer, Civil Engineer Intern, City Planner, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Landscape Architect, Mechanical Engineer, Mechanical Engineering Intern, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 618

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Construction Management 360 Adams St.- Elevator Modernization

Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021

End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP

Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manger NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineer, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Mechanical Engineer, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Surveyor

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 697

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Resident Engineering Inspection Services 360 Adams St.- Elevator Modernization Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineer, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Mechanical Engineer, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Surveyor Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 697

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Consultant Contract Administration:

Description of services sought: Consultant Contract Administration: research, training, data analysis, and expert testimony, including services related to damages for delay claims, 360 Adams St.- Elevator Modernization

Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP

Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Accountant, Administrative Accountant, Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative City Planner, Administrative City Planner NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Manager, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Administrative Staff Analyst, Architect, Architectural Intern, Assistant Architect, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Åssistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Urban Designer, Associate Investigator, Associate Project Manager, Associate Urban Designer, City Planner, Civil Engineer, Civil Engineering Intern, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Estimator (General Construction), Estimator (Mechanical), Investigator, Landscape Architect, Management Auditor, Mechanical Engineer, Mechanical Engineer Inter, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Senior Estimator – General Construction, Supervisor of Electrical Installations & Maintenance Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 767

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Construction Support Services: asbestos, boring, testing, monitoring, sampling, site safety, inspections and environmental, 360 Adams St.- Elevator Modernization Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Asbestos Hazard Investigator, Assistant Chemical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineering Intern, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Engineering Technician, Geologist, Industrial Hygienist, Project Manager, Surveyor

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 428

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Contract Administration: fiscal audit, reconciliation of accounts, preparation of change orders, analyzing and finalizing financial transactions and contract close out, 360 Adams St.- Elevator Modernization

Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Accountant, Administrative Accountant, Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative City Planner, Administrative City Planner NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Manager, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Manager NM, Administrative Staff Analyst, Architect, Architectural Intern, Assistant Architect, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Urban Designer, Associate Investigator, Associate Project Manager, Associate Urban Designer, Civil Planner, Civil Engineer, Civil Engineering Intern, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Estimator (General Construction), Estimator (Mechanical), Investigator, Landscape Architect, Management Auditor, Mechanical Engineer, Mechanical Engineer Inter, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Senior Estimator – General Construction, Supervisor of Electrical Installations & Maintenance Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 767

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Community Outreach Consultants 360 Adams St.- Elevator Modernization Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: None Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 0

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Owner's Representative Requirements Contracts 360 Adams St.- Elevator Modernization Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineer, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Mechanical Engineer, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Surveyor

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 697

Agency: Department of Design and Construction

Description of services sought: Design Services 360 Adams Street - Roof Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021

End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative City Planner, Administrative City Planner NM, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Chemical Engineer, Assistant Civil Engineer, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Urban Designer, Associate Project Manager, Associate Urban Designer, Civil Engineer, Civil Engineer Intern, City Planner, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Landscape Architect, Mechanical Engineer, Mechanical Engineering Intern, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 618

Agency: Department of Design and Construction

Description of services sought: Construction Management 360 Adams Street - Roof

Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021

End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineer, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Mechanical Engineer, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Surveyor

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 697 Agency: Department of Design and Construction

Description of services sought: Resident Engineering Inspection Services 360 Adams Street - Roof

Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021

End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative

Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant

Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineer, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Mechanical Engineer, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Surveyor Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 697

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Consultant Contract Administration: research, training, data analysis, and expert testimony, including services related to damages for delay claims, 360 Adams Street - Roof Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021

End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Accountant, Administrative Accountant, Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative City Planner, Administrative City Planner NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Manager, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Administrative Staff Analyst, Architect, Architectural Intern, Assistant Architect, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Urban Designer, Associate Investigator, Associate Project Manager, Associate Urban Designer, City Planner, Civil Engineer, Civil Engineering Intern, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Estimator (General Construction), Estimator (Mechanical), Investigator, Landscape Architect, Management Auditor, Mechanical Engineer, Mechanical Engineer Inter, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Senior Estimator – General Construction, Supervisor of Electrical Installations & Maintenance Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 767

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Construction Support Services: asbestos, boring, testing, monitoring, sampling, site safety, inspections and environmental, 360 Adams Street - Roof Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Asbestos Hazard Investigator, Assistant Chemical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineering Intern, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Engineering Technician, Geologist, Industrial Hygienist, Project Manager, Surveyor

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 428 Agency: Department of Design and Construction

Description of services sought: Contract Administration: fiscal audit, reconciliation of accounts, preparation of change orders, analyzing and finalizing financial transactions and contract close out, 360 Adams Street - Roof

Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021

End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Accountant, Administrative Accountant, Administrative Architect, Administrative Administrative Administrative City Planner, Administrative City Planner NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Davider Manager Administrative Manager, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Administrative Staff Analyst, Architect, Architectural Intern, Assistant Architect, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Urban Designer, Associate Investigator, Associate Project Manager, Associate Urban Designer, City Planner, Civil Engineer, Civil Engineering Intern, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Estimator (General Construction), Estimator (Mechanical), Investigator, Landscape Architect, Management Auditor, Mechanical Engineer, Mechanical Engineer Inter, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Senior Estimator – General Construction, Supervisor of Electrical Installations & Maintenance Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 767

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Community Outreach Consultants 360 Adams Street - Roof Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021

End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: None Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 0

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Owner's Representative Requirements Contracts 360 Adams Street - Roof

Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineer, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Mechanical Engineer, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Surveyor Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 697

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Design Services 125-01 Queens Boulevard- Elevator Modernization Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative

Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative City Planner, Administrative City Planner NM, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Chemical Engineer, Assistant Civil Engineer, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Urban Designer, Associate Project Manager, Associate Urban Designer, Civil Engineer, Civil Engineer Intern, City Planner, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Landscape Architect, Mechanical Engineer, Mechanical Engineering Intern, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 618

Agency: Department of Design and Construction

Description of services sought: Construction Management 125-01 Queens Boulevard- Elevator Modernization Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineer, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Mechanical Engineer, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Surveyor Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 697

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Resident Engineering Inspection Services 125-01 Queens Boulevard, Elevator Modernization

Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineer, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Mechanical Engineer, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Surveyor Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 697

Agency: Department of Design and Construction

Description of services sought: Consultant Contract Administration: research, training, data analysis, and expert testimony, including services related to damages for delay claims, 125-01 Queens Boulevard-Elevator Modernization Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021

End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP

Administrative Accountant, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative City Planner, Administrative City Planner

NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Manager, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Administrative Staff Analyst, Architect, Architectural Intern, Assistant Architect, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Urban Designer, Associate Investigator, Associate Project Manager, Associate Urban Designer, City Planner, Civil Engineer, Civil Engineering Intern, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Estimator (General Construction), Estimator (Mechanical), Investigator, Landscape Architect, Management Auditor, Mechanical Engineer, Mechanical Engineer Inter, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Senior Estimator – General Construction, Supervisor of Electrical Installations & Maintenance Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 767

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Construction Support Services: asbestos, boring, testing, monitoring, sampling, site safety, inspections and environmental, 125-01 Queens Boulevard- Elevator Modernization Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Asbestos Hazard Investigator, Assistant Chemical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineering Intern, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Engineering Technician, Geologist, Industrial Hygienist, Project Manager, Surveyor

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 428

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Contract Administration: fiscal audit, reconciliation of accounts, preparation of change orders, analyzing and finalizing financial transactions and contract close out, 125-01 Queens **Boulevard- Elevator Modernization**

Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021

End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Accountant, Administrative Accountant, Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative City Planner, Administrative City Planner NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Manager, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Administrative Staff Analyst, Architect, Architectural Intern, Assistant Architect, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Urban Designer, Associate Investigator, Associate Project Manager, Associate Urban Designer, City Planner, Civil Engineer, Civil Engineering Intern, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Estimator (General Construction), Estimator (Mechanical), Investigator, Landscape Architect, Management Auditor, Mechanical Engineer, Mechanical Engineer Inter, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Senior Estimator - General Construction, Supervisor of Electrical Installations & Maintenance Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 767

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Community Outreach Consultants 125-01 Queens Boulevard- Elevator Modernization Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: None Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 0

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Owner's Representative Requirements Contracts 125-01 Queens Boulevard- Elevator Modernization Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineer, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager, Intern, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Mechanical Engineer, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Surveyor Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 697

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Design Services 125-01 125-01 Queens Boulevard- Fire Alarms Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative City Planner, Administrative City Planner NM, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Chemical Engineer, Assistant Civil Engineer, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Urban Designer, Associate Project Manager, Associate Urban Designer, Civil Engineer, Civil Engineer Intern, City Planner, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Landscape Architect, Mechanical Engineer, Mechanical Engineering Intern, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 618 Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Construction Management 125-01 125-01 Queens Boulevard- Fire Alarms Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineer, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Mechanical Engineer, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Surveyor Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 697 Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Resident Engineering Inspection Services 125-01 125-01 Queens Boulevard- Fire Alarms Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineer, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Mechanical Engineer, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Surveyor Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 697 Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Consultant Contract Administration: research, training, data analysis, and expert testimony, including services related to damages for delay claims, 125-01 125-01 Queens **Boulevard- Fire Alarms** Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Accountant, Administrative Accountant, Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative City Planner, Administrative City Planner NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Manager, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Administrative Staff Analyst, Architect, Architectural Intern, Assistant Architect, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Urban Designer, Associate Investigator, Associate Project Manager, Associate Urban Designer, City Planner, Civil Engineer, Civil Engineering Intern, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Estimator (General Construction), Estimator (Mechanical), Investigator, Landscape Architect, Management Auditor, Mechanical Engineer, Mechanical Engineer Inter, Project Manager,

Project Manager Intern, Senior Estimator – General Construction,

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 767

Supervisor of Electrical Installations & Maintenance

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Construction Support Services: asbestos, boring, testing, monitoring, sampling, site safety, inspections and environmental, 125-01 125-01 Queens Boulevard- Fire Alarms Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Asbestos Hazard Investigator, Assistant Chemical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineering Intern, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Engineering Technician, Geologist, Industrial Hygienist, Project Manager, Surveyor

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 428

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Contract Administration: fiscal audit, reconciliation of accounts, preparation of change orders, analyzing and finalizing financial transactions and Contract Close Out, 125-01 125-01 Queens Boulevard- Fire Alarms

Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021

End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Accountant, Administrative Accountant, Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative City Planner, Administrative City Planner NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Staff Analyst, Architect, Architectural Intern, Assistant Architect, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Urban Designer, Associate Investigator, Associate Project Manager, Associate Urban Designer, City Planner, Civil Engineer, Civil Engineering Intern, Electrical Engineer, Estimator (General Construction), Estimator (Mechanical), Investigator, Landscape Architect, Management Auditor, Mechanical Engineer, Mechanical Engineer Inter, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Senior Estimator – General Construction, Supervisor of Electrical Installations & Maintenance Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 767

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Community Outreach Consultants 125-01 125-01 Queens Boulevard- Fire Alarms Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 0

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Owner's Representative Requirements Contracts 125-01 125-01 Queens Boulevard- Fire Alarms Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineer, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Mechanical Engineer, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Surveyor Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 697 Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Design Services 88-11 Sutphin Boulevard Fire Alarm System Upgrade Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative City Planner, Administrative Cit Planner NM, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect,

Assistant Architect, Assistant Chemical Engineer, Assistant Civil Engineer, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Urban Designer, Associate Project Manager, Associate Urban Designer, Civil Engineer, Civil Engineer Intern, City Planner, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Landscape Architect, Mechanical Engineer, Mechanical Engineering Intern, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 618

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Construction Management 88-11 Sutphin Boulevard Fire Alarm System Upgrade

Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021

End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP

Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineer, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Mechanical Engineer, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Surveyor

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 697

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Resident Engineering Inspection Services 88-11 Sutphin Boulevard Fire Alarm System Upgrade Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026 Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landmarks Preservationist, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Architect, Assistant Architect, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineer, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Highways and Sewers Inspector, Mechanical Engineer, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Surveyor

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 697

Agency: Department of Design and Construction Description of services sought: Consultant Contract Administration: research, training, data analysis, and expert testimony, including services related to damages for delay claims, 88-11 Sutphin Boulevard Fire Alarm System Upgrade

Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021

End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Accountant, Administrative Accountant, Administrative Architect, Administrative Architect NM, Administrative City Planner, Administrative City Planner NM, Administrative Construction Project Manager, Administrative Engineer, Administrative Engineer NM, Administrative Landscape Architect, Administrative Landscape Architect NM, Administrative Manager, Administrative Project Manager, Administrative Project Manager NM, Administrative Staff Analyst, Architect, Architectural Intern, Assistant Architect, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Civil Engineer, Assistant Electrical Engineer, Assistant Landscape Architect, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Urban Designer, Associate Investigator, Associate Project Manager, Associate Urban Designer, City Planner, Civil Engineer, Civil Engineering Intern, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Electrical Engineer, Estimator (General Construction), Estimator (Mechanical), Investigator, Landscape Architect, Management Auditor, Mechanical Engineer, Mechanical Engineer Inter, Project Manager, Project Manager Intern, Senior Estimator - General Construction, Supervisor of Electrical Installations & Maintenance Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 767

Agency: Department of Design and Construction

Description of services sought: Construction Support Services: asbestos, boring, testing, monitoring, sampling, site safety, inspections and environmental, 88-11 Sutphin Boulevard Fire Alarm System Upgrade Start date of the proposed contract: 12/1/2021 End date of the proposed contract: 9/30/2026

Method of solicitation the agency, intends to utilize: RFP

Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: Asbestos Hazard Investigator, Assistant Chemical Engineer, Assistant Mechanical Engineer, Assistant Civil Engineer, Associate Project Manager, Civil Engineering Intern, Construction Project Manager, Construction Project Manager Intern, Engineering Technician, Geologist, Industrial Hygienist, Project Manager, Surveyor

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 428

• s29 WONG

KENNY

Z 56101

\$17.6500 APPOINTED YES 07/11/21 261

<u>Notice of Intent to Issue New Solicitation(s) Not Included in FY</u> 2021 Annual Contracting Plan and Schedule

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Mayor will be issuing the following solicitation(s) not included in the FY 2021 Annual Contracting Plan and Schedule that is published, pursuant to New York City Charter § 312(a):

Agency: Department of Transportation Description of Services to be Procured: Vehicle Barrier Replacement Upgrades Start date of the proposed contract: 4/1/2022

End date of the proposed contract: 3/30/2023

Method of solicitation the agency intends to utilize: CSB

Personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: None

Headcount of personnel in substantially similar titles within agency: 0

s29

CHANGES IN PERSONNEL

			7	OR PERIOD ENDIN	IC 07/22/21			
			TITLE	OR PERIOD ENDIN	NG 07/23/21			
NAME				SALARY	ACTION	PROV	EFF DATE	AGENC
CUA	DARYLL	в	10084	\$80000.0000				
DAVID	GLENFORD		40562	\$88463.0000	APPOINTED	YES	04/25/21	125
DINZES	ELYSA		10084	\$100038.0000	RETIRED	NO	07/21/18	125
				INANCIAL INFO S				
				OR PERIOD ENDIN	NG 07/23/21			
NAME			TITLE	SALARY	ACTION	זיספת	שייגה ששש	ACENC
BAUM	HELMUTH	м						
BINDER				\$88134.0000	RETIRED	NO	07/16/21	127
GONZALEZ	JOHNNY	-	10050	\$88134.0000 \$142846.0000	RETIRED	NO	01/01/21	127
TAN	SAMUEL	N	13621	\$91589.0000	APPOINTED	NO	06/13/21	127
				INDEPENDENT BUI	GET OFFICE			
				OR PERIOD ENDIN	NG 07/23/21			
			TITLE					
NAME			NUM				EFF DATE	
SWEETING	GEORGE		0671A	\$216884.0000	INCREASE	YES	07/04/21	132
				CIVIL SERVICE C	OMMIGGION			
				OR PERIOD ENDIN				
			TITLE	OK FERIOD ENDIN	G 07/23/21			
NAME			NUM	SALARY	ACTION	PROV	EFF DATE	AGENC
	METOM	R		\$82137.0000				
			Т	AXI & LIMOUSINE	COMMISSION			
			F	OR PERIOD ENDIN	IG 07/23/21			
			TITLE					
NAME			NUM	SALARY	ACTION	PROV	EFF DATE	AGENC
AFARI	AWURA AM	A	10209	\$15.5000 \$135310.0000 \$47028.0000	RESIGNED	YES	12/19/19	156
FINKELSTEIN	ERIC	г	10079	\$135310.0000	RESIGNED	YES	06/21/20	156
GOMEZ	STEVEN		35116	\$47028.0000	RESIGNED	YES	07/07/21	156
PAUL ROMERO	SHERBUNE SERGIO		30087		RESIGNED	NO	05/20/21	156
SHARMA				\$48878.0000				
Dimitrar	mindi		55110	<i>Q1007010000</i>	REDIGNED	100	07707721	100
				PUBLIC SERVIC	E CORPS			
			F	OR PERIOD ENDIN				
			TITLE					
NAME			NUM	SALARY	ACTION	PROV	EFF DATE	AGENC
ABDULLAH	ALEXANDE	т	10209	\$11.5000				
				OFFICE OF LABOR				
				OR PERIOD ENDIN	NG 07/23/21			
			TITLE					
NAME			NUM					
ABDUL-KARIM	SADIYYA		60888	\$39170.0000	RESIGNED	NO	07/01/21	214
			שת	PT OF YOUTH & C	אזמים עופת אוארי	,		
				OR PERIOD ENDIN		•		
			TITLE					
NAME			NUM	SALARY	ACTION	PROV	EFF DATE	AGENC
ADON	AURA	М		\$17.6500				
CALLE			1020B		APPOINTED			
CHEN CHAN	JUAN		1020B	\$19.3000	APPOINTED	YES	07/06/21	261
COOPER	REINERE	A	56101		APPOINTED			
FREDERIQUE		Ρ	12158					
JOHNSON	ASHLEI		56101		RESIGNED			
LEE	ADRIAN				APPOINTED			
MAGIERA-GUY	ANDREA	R				YES		
QIU	MARY	•	56101		APPOINTED			
TEJEDA JR	JUAN	M	56101	s17.6500	APPOINTED	YES	07/06/21	261

THE CITY RECORD

GARRETT

9POLL

6671

\$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/21 300

			TITLE			_			BEST
NAME ABELLA - BARBOS	CHEBY	A	NUM 9POLL	SALARY \$1.0000	ACTION APPOINTED	PROV YES	EFF DATE 01/01/21	AGENCY 300	BEVZIUK BIGELOW
ADIGUN	ISIAKA	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BIRNBAUM
AFOLABI	LYDIA	т	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BLAIN
AGARD	PETRA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BLANCO
AGUILAR	DIANA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BLUMENBE
AHAMMAD	LOTIFA	_	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BOLEN
AHMED	PROVAT	S	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300 300	BOOKER BOONE
AHMED AKPABIE	ZILL E H FREDERIC		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300	BORREL
AKTER	SHAHILA	5	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BORTNIK
AKTER	SHAIREEN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BOUCARD
ALCEQUIEZ	SOPHI		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BOWEN
ALEXANDER	ANJALIE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BOWLING
ALEXANDER	SURSATTI		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BOYD
ALFARO	AXEL		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	
ALI ALI	ELIJAH SOHA	т	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300	
ALICEA	HAYDEE	•	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	
ALKHULAQI	MYAR		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	NAME
ALKINS	NATASHA	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BRAKSDAL
ALLEN	MELISSA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BRANDY
ALLEN	TAMARA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BRATHWAI
ALLEYNE	CARLOS	М	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BREATHWA
ALMENGO	GABRIELA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BRISON
ALMODOVAR ALMOZAYED	JEANIE TAQWA		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300	BROMELL BROWN
ALMOZAYED ALTIDOR	MICHELET		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BROWN
ALTIDOR GERMAIN			9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BROWN
ALVAREZ	MERCEDES	F	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BROWN
ALY SR	AZZA	ĸ	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BROWN
ANDERSON	ANSELMO	S	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BROWN
ANDHA	ABDUL	H	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BROWN
ANDRADE	CARLOS	М	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BROWN JR
ANGUS APONTE	LYNSLEY	A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/21	300 300	BROWNE-M BRUCE
APONTE AR-SHAD	MARTHA KHAALIQ	s	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300	BRUCE
ARCE	CORDELL	٥	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BRYSON
ARCHIBALD	MARGARET	С	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BU
AREFIN	TASMIA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	07/08/21	300	BUKHANOV
ASIF	NOOR		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BURGOS
ASOMOZA	ISABEL		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BURKE
ASTUDILLO	LUZ	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	07/16/21	300	BURKE
ATKINS	ERICA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	BURNS
ATTARI ATWELL	HANIEH KHADIJAH		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300	BUSACCO
ATWOOD	DIANE	т	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CADE
AUSTIN	JAMAICA	s	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CAMARA
AUSTIN	RASHEEN	L	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CAMHI
AVALOS	KIMBERLY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CAMPBELL
AVINERI	LIZETTE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CAMPUZAN
AYALA	DEBORAH		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CARDENAS
									CARDENAS
				OF ELECTION PERIOD ENDIN					CARDONA
			FOR	PERIOD ENDIN	G 07/23/21				CAREL CARLETON
NAME			NUM	SALARY	ACTION	PROV	EFF DATE	AGENCY	CARMELIA
AZOR	JAMES		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CARMEN
BABB	ASHANTI	ĸ	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CARMONA
BACCHUS	REBEKAH	R	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CAROLL
BAGAYOKO	ABOUBAKA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CARPENTE
BAIG	MIRZA	Т	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CARRINGT
BAILEY	JAKABA	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CARTER
BAILEY KIZZIE BALABAN	BRENTON MARY	J A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300	CARTER CARTY
BALABAN BALDEO	ZAMINA	л	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CARTI
BARETI	TANCREDI		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CATALANO
BARKER	PETER	в	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CATIVO-R
BARNES	ANGELA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CENTENO
BARROW	DENISE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CHACKER
BARTHOLOMEW		Ρ	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CHANO
BARTON	EDWARD	L	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	
BATES	JEMEL		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	
BATISTA BATISTA TIBURCI	DENISSE		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300	
BATISTA TIBURCI BAURA	TURNA	U	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	NAME
BAUTISTA	DONNA		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CHAPPELL
BAUTISTA	JOANNA	ĸ		\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CHARLES
BEAUVIL	ISYSS		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CHARLES
	SIMONE	М	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CHARLES
BECKER	CARMEN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CHARTER
BECKER BEDOYA	KAZI		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CHAVES-I
BEDOYA BEGUM			9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CHEEMA
BEDOYA BEGUM BEGUM	SANJEDA	-		\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CHEN
BEDOYA BEGUM BEGUM BEKIER	DOROTA	м	9POLL		1000		01/01/		a
BEDOYA BEGUM BEGUM BEKIER BELL	DOROTA SUMURA	M A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CHEN
BEDOYA BEGUM BEGUM BEKIER BELL BELLIARD	DOROTA SUMURA TIANY		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CHEN
BEDOYA BEGUM BEGUM BEKIER BELL BELLIARD BENNETT	DOROTA SUMURA TIANY ANNA		9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300	CHEN CHEN
BEDOYA BEGUM BEGUM BEKIER BELL BELLIARD	DOROTA SUMURA TIANY		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	CHEN

RTHOUMIEUX	GARRETT		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ST	JEROME	G	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ST	SHAUN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
VZIUK	DENYS		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
		-						
GELOW	EMILY	т	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RNBAUM	AARON	z	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
AIN	CHRISTIN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ANCO	SOFIA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
UMENBERG	NATHAN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
		-						
LEN	AVIVA	F	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
OKER	MARY	F	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ONE	SCHCORA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RREL	DESHAUND		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RTNIK	VLADIMIR		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
UCARD	JOHANNE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
WEN	YVETTE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
WLING	RANDOLPH		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
YD	RODNEY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
				OF ELECTION				
ME			TITLE NUM	SALARY	ACTION	PROV	EFF DATE	AGENCY
	DOGED							
AKSDALE	ROGER		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ANDY	CHARLYN	F	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ATHWAITE	JADE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
EATHWAITE	STEPHANI		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ISON	WILBERT		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
OMELL	ANDRE	М	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
OWN	FRANCES	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
OWN	JHONTE	М	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
OWN	KIANA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
					APPOINTED		01/01/21	
OWN	LIAM		9POLL	\$1.0000		YES		300
OWN	SHANIA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
OWN	SOLOMON		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
OWN	TAEQUAN	J	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
OWN JR	ROBERT		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
OWNE-MUNZ	CHRISTIN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
UCE	ERIK	С	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
UTON	IMANIE	S	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
YSON	BEVERLEY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
	DINA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
KHANOVA	ALISA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RGOS	RACHELLE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RKE	AARON	J	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RKE	EMMANUEL		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
				•				
RNS	MICHAEL	L	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
SACCO	JEANNETT		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
BALLERO	MELANIE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
DE	TAM	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
		~						
MARA	FANTA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
MHI	NATASHA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
MPBELL BRUCE	CINDY	С	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
MPUZANO	TERRY	м	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RDENAS	IRMA			\$1.0000				300
			9POLL	•	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	
RDENAS	WILSON		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RDONA	JEZABEL		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
REL	ALEXIS	М	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RLETON	EVAN	в	9POLL		APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
				•				
RMELIA	ALEXIS	С	9POLL		APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RMEN	MATTHEW		9POLL		APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RMONA	CHRIS		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ROLL	YUJIN	G	9POLL	•	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RPENTER	JEAN		9POLL	\$1.0000		YES	01/01/21	300
				•				
RRINGTON	JUNE		9POLL	•	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RTER	BRIDGET	K	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RTER	ELIZABET		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RTY	CHAVELLE		9POLL		APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
STRO	JOAN		9POLL		APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
TALANO	ISABELLA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
TIVO-RUIZ	GILDA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
NTENO	DAZHALEE	0	9POLL		APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
		-						
ACKER	HILARIE		9POLL		APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ANO	CHRISTIA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
			BOARD	OF ELECTION	POLL WORKERS			
			FOR	PERIOD ENDIN				
			TITLE					
ME			NUM	SALARY	ACTION	PROV	EFF DATE	AGENCY
APPELL	DEBORAH	L	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ARLES	CLAIRE	w	9POLL		APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
		"						
ARLES	MATTHEW		9POLL		APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ARLES	TREVIS		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ARTER	CLINTON	D	9POLL	\$1.0000		YES	01/01/21	300
		-						
AVES-IVES	CLARA		9POLL		APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
EEMA	SHAHZAD		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
EN	AMY		9POLL		APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
EN			9POLL		APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
	ANNY							
EN	ASHLEY	М	9POLL	\$1.0000		YES	01/01/21	300
EN	BONNIE	Y	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
EN	ERICA		9POLL	\$1.0000		YES	01/01/21	300
		P		•				
EN	JIA	R	9POLL		APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
EN	KAREN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300

DIN

WAJIH

K 9POLL

U 9POLL

\$1.0000 APPOINTED

YES 01/01/21 300

BOARD OF ELECTION POLL WORKERS FOR PERIOD ENDING 07/23/21

CHEN	LE PING	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	I
CHEN	LUCY	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	
CHEN	MANYI	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	
CHEN	MICHAEL	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	NAME
CHEN	QIANBING	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DIPHO
CHEN	RICKY	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DOMINGUEZ
CHEN	SHILIN	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DONG
CHEN	SI	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DOOKIE
CHEN	XIAOEN	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DORISCAR
CHEN	YANXIONG	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DORLETTE
CHEN	YINGSHU	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DORT
CHEN	YUEYI	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DOUGLAS
CHEN	YUWEN	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DOVER
CHEN	YUXING	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DOYLE
CHEN	ZHIDA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DU
CHEN III	XIAO FEN	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DU
CHENG	JULIANNE	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DUAH
CHENG	YA JING	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DUFRESNE
CHERY	NICHOL I	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DUMN
CHERY	RICARDO \	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DUNCAN
CHEUNG	JACKIE	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DURANT
CHIANG	PEGGY Y	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DURING
CHIN	WING C		\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DUVAL
CHIU	MANSUM	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DYBIEC
CHOWDHURY	SONALY	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DYER
CHRONOWITZ	MARK C		\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	DYMAN
CHU	YUNZHI	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	EASTON
CHUCHLA	MILAI I		\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	EDMUND
CHUI	KATHERIN	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	EDWARDS
CHUI	WAN	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	ELIZABETH
CHULICHKOV	YAROSLAV	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	ELLIS
CLAYTON	ROSITA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	ELSAYED
CLENNON	CHARLES A		\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	ERVIN
CODRINGTON	MICHAEL	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	ESPINOSA
COLA	DONOVAN E	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	ESPOSITO
COLE	GABRIELL H		\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	ETIENNE
COMER	KEITH I	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	ETIENNE
								EVANS
			OF ELECTION		5			FAIZ JR
			PERIOD ENDIN	IG 07/23/21				FALLIN
		TITLE						FAN
NAME		NUM	SALARY	ACTION		EFF DATE	AGENCY	FANG
COMMISSIONG	JERWAN X		\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	FANTUCCHIO
CONDELL	ANDREW	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	FARLEY
								FARLEY-SMITH
CONNELL	JAHMYL	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	
COOPER	DENNIS I	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300	FATKULOV
COOPER CORDIDO	DENNIS I VERONICA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELBERMAN
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELBERMAN FELIZ
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELBERMAN FELIZ FELTON
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA I KELLY M	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELBERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELBERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUEIAS	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELBERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FEITON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLANIK
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRACHIOLO	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELBERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESCENTE	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA I KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL I AKIMI	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FEITON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLANIK
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESCENTE CRESPO	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA I KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL I AKIMI VICTORIA I	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FEITON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLANIK
COOPER CORDIDO CORRONA CORREA COSTELLO COUSSA COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESENTE CRESPO CRIST	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FEITON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLANIK
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAWFORD CRESCENTE CRESPO CRIST CRUZ	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELTZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAWFORD CRESCENTE CRESPO CRIST CRUZ CUURIE	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA I KELLY MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLANIK FLASH
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA CRACHIOLO CRANFORD CRACENTE CRESPO CRIST CRUZ CUURIE DA COSTA	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA I KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL I AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD I TISHA	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	$\begin{array}{c} 01/01/21\\$	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELBERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH NAME FLASH
COOPER CORDIDO CORDA CORREA COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESECENTE CRESPO CRIST CRUZ CURRIE DA COSTA DALEY	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	$\begin{array}{c} 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ 01/01/21\\ \end{array}$	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FEINSTEIN FEILZ FEITON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLANIK FLASH NAME FLUKER FLUKER FLYNN
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAWFORD CRESCENTE CRESPO CRIST CRUZ CURRIE DA COSTA DALEY DANDIA	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL (9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	$\begin{array}{c} 01/01/21\\$	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINNIGAN FLASH FLASH FLASH FLUKER FLYNN FONG
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAWFORD CRESCENTE CRESPO CREST CRUZ CURRIE DA COSTA DALEY DANDIA	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA I KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL G ASAD	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	$\begin{array}{c} 01/01/21\\$	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELTZ FELTON FENG FINNIGAN FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FONS
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESCENTE CRESFO CRIST CRUZ CURRIE DA COSTA DALEY DANDIA DANDIA DANIELS	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL Q ASAD	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FEIDZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH NAME FLUKER FLYNN FONG FONSECA FOSTER
COOPER CORDIDO CORDA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESEONC CRESPO CRIST CRUZ CURIE DA COSTA DALEY DANDIA DANDIA DANIELS DAS	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AARON JULIA GAIL F AARON JULIA GAIL F RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL G ASAD KALISHA Z AMIAN	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	$\begin{array}{c} 01/01/21\\$	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FEINSTEIN FEILZ FEITON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH NAME FLUKER FLUKER FLYNN FONS FONSECA FOSTER FRANCILLION-A
COOPER CORDIDO CORDA COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAWFORD CRESCENTE CRESPO CRESPO CRIST CRUZ CURITE DA COSTA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DAS	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GALL F GALL F XICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F SHERRELL ABDUL Q ASAD KALISHA Z AMIAN	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	$\begin{array}{c} 01/01/21\\$	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINNIGAN FLANIK FLANIK FLASH NAME FLUKER FLINN FONG FONSECA FONSECA FONSECA FRANCILLION-A FRANCIS
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAWFORD CRESCENTE CRESPO CREST CRUZ CURRIE DA COSTA DALEY DANDIA DANDIA DANTELS DAS	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA I KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL Q ASAD KALISHA A AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELTZ FELTON FENG FINNIGAN FLASH FLAS
COOPER CORDIDO CORDA CORREA COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESCENTE CRESPO CRIST CRUZ CURRIE DA COSTA DALEY DANDIA DANIELS DAS DAS DAS DAS	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL C ASAD KALISHA F ANIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH NAME FLUKER FLUKER FLYNN FONG FONSECA FOSTER FRANCISION-A FRANCIS FRANCIS-MCKEN
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESEONC CRESFO CRIST CRUZ CURRIE DA COSTA DALEY DANDIA DANDIA DANIELS DAS DAS DAS DAVIDSON DAVIS	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIN GAIL F AKIN ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL G ASAD KALISHA Z AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE ANITA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	$\begin{array}{c} 01/01/21\\$	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FEINSTEIN FEITZ FEITON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH NAME FLUKER FLYNN FONS FONSECA FOSTER FRANCIS FRANCIS FRANCIS FRANCIS-MCKEN
COOPER CORDIDO CORDA COREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAWFORD CRESECENTE CRESPO CRESPO CREST CRUZ CURIE DA COSTA DALEY DANDIA DANDIA DANIELS DAS DAS DAS DAVIS	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL Q ASAD KALISHA F AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE ANITA SHARMEIK I	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	$\begin{array}{c} 01/01/21\\$	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLANIK FLASH NAME FLUKER FLINN FONG FONSECA FONSECA FRANCIS FRANCIS FRANCIS - MCKEN FRANCO SANDI FRANCOS
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA COREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAWFORD CRESCENTE CRESPO CRESCENTE CRESPO CRIST CRUZ CURRIE DA COSTA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANIES DAS DAS DAS DAVIS DAVIS	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA I KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AARON JULIA GAIL F AARON IGAIL F RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL G ASAD AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE ANITA SHARMEIK I SHARMEIK I	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELTZ FELTON FENG FINNIGAN FLANK FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FONG FONSECA FONSECA FONSECA FRANCLLION-A FRANCIS FRANCIS FRANCIS FRANCOIS FRANKLIN
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESCENTE CRESPO CRIST CRUZ CURRIE DA COSTA DALEY DANDIA DANDIA DANIELS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAVIS DAVIS DAVIS DAVIS DAVIS DAVIS	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GALL F AARIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL C ASAD KALISHA Z AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE ANITA SHARMEIK I TYRA CORAL F	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FEIDERMAN FEILZ FEITON FENG FINGALL FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLUKER FLYNN FONG FONSECA FOSTER FRANCIS FRANCIS FRANCIS FRANCIS FRANCIS FRANCIS FRANCIS FRANCIS FRANCIS FRANCIS
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESEO CRIST CRUZ CRESPO CRIST CRUZ CURRIE DA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANIES DAS DAS DAS DAS DAVIDSON DAVIS DAVIS DAVIS DAWLEY DAWLEY DAWLEY DA FRIAS	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AARON JULIA GAIL F AARON JULIA GAIL F RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA ABDUL G ASAD ANDSHILA DIPITA TIE ANITA SHERRELL ABUL G CORAL F YUVERKYS F	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/0	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FEIDERMAN FEILZ FEITON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH NAME FLUKER FLYNN FONS FONSECA FOSTER FRANCIS
COOPER CORDIDO CORDA CORDA COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COVARUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAWFORD CRESPO CRE	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL Q ASAD KALISHA F AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE AMIAN SHARMEIK I TYRA CORAL F YUVERKYS F SANDRIEL	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	$\begin{array}{c} 01/01/21\\$	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLANIK FLASH FLASH FLASH FLUKER FLINN FONG FONSECA FOSTER FRANCIS
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA COREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAWFORD CRESCENTE CRESPO CRESCENTE CRESPO CRIST CRUZ CURRIE DA COSTA DALEY DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DA	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA I KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AARON JULIA GAIL F RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL G ASAD KALISHA Z AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE ANITA SHARMEIK I SHARMEIK I TYRA CORAL F SANDRIEK	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINNIGAN FLANIK FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FONG FONSECA FONSECA FONSECA FRANCIS
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESFO CRESFO CRIST CRUZ CURRIE DA COSTA DALEY DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANIELS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DA	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GALL F AKIMI GALL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL NICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL SHERRELL ABDUL C ASAD KALISHA F AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE ANITA SHARMEIK I TYRA CORAL F YUVERKYS F SANDRIEL LAMRENCE JOANNE C	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH NAME FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FRANCIS
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESFO CRESFO CRESFO CRESFO CRUZ CURRIE DA DAVIS DAVI	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIN GAIL F AKIN ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL G ASAD KALISHA Z AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE ANITA SHARMEIK I TIRA CORAL F YUVERKYS F SAMDRIEL LAWRENCE JOANNE G ROSARIO	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	$\begin{array}{c} 01/01/21\\$	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FEIDERMAN FEILZ FEITON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLANIK FLASH PLASH FLUKER FLYNN FONS FONSECA FOSTER FRANCIS
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORDEA COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSEA CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESECENTE CRESEO CRES	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL G ASAD KALISHA F AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE AMIAN ANUSHILA SHARMEIK I TYRA CORAL F SUPERIOR SANDRIEL LAWRENCE JOANNE C COSARIO WILLIAM	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/0	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLANIK FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FONG FONSECA FOSTER FRANCIS
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORDEA COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARRUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAWFORD CRESCENTE CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRIST CRUZ CURRIE DA COSTA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DA	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA I KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AARON JULIA GAIL F RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL C ASAD KALISHA J AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE SHARMEIK I TYRA CORAL F YUVERKYS F SANDRIEL LAWRENCE JOANNE C ROSARIO WILLIAM ASTER	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FONG FONSECA FONSECA FONSECA FRANCIS
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESFO CRESFO CRESFO CRIST CRUZ CURIE DA COSTA DALEY DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANIES DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAVIS DE FRIAS DE FRIAS DE FRIAS DE FRIAS DE FRIAS DE FRIAS DE FRIAS	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDU C ASAD XHERRELL ABDU C ASAD TIE ANITA SHERRELL ADUL C CORAL F YUVERKYS F SANDRIEL SANDRIEL JOANNE C ROSARIO WILLIAM ASTER KRYSTLE	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH NAME FLASH NAME FLUKER FLYNN FONS FONSECA FOSTER FRANCIS F
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO CRESE	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIN GAIL F AKIN ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA ABDUL G ASAD ABDUL G ASAD ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE ANITA SHERRELL ABDUL G ASAD CORAL F YUVERKYS F SAMDRIEL LAWRENCE JOANNE G ROSARIO WILLIAM ASTER KRYSTE NATHENA F	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELEZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLANIK FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLUKER FLYNN FONG FONSECA FOSTER FRANCIS FRANS FR
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORDEA COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTA COVARUTBIAS CRACHIOLO CRANFORD CRESCONCE CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CONTE DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANDIA DANIES DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAS DAVIS DE LALCRUZ DE LALDADERE DE LOS SANTOS DE MEDICI DELADO DELGADO DELGADO DENG	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M ARRIE AARON GAIL F AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA ABDUL G ASAD KALISHA F AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE SHARMEIK I TYRA CORAL F SHARMEIK I TYRA CORAL F SANDRIEL LAWRENCE JOANNE C COSARIO WILLIAM ASTER KRYSTLE NATHENA F WANQIN	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLANIK FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLUKER FLINN FONG FONSECA FOSTER FRANCIS FRANCI
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA COVARUBIAS CRACHIOLO CRAMFORD CRESFO CRESFO CRESFO CRIST CRUZ CURATE DA COSTA DALEY DANDIA DANIELS DAS DANIA DANIELS DAS DAVIS DE LACRUZ DE LACRUZ DE LACRUZ DE LACRUZ DE DAVIS DE LACRUZ DE LACRUZ DE DAVIS DE DAVIS DE LACRUZ DE DAVIS DE DAVIS	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA I KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AARON JULIA GAIL F RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISABEL RICHARD F TISABEL ABDUL C ASAD KALISHA J AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE SHARMEIK I TYRA CORAL F SHARMEIK I TYRA CORAL F UUVERKYS F SANDRIEL LAWRENCE JOANNE C ROSARIO WILLIAM ASTER KXSTLE NATHENA F WANQIN	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.0000000000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLUKER FLYNN FONG FONSECA FOSTER FRANCIS FRANC
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA CRACHOLO CRESPO	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA P KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AARON JULIA GAIL F AARON JULIA GAIL F AARON JULIA SHERELL ABDUL C ASAD ANIAN AUSHILA SHERRELL ABDUL C ASAD ANIAN AUSHILA DIPITA TIE ANITA SHARMEIK I YUVERKYS F SANDRIEL JOANNE C ROSARIO WILLIAM ASTER KRYSTLE NATHENA F WANQIN GUNTHEN F WANQIN GUNTHEN F WANQIN	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.0000000000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH NAME FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FRANCIS FRANS FRANCI
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA CRACHIOLO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRUZ CURRIE DA DAVIS DE NAS DE NAS	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIN GAIL F AKIN ISABEL ISABEL ISABEL ISABEL ACHEL ISABEL ACHEL ASDUL G ASAD KALISHA ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE ANITA SHERRELL ABDUL G ASAD KALISHA INTA SHERRELL ABUL G CORL F UVERKYS F SANDRIEL LAWRENCE JOANNE G ROSARIO WILLIAM ASTER KRYSTLE NATHENA F WANQIN GUNTER V WILLIAM COLLEEN F	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000000 \$1.00000 \$1.0000000000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLANIK FLASH FLASH FLUKER FLYNN FONS FONSECA FOSTER FRANCIS FR
COOPER CORDIDO CORDIDO CORDA COREA COREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTA CONTENE CRESEO CRE	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA ABDUL G ASDO KALISHA M ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE AMIAN ANUSHILA DIPITA TIE SHARMEIK I TYRA CORAL F SANDRIEL LAWRENCE JOANNE C ROSARIO WILLIAM ASTER KRYSTLE NATHENA F WANQIN GUNTHER F WANQIN GUNTHER F WANQIN GUNTHER F	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.0000000000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLANIK FLASH FLASH FLASH FLUKER FLYNN FONG FONSECA FOSTER FRANCIS FRAN
COOPER CORDIDO CORDIDO CORDA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA CRACHOLO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CREST CRUZ CURATE DA DAUIS DAUIS DAUIS DANDIA DANIELS DAS DANIES DAS DAVIS DE FRIAS DE LA CRUZ DE LAUBADERE DE LOS SANTOS DE MEDICI DEARE DEGEFU DEGEFU DEGEFU DENSON DENSON DENTE	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDU C ASAD KALISHA F ASAD KALISHA F ASAD KALISHA F ASAD KALISHA F ASAD KALISHA F ASAD KALISHA F ASAD CORAL F SANDRIEL JOANNE C JOANNE C CORAL F SANDRIEL JOANNE C JOANNE C ROSARIO WILLIAM ASTER KRYSTLE NATHENA F SANDRIEL JOANNE C COSARIO WILLIAM ASTER	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.0000000000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLUKER FLYNN FONG FONSECA FOSTER FRANCIS GAU GAU GAU GAU GAU GAU GAU GAU GAU GAU
COOPER CORDIDO CORDOVA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA CRACHOLO CRESPO DAVIS DE FRIAS DE	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA P KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKINI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDUL C ASAD XHERRELL ABDUL C ASAD XHIN AUSHILA DIPITA TIE ANITA SHERRELL ADUL C CORAL F YUVERKYS F SANDRIEL CORAL F VUVERKYS F SANDRIEL LAWRENCE JOANNE C ROSARIO WILLIAM ASTER KRYSTLE NATHENA F WANQIN GUNTHEN F WILLIAM COLLEEN F KATHERYN D JOE ENRIQUE F	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.0000000000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELDERMAN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH NAME FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FLUKER FRANCIS GAD GAD GAD GAO GAO GAC GACIA GARCIA GARCIA
COOPER CORDIDO CORDIDO CORDA CORREA COSTELLO COSTELLO COSTELLO COUSSA CRACHOLO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CRESPO CREST CRUZ CURATE DA DAUIS DAUIS DAUIS DANDIA DANIELS DAS DANIES DAS DAVIS DE FRIAS DE LA CRUZ DE LAUBADERE DE LOS SANTOS DE MEDICI DEARE DEGEFU DEGEFU DEGEFU DENSON DENSON DENTE	DENNIS I VERONICA JOSE ALEXANDR ERICA F KELLY M MARIE AARON JULIA GAIL F AKIMI VICTORIA I RACHEL ISABEL RICHARD F TISHA SHERRELL ABDU C ASAD KALISHA F ASAD KALISHA F ASAD KALISHA F ASAD KALISHA F ASAD KALISHA F ASAD KALISHA F ASAD CORAL F SANDRIEL JOANNE C JOANNE C CORAL F SANDRIEL JOANNE C JOANNE C ROSARIO WILLIAM ASTER KRYSTLE NATHENA F SANDRIEL JOANNE C COSARIO WILLIAM ASTER	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.00000 \$1.0000000000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/	300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	FATKULOV FEINSTEIN FELIZ FELTON FENG FINGALL FINNIGAN FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLASH FLUKER FLYNN FONG FONSECA FOSTER FRANCIS GAU GAU GAU GAU GAU GAU GAU GAU GAU GAU

				PERIOD ENDING	3 07/23/21			
ME			TITLE	CALADY	ACTION	DROW	EFF DATE	AGENCY
AME IPHO	NUSRAT	Z	NUM 9POLL	SALARY \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
OMINGUEZ	GEORGE	w	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ONG	SHAOFANG		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
OOKIE	RACHEL	L	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ORISCAR	MARIE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	07/06/21	300
ORLETTE	NAHOMIE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ORT	GUERLINE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
OUGLAS	JAMILA	R	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
OVER	TRAVIS		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
OYLE	ROBERT	F	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
U	JUNHAO		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
U	YANRU	_	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
UAH	MALAWI	J	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
UFRESNE	SUNDY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
UMN UNCAN	CEILIA STEPHEN	A A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300
URANT	MUNTAQUI		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
URING	RICHARD	Ĕ	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
UVAL	DOMINICK	-	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
YBIEC	DANIELLE	J	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
YER	JEMIRE	м	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
YMAN	ASYA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ASTON	MALLORY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
DMUND	PATRICIA	С	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
DWARDS	SADE	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
LIZABETH	ELIZABET		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
LLIS	SHAAYA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
LSAYED	AHMED	Е	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
RVIN	JAMES	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
SPINOSA	ALEJANDR	D	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
SPOSITO	NICOLE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
TIENNE TIENNE	GEORGES RUDOLPH	F	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300
VANS	BRIANA	r	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
AIZ JR	RUMANA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ALLIN	REYNA	I	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
AN	LISA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ANG	BRIAN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ANTUCCHIO	JONATHAN	Е	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ARLEY	JOSE	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ARLEY-SMITH	GWENDOLY	С	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ATKULOV	RONNIE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
EINSTEIN	GABRIEL	Е	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ELBERMAN	LEO		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ELIZ	DENNIS		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
ELTON ENG	EMMA ANITA		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/21 01/01/21	300 300
INGALL	SHAMIKA	А	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
INNIGAN	STEPHEN	~	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
LANIK	LUKE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
LASH	STEDE	s	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
			BOARD	OF ELECTION 1	POLL WORKERS			
			FOR	PERIOD ENDING	3 07/23/21			
			TITLE					
AME				SALARY				
	KHALIA				APPOINTED			
			9POLL		APPOINTED			
	EDWARD SARAH		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	155	01/01/21	200
	JOSEPH				APPOINTED			
RANCILLION-ANT					APPOINTED			
	JEDA				APPOINTED			
	QRENZINA				APPOINTED			
RANCIS-MCKENZI					APPOINTED			
RANCO- SANDIGO			9POLL		APPOINTED		01/01/21	300
D1 10070	N31170		00077	A1 0000	1 DBOTHERD	1170	01/01/01	200

MAVIS

THOMAS

CAMEREN T 9POLL

MICHAEL A 9POLL

THOMAS

JOSEPH V 9POLL

BRIANA

ALEXIS

MATTEO

TWYLAH

CALVIN

LI YONG WEI

ZHEN

BIANCA

ALANA

CHRISSIL

EILEEN

NATASHA

GENERRA

MARIA

GATICA

HEYWARD

GUY

9POLL

G 9POLL

H 9POLL

\$1.0000 APPOINTED

\$1.0000

\$1.0000

\$1.0000

\$1.0000

\$1.0000

\$1.0000

\$1.0000

\$1.0000

\$1.0000

\$1.0000

\$1.0000

\$1.0000

YES

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

07/13/21 300

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

01/01/21 300

YES 01/01/21 300

YES 01/01/21 300

YES 01/01/21 300

300

01/01/21

YES 01/01/21 300

GEE	ALEXANDE	Q	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GEORGE	KHADIJA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GIAN	VINCENT	С	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GIBBON	LEXI-ANN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GIBBS	ANTHONY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GIFFORD	ADOINE	Y	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GILL	REBEKAH		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GLENN	TYLER	N	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GLOVER	LORI	s	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GOLDSHLACK-WOLF	HANNAH	G	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GOLDSTEIN	JEFFREY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GOMEZ	JESSICA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GOMEZ	JOHANA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GOMEZ JR	VICTOR		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GONZALEZ	MARIA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GONZALEZ	MARIA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GONZALEZ	PAMELA	I	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GONZALEZ	REBECA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300

BOARD OF ELECTION POLL WORKERS FOR PERIOD ENDING 07/23/21

		TITLE					
NAME		NUM	SALARY	ACTION	PROV	EFF DATE	AGENCY
GOODLUCK	ZACHKARY	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GOODWIN	GWENEVER M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GORDON	STEPHEN A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GRABEL	VALLETTA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300
GRAD	DAVID M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/21	300

LATE NOTICE

BOROUGH PRESIDENT - BROOKLYN

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT, Brooklyn Borough President Eric Adams, will hold a virtual public hearing as part of the meeting of the Brooklyn Borough Board, on **Tuesday, October 5, 2021, at 6:00 PM.**

Members of the public may join using the following information:

Event Address: https://nycbp.webex.com/nycbp/onstage/g.php?MTID=ee94bfb8987e226 1e5da42c3981577fe2

> Event Number: 2338 463 0783 Event Password: bbwh

Those wishing to call in without video may do so using the following information: Audio Conference: +1-408-418-9388 Access Code: 2338 463 0783

The Brooklyn Borough Board meeting agenda will include a public hearing and vote on the following:

N 210434 ZRY Open Restaurants/Sidewalk Cafes

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the New York City Department of City Planning (DCP), pursuant to Section 201 of the New York City Charter, for an amendment to remove Article I, Chapter 4 (Sidewalk Regulations) and all other text related to sidewalk café regulations from the New York City Zoning Resolution (ZR). The proposed text amendment will no longer require restaurants to have appropriate zoning to apply for the sidewalk café program. Moreover, restaurants seeking to open a sidewalk café would be required to apply for approvals from the proposed New York City Department of Transportation (DOT) permanent Open Restaurants program.

This hearing will be recorded for public transparency and made available on Borough President Adams' YouTube channel, One Brooklyn.

Note: For further information on accessibility or to make a request for accommodations, such as sign language interpretation services, please contact Nathan Sherfinski, (718) 802-3857, nathan.sherfinski@ brooklynbp.nyc.gov, or via phone at (718) 802-3857, at least five (5) business days in advance to ensure availability. Accessibility questions: Nathan Sherfinski, (718) 802-3857, nathan. sherfinski@brooklynbp.nyc.gov, by: Wednesday, September 29, 2021, 5:00 P.M.

3 🖍 🗳

THE CITY RECORD

◆ s29-o5

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT, pursuant to Section 201 of the New York City Charter, the Brooklyn Borough President, will hold a remote ULURP public hearing on the following matters, commencing at 6:00 P.M., on **Wednesday, October 6, 2021.**

The hearing will be conducted via the Webex video conferencing system.

Members of the public may join and testify using the following information:

Event Address:

 $https://nycbp.webex.com/nycbp/onstage/g.php?MTID=e49eac2844c56\\858f256de3fe0657eb18$

Event Number: 2332 889 2144

Event Password: ulurp

Those wishing to call in without video may do so using the following information:

Audio Conference: +1-408-418-9388

Access Code: 2332 889 2144

1) One Wythe Avenue Industrial Business Incentive Area (IBIA) Special Permit (210272 ZSK)

An application submitted by One Wythe LLC, pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter, for the grant of a special permit, pursuant to Section 74-96 of the New York City Zoning Resolution (ZR) to increase the maximum permitted floor area ratio in accordance with ZR Section 74-963, waive the off-street parking requirements of ZR Section 44-20, and modify the quantity and size of the loading berth requirements of Section 44-50. The requested actions are intended to facilitate an eight-story commercial and industrial building within an IBIA, specified on the Maps in Section 74-968 at 1 Wythe Avenue in an M1-2 District in Brooklyn Community District 1 (CD 1).

2) 79 Quay Street Rezoning (210166 ZMK, 210167 ZRK)

Applications submitted by Quay Plaza LLC, pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter, for a zoning map amendment to change an area on the north side of Quay Street and east side of West Street within 100 feet of Franklin Street from M1-2/R6A to an M1-5/ R7D district, and a zoning text amendment to designate a Mandatory Inclusionary Housing (MIH) area coterminous with the project area. The requested actions would facilitate a nine-story mixed-use development with a floor area ratio (FAR) of 5.58, containing approximately 10,585 square feet (sq. ft.) of commercial space and 81,570 sq. ft. of residential use in Brooklyn CD 1. Approximately 22 of the 83 intended dwelling units would be affordable to households earning an average 60 percent of Area Median Income (AMI), pursuant to MIH Option 1, or 26 units would be affordable to households earning an average 80 percent AMI, pursuant to MIH Option 2.

3) 749 Van Sinderen Avenue Rezoning (210285 ZMK, N210286 ZRK) Applications submitted by ENY Community Residences LLC, pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for a zoning map amendment to change a project area involving all or part of 18 lots on the east side of Van Sinderen Avenue between New Lots Avenue and Linden Boulevard from M1-1 to C4-4L, and a zoning text amendment to designate an MIH area coterminous with the project area. The requested actions are intended to facilitate a 103,493 sq. ft. building with 13,000 sq. ft. of ground-floor commercial space, and 119 affordable housing units in Brooklyn Community District 5 (CD 5).

This hearing will be recorded for public transparency and made available on Borough President Adams' YouTube channel, One Brooklyn.

Note: For further information on accessibility or to make a request for accommodations, such as sign language interpretation services, please contact Nathan Sherfinski via email, at nathan.sherfinski@brooklynbp. nyc.gov, or via phone at (718) 802-3857, at least five (5) business days in advance to ensure availability.

Accessibility questions: Nathan Sherfinski, (718) 802-3857, nathan. sherfinski@brooklynbp.nyc.gov, by: Thursday, September 30, 2021, 5:00 P.M.



<section-header><text><text><text></text></text></text></section-header>		
6-month print subscription: by mail \$300 by fax \$400 1-year print subscription: by mail \$500 by fax \$700 Pay by: Visa MasterCard AMEX Discover Check Renewal (Customer No) New Subscription To Pay by Credit Card Call (212) 386-6221 2% of the payment amount will be added if you pay by credit card. Send check payable to: The City Record 1 Centre Street, 17th Floor, New York, NY 10007-1602 Name: Company: Address: City: State: Zip+4: Phone: () Fax: ()		
Signature: Note: This item is not taxable and non-refundable. The City Record is published five days a week, except legal holidays. For more information call: 212-386-0055, fax: 212-669-3211 or email crsubscriptions@dcas.nyc.gov		